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Coalfield Resources plc was created on 10 December 2012
as part of the restructuring of UK Coal PLC.

Coalfield Resources is now purely an investment holding
company. Its only investment with economic value is a
24.9% stake in Harworth Estates Property Group Ltd.
It still has a minority residual holding in UK Coal Mine
Holdings Ltd but this has no economic value.

Harworth Estates is a leading property and development
company owning and managing around 30,000 acres
across some 200 sites. It specialises Iin regenerating
brownfield land for development in a range of ways to
deliver industrial and commercial opportunities and new
low carbon energy projects, new residential developments
and leisure uses.
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Chairman’s Statement

Overview of 2012

Having returned UK Coal to profit n 2011 as a result of an intense
recovery programme across the whole business led by a new
Board, this success was set back in 2012 by the failure of the
mining management team's plan and back-up plan at Daw Mill
Colliery A post-tax profit of £59 2m in 2011 was followed by a
post-tax loss of £6 3Im in 2012 It became very clear in March 2012
that somettnng far more radical was needed if the business was to
survive, especally having regard to the deficit due to the pension
fund of around £450m and the an-going challenges of ensuring
mining was suificiently reliable and profitable

The Board determined that the only credible way forward was
to seek a fundamental and solvent restructuring of the Group to
prevent such mining events having an impact on all parts of the
business in the future

Restructuring

Following the announcement of our decision to restructure on

14 March 2012, we finally achieved a complex solvent restructuring
nvolving thirty mine steps and aver 2 000 contractual documents
on 10 December 2012 This dismantled the legacy of the British
Coal structure and privatisation in 1994 and separated the Group
into three parts UK Coal Mne Holdings Ltd { Mine Holdings }
Harworth Estates Property Group Ltd { “Harworth Estates™) and
Coalfield Resources plc {“the Company } The largest share of
value went to the Mming Division Sectiens of the Industry-Wide
Pension Schemes {"Pension Schemes”) as the largest creditor
of the Group

The process mvolved the agreement of our printipal banking
partners Lloyds Banking Group together with Barclays Bank
and of the Pension Schemes, the Penstons Regulator our four
key generator customers the Department of Energy and Climate
Change and the Coal Authonity The restructuring was completed
on 10 December 2012 to create a more stable platform for the
Company Harworth Estates and Mine Holdings to cantinue

The principal value in the Company now relates to the 24 9%
interest in Harworth Estates The value of the portiolio of
Harworth Estates, on a 100% basis 1s carned at £260 1m on
which Harworth Estates carnies debt of £75 3m The portfolio
1 largely of former coalfield land for development and the
intention 1s to seek long term value through development on
which a good start has been made in the last 18 months with
the sales outlined below

We also agreed to maintain a non controlling interest in Mine
Holdings, the mining business which was accepted as part of
recenving the praperty mterest The controlling interest in Mine
Holdings transferred to an Employee Benefit Trust {"EBT"}
Together with the EBT the Company agreed to estabhsh a
Shareholder Commuttee which provides advice and governance
to Mine Holdings but with no prospect of any meaningful
financial return While the Shareholder Committee has no

day to day control, it has been very active tn supparting Mine

Holdings in 2013 and working with stakeholders to ensure its
survival sence the Daw Mill fire

Fire and Closure of Daw Mill

During 2012 and as part of the restructure we determined the
need to appoint a new Chief Executive and new Finance Director
for Mine Holdings We welcomed Kevin McCullough and Steve
Hutchinson to these roles and both have made a positwe start
in what, shortly afterwards became trying circumstances

The fire that broke ouwt on 22 February 2013 at Daw Mill, and led
to its subsequent closure, has had a significant impact on Mine
Holdings The mine will be closed safely over coming months
in the aftermath of the fire

With the understanding and support of all parts of government
led by the Department for Energy and Climate Change, the
Company has honoured its responsibihties and worked urelessty
with all parties to find a way forward for the remaiming mines
While carrying no formal responsibihity the Company has
befieved 1t 1s in the best interest of all parties to find an on-going
future for the mines There 1s no shareholder value for Coalfigld
Resources in its hoiding in Mine Holdings although Mine Holdings
remain liable to pay the Company s runming costs of up to £3m
per annum and outstanding debts for the restructure of £3 6m

Currently, the Company continues to be in discussions with Mine
Holdings about the potential restructuning of the mines and the
effect this could have on the Company

Following the restructuring in December 2012 and as a

non controlling shareholder the Company 1s not in a position to
make any further comment on the Mine Holdings business It1s
worth noting that, without last December’s restructuning, the
effect of the Daw Mill fire would have directly threatened the
mining, property and holding company viability and most hkely
would have wiped out remaining shareholder value across the
entire Group

Facility and Likely Fundraising

Notwithstanding the overall benefits of last year's separation
adirect consequence of the Daw Ml fire 1s that the Company
has been notified by UK Coal Operations Lumited {"UKCOL"} the
main trading subsidiary of Mine Holdings of its current inabihty
tomeet the indemmty 1t had given to the Company This indemmity,
which was given under the terms of the restructuning was for
UKCOL to indemmdy the Company for the costs ansing from the
fees on the restructuning {the remaining balante of which 1s
approximately £3 6m) and to pay the running costs of the
Company {up to £3 Om per annum but after a cost reduction
exercise, will be around half this amount)

in these circumstances the Company has sought to obtain a
banking facility secured against 1ts shareholding in Harworth
Estates The bank has provided a credit approved term sheet
for this faciity on the basis of a limited guarantee from the
Company s major shareholder, Peel Holdings Limited, and




an undertaking of a fund raising event by the Company should
UKCOL continue to be unable to meet its habilities

Pee! Holdings Limited has agreed to the imited guarantee required
by Lloyds TSB Bank plc, and has further offered assistance to
facilitate a fund-raising event Although no longer a premium
listed company the Board voluntanly undertook at the time of
the shareholder approval to move to standard hsting, that it
would seek approva! for any related party transaction with
Peel Holdings Limited This was principally intended to apply

to property-related transactions In the current exceptional
circumstances, the Beard has determined that it ts in
shareholder interests to proceed with the Peet suppeort and
will seek ratification after the event from shareholders should
the situatton persist and a fund-raising event be required

Harworth Estates

Over the last two years, Harworth Estates has carried outa
successful sales programme which contributed to halving the
bank debt of the Group As part of the restructuring Coalfield
Resources has no bank debt as this debi was transferred to
Harworth Estaies As part of the restructening, control of
Harworth Estates was transferred to the Pension Schemes in
exchange for releasing the Company and Harworth Estates from
thewr pension guarantee obligations and payment of £30 Om mto
Harworth Estates This was achieved by Harworth Estates
1ssuing additional shares to the Pension Schemes eguivalent

to 75 1% of the total shares The sale of Harworth Power for
£20 3min 2012 and continuing progress with schemes such

as Waverley, the former Orgreave Celliery, have renforced

the business At Waverley, construction began on the first

250 of potentially 3 900 houses Rolls-Royce and the University

of Shefheld also signed contracts to build major facilities

on the site

Harworth Estates currentty has property assets of around
£260m and we now look forward to achieving the medium
and long term reakisation of value from the portfolio, for the
benefit of both its sharehalders

People
As part of the restructuring sigmficant management changes
have been made

Nan-Executive Director Keith Heller has stepped down from the
Board to take the lead role on the EBT | would like to thank Keith
for the constructive role he played on the Beard and we continue
to benefit frem tus energy and broad experence as the EBT
Trustee on the Shareholder Commiitee

Peter Hickson Lisa Clement and Steven Underwood remain on
the Board of the Company and | thank them for therr valuable
advice during the year

Owen Michaelson has stepped down from the Board and has
been appointed as Chief Executive of Harworth Estates where
his leadership will continue to take the business forward

COALFIELD RESOURCES PLC ANNUAL REPOAT AND ACCOUNTS 2012

By mutual agreement Gareth Williams stood down from the Board
as Managing Director of the miming bustness in early 2013

On 31 December 2012 David Brocksom stood down from his
position as Finance Director having completed the restructuring
but has remained avalable in a transitional role during the early
part of 2013

Jeremy Hague has been appointed as Finance Director for the
Company and 15 likely to also return to Harworth Estates as
Finance Director in due course

The Board of Harworth Estates has been strengthened by
the appointment of Martyn Bowes, representing the Penston
Schemes, together with Tony Donnelly as an independent
Non-Executive Director Steven Underwood and |, who are
both directors of Cozlfield Resources have also been appointed
as members of the Board

The Shareholder Committee which provides advice, guidance
and governance to Mine Haldings on behalf of economic
stakehotders, consists of Peter Hickson, Lisa Clement, Keith
Heller Colin Reed and Jonson Cox We have sought to support
mining management through their Daw Mill crisis and recognise
that the role may change should there be a potential future
mine restructuring

As formerly agreed, and following the restructure and
appamtments of Kevin McCullough and Owen Michaelson,

| have reduced my time commitment accordingly to two days
a week having made a significantly more intense contsibution
in 2012 1remain Chairman of the Company, and have been
asked by both shareholders to serve as Chairman of Harworth
Estates On a transitional basis | have served as Chairman of
the Shareholder Committee which ofters gusdance to Mine
Holdings although this may change under a post-Daw Ml
restructuring

Qutlock

Following a very turbulent 2012, due mainly to the operational
1ssues at Daw Mill, the restructuring of the Group helped put
Harworth Estates and Mine Holdings on a more stable footing
The fire at Daw Mill, and subsequent closure, has been a bitter
blow for Mine Holdings but we understand the remaining mines
continue to be viable

As an active investor in Harworth Estates the Company will
continue to provide strong support to help ensure the on-going
success of Harworth Estates

| would like to thank everyone who played a part in our
December 2012 restructuring, particularly our customers
and suppliers

Jonson Co
Chairman

30 Apnl 2013
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Review of Operations

Fellowing the restructuring on 10 December 2012, the Company
1s principally an active investor in Harworth Estates and carries
a residual non-controlling stake in Mine Holdings The Company
does not beheve that there was, or1s any practical prospect

of a return from its investment in Mine Holdings and accepted
this ownership as part of the overall deal and the requirement
of prowiding governance to the mining business

The progress made m 2011 on the Recovery Plan by the Group
was reversed in 2012, due mainly to a failure of the mining
management team to deliver promised performance from
Daw Mill under both its base plan for the 32 coalface and
unacceptable delays in the contingency plans to have the

33 panel ready to schedule together with a slight reduction
in production at the other deep mines

During the penod 1 January 2012 10 10 December 2012 the
date that the Group restructyred and the Company changed
its name te Coalfield Resources plc the following operating
results were achieved

Deep Mines

Daw Mill performed very poarly throughout the year following
the slow recovery of 32 s face and delays in the 33 face and
produced 1 4m tonnes {2 1m tonnes for fulf year in 2011}
Kellingley and Thoresby also under performed with Kellingley
producing 2 Om tonnes {2 3m tonnes in 2011} and Thoresby
producing 1 2m tonnes {1 3m tonnes i 2011} A total of 4 6m
tonnes were produced by the deep mines (5 7m tonnes in 2011)

Although a major fire broke out at Daw Mill an 22 February 2013
after the end of the reporting year end, 1t is mentioned here as
the subsequent closure has had a considerable impact on Mine
Holdings' business

Harworth Colliery remained on a care and maintenance strategy
throughout the penod and wauld reed significant reinvesiment
to reopen which Mine Holdings would need to secure

Surface Mines

Surface mines performed well and increased their outpui by
11% In a very wet year that produced significant operating 1ssues
The combined surface mines produced 2 Om tonnes (1 8m tonnes
in2011)

Harworth Estates
Harwaorth Estates produced an operating profit of £15 8m (2011
£8 4m} after a revaluation gamn of £16 Zm {2011 £3 3m})

Highlights for Harworth Estates included the sale of Harworth
Power for £20 3m, the approval of planning permission at the
120 acre Rossington site near Doncaster, a lease to operate the
Prince of Wales coal fines recovery project near Pontefract and

the start of construction on the first of potentially 3,900 new
homes at Waverley, the site of the former Orgreave Colliery
vetween Sheffield and Rotherham On the same site land
was sold to Rolls-Royce and contracts exchanged with the
University of Sheffield te enable the construction of a majer
new manufactunng factity and educational centre

The Harworth Estates portfolio 1s currently valued at £260 1m
(2011 £250 6m)

Key Performance Indicators

Fallowing the restructuring on the 10 December the Group's Key
Performance Indicators have changed dramatically As we now
have no cantrol over, or expect any economic value from the
mimng business {(Mine Holdings) there 1s no reason for the Group
to continue 1o report the metrics associated with that business
The Group 1s now focused on its investment in Harworth Estates
Again as the Group does not control Harworth Estates although
1$an active Investor the previous property metrics while remaining
appropriate for Harworth Estates, are not appropriate for the
Group as a non-controlling investor

The Key Performance Indicator for the Group 1s now the net asset
value of the Group s investment in Harworth Estates As stated
In the accounts this 1s £50 3m as at 29 December 2012

The net asset value 15 momitored by the Company on a regular
basis as it has two directors on the Board of Harworth Estates
As such they are briefed regularly and able to enter into
discusston with Harwarth Estates over business performance
and strategy




Financial Review
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Following the restructuning the Group now consists of the Parent Company, together with some minor subsidiaries an investment
of 24 9% i Harworth Estates valued at £50 3m, and an investment in the mining business Mine Holdings valued at a notronal
£1 {together the “Current Group”)
This financial review 1s spht into two parts Firstly the activities assets labilities and obhgations of the Current Group are
described and secondly, the impact of the restructuring on the Group as it existed prior to restructuring {the “Former Group™}
1s discussed
Current Group
Continuing Operations
The Group $ continuing operations comprise those of an investment holding company For the year ended 29 December 2012 the
Group had operating profit of £0 1m {2011 operating loss £1 6m) Since the date of restructuring the Group s costs have been
recharged to Harworth Estates and Mine Holdings on a monthly basts Additionally the Group levied a monthly charge for company
secretanal services to the two businesses at a small margin
Balance Sheet
Fallowing the restructuring the Current Group’s balance sheet reflects the following assets and liabilities at 29 December 2012

£m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in associates 503
Total non-current assets 50.3
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 39
Assets classified as held for resale 213
Cash and cash equivalents -
Total current assets 252
Total agsets 755
Current iabilities
Trade and other payables (97}
Liabshties classified as held for resale {167
Provisions (05)
Total current liabilities {26 9}
Net current habilities {17}
Non-current habilities
Retirement benefit obligations (02
Total non-current habilities (07}
Total habilites (27 6}
Not assets 474

Investments 1n Associates

The Group contnbuted 75 1% of its holding in Harwaorth Estates to the Pension Schemes during the restructuning pracess The Group
holds the remaning 24 9% of Harworth Estates and accounts for 1ts interest as an investment in associates valued at £50 3m This
represents 105% of the Group's net assets The Group s share of net assets of Harwarth Estates has been reduced by £5 Om
toreflect the fact that under the terms of the Shareholder Agreement the first £5 0m of dividend income due to the Company
will be paid to the Pension Schemes
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Financial Review

continued

The balance sheet of Harworth Estates as at 29 Decermber 2012 shows net assets of £221 7m as follows

fm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 07
Investiment property 2601
Investments in joIint ventyres 18
Other 13
Total non-current assets %639
Current assets
Trade and other recemvables 127
Cash and cash equivalents 316
Total current assets 493
Total assets 3132
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (153)
Borrowings {1486)
Pravisions {01}
Total current habilities (300)
Non-current liabihities
Denvative financial instruments {08}
Borrowings 607
Total non-current habilities {615)
Total Labilities {915)
Net assets o1

Investments Classified as Avalable for Sale
In December 2012, as part of the restructuring the Group acquired 33% of the voting nghts and 90% of the economic nghts
of Mine Holdings The investment in Mine Holdings 1s carned at fair value of £1

Ordinarily rt s presumed that where an investor holds 20% or mare of the voting power of an entity 1t has significant power over
that entity Management has concluded that pest restructuning it has no control or sigmificant mfluence over Mine Holdings and
therefore has accounted for the investment as an avaslable for sale investment rather than as an investment 1n an associate under
IAS 39 "Financial instruments Recogmition and measurement  The main considerations by management were

*  Majority voting 15 held by the EBT with the Company retasning limited rights under the Shareholders Agreement,

* Mine Holdings maintains ts own independent Board, none of whom has served as directors of the Company and are explicitly
prohibited from acting in the interests of the Company

*  Although the Company holds a 30% economic interest in Mine Holdings, the large pension deficit means Mine Holdings
15 unhikely to pay dwidends in the near future and therefore the economic rights lack substance, and

» Thereis no economic incentive given that future dividends and investment value are hmited until the Pension Schemes deficits
are cleared

These factors support the conclusion to value the investment at £1 as an investment available for sale

Trade and Other Receivables

The trade and other receivables balance of £3 9m includes £3 6m of amounts due from Mina Holdings As disclosed in note 33 {post
balance sheet events) Mine Holdings suffered a major underground fire at 1ts Daw Mill colliery in February 2013 On 7 March Mine
Hofdings announced that it was closing Daw Mill colliery These events may have an impact upon Mine Holdings™ ability to settle
the amounts due to the Company
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Assets and Liabilities Classified as Held for Resale

At restructuring the Company agreed a put and call eptron with Mine Holdings to acquire the entire 1ssued share capttal of one of its
subsidiaries Harworth Insurance Company Limited The consideration for the option was £4 7m (shown as deferred income within
trade and other payables) Exercise of the optton 1s conditional upon obtaiming FSA consent or the parties agreeing that such consentis
no langer legally required Since the option had not been exercised at the year end the assets and liabilities of Harworth Insurance
Company Limited have been presented as held for resale

Trade and Other Payables
The balance of £9 7mincludes £4 7m deferred income on the grant of the call aption to Mine Holdings to acquire Harworth Insurance
Company Limited, together with fees due to professional adwsers in respect of restructuning

Provisions
With the exception of a £0 5m redundancy provision, the Group has no provisions at the year end

Retirement Benefit Obhgations

The Blenkinsopp scheme, which shows a deficit of £0 7m at the year end, has been retained as a hability of the Group The Group
received an indemnity from UKCOL to cover the expected £0 2m annual contribution to the Blenkinsopp scheme All other retirement
benefit obligations have been passed to Mine Holdings The Cempany raceived a charge at restructuring over the active collieries
of Thoresby and Kellingley and over Daw Mill, which is subject to closure, in order to provide some security over this hability

Bank Facilities
The restructured Group has no bank borrowings or bank facilities at the year end All faciliies relating ta the Group were transferred
to Harworth Estates or repaid upon restructuring

Following the Daw Mill fire in February 2013, and the resultant hablities this created for Mine Holdings there 1s an increased risk
that they will be unable to honour the iIndemnities given to the Company in the mmediate future As discussed in the Chairman's
Statement the Company has entered into negotiations to secure a one year bank facibity that would enable 1t to meet these liabilities
should they fall due The Company has received a credit approved Heads of Terms for a suitable facility and based on this the Board
heleves that an appropnate facility will be entered into by the half year The Company would look to repay the lean and raise sufficient
funds to cover any habilities not settled from the proceeds of an equity raising during 2013 The Board has received an informal
commitment to underwnite an equity raising which provides comfort that the facility can be repaid

Tax
The Group paid no corporation tax on contenuang operations in 2012 (2011 £nil) although there was & tax charge in the prior year
of £0 7m which related to changes in the rate at which deferred tax 1s provided

The Group has no recegnised deferred tax assets or habilities but has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £3 4m at December
2012 in respect of unused tax losses (E2 5m), other iming differences (£0 7m) and the Blenkinsopp pensian schems [£0 2m)

Contingent Liabilhities

Following restructuring the Group has a contingent hiatility in respect of guarantees that it has provided on behalf of Mine Heldings
in respect of certain finance leases At the year end the outstanding amount payable on these finance leases was £0 4m and they
were due to be settled within one year As disclosed in the Gaing Concern section of the Directors' Report and note 33 (post balance
sheet events) the fire at Daw Mill colliery and the subsegquent closure of the ming may have an impact en Mine Holdings” ability to
settle the finance leases The Board expects that should any of the guarantees be called the hability would be up to £0 4m

Additionally the Group had a potential habihty of £1 8min respect of its former VAT group This ltability was settled immediaiely
after the year end
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Financial Review

continued

Former Group

Following the restructuring which was completed en 10 December 2012 the mining property and insurance activities of the Former
Group ceased to form part of the consolidated financal statemants with effect from that date Additionally as a result of the disposal of
Harworth Power (Generation} Limited n October 2012, the Current Group no longer has any power generation actvities Accordingly
as required by IFRS & “Non-current assets held for sale and discentinued operations”, these activities have been classified as
discontinued operations within the Income Statement for 2012 and have also been classified as discontinued operations in the
comparative period

Discontinued Operations

In the 43 weeks prior to restructuring, the mining business generated sales of £360 2m £117 4m less than the 53 week comparative
period in 2011 The reduction in revenue was as a result of significantly lower sales volume, combined with a lower average realised
selling pnice achieved for the year The lower sates velumes arose mamly from on gong preduction problems at Daw Mill The mining
business suffered a £126 3m operating lass during the year (2011 £70 7m profit) as a result of the volume shortfall and a £78 0m
impairment charge 1n respect of Daw Mill following an impairment review of the mining business and the announcement of plans

to consult on the closure of Daw Mill colliery in 2014

Property disposals of £24 Om were made prior to restructuring resulting in a loss on disposal of £0 4m Nat proceeds of £21 5m were
received during the year The property business recorded a £15 8m operating profit before tax in the year (2011 £8 4m) after a
£16 2m revaluation gain {2011 £3 3m) was booked on the property portfoho

In October 2012 Harworth Power (Generation) Lumited was disposed of for aggregate consideration of £20 3m, of which £20 Cm was
payable upon completion at a profit of £13 Zm after fees Prior to disposal the power generation businass (comprising Harworth Power
Limited and Harworth Power {Generation) Limited) generated a £0 6m operating profit (2011 £2 4m}

In hight of the on-going fesses in the mining business the directors rewiewed the appropnateness of the deferred tax asset relating
to mining activities They reached the conclusion that the deferred tax asset could no longer be supported and cansequently £29 8m
of deferred tax assets have been derecognised during the year, with£21 6m being charged to discontinued operations

Loss after tax on discontinued operations amounted to £149 1m (2011 profit after tax £57 9m) Addetionally a profit on disposal of
discontinued operations net of restructuring fees, of £143 1m has been recogmsed in the financial statements in 2012 This profit
arose mamly as a result of shedding the net llabdities of the mining business

Financing Expenses

Net financing expenses relating ta discontinued operations were £16 7m compared to £22 5m n 2011 Excluding one-cif exceptional
finance costs of £2 Zm relating to refinancing the reduction in average borrawings 1n the period and net gains on Interest rate
swaps accounted for the majority of the reduced interest charge

Tax

At Dacember 2011, the Group had estimated gross trading losses of £230m and gross timing differences of £230m the latter ansing
largely from unclasmed or disclaimed capital allowances both of which were available to offset agamst future profits i the mining
business These gross trading losses and gross timing differences brought forward together with those accumulated during the
year were transferred to Mine Haoldings at restructuring and will be available to offset against future profits in that business

The net deficit on the balance sheet in respect of retirement provisions at the date of restrecturing of £94 1m resulted in an
additional tax timing difference of £21 6m (at a tax rate of 23%) avallable to Mine Holdings

0f the net deferred tax asset of £30 3m brought forward from 2011 £29 8m relating to the mining busness was derecognised during
the year with £21 6m being charged ta discontinued operations and the balance being charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income The directors were of the view that there would be: insufficient profits generated within the mining business
from which the future reversal of timmng differences could be deducted

At the date of restructuring the Group had around £365m of capital losses which could be offset agamst profits ansing on disposals
of properties which were held by the Group 1n 2002 These capital losses will be used to offset a chargeable gains degrouping
charge ansing in Harwaorth Estatas on restructuring, with the balance being carnied ferward in Harworth Estates post-restructuring
It1s estimated that the value of losses available to Harworth Estates wall be in excess of £150m These losses reman available to
Harworth Estates only while the Company retains control for tax purposes of UK Coal Mining Limited which 15 currently a subsidiary
of Mine Holdings
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Provisions

0f the £88 8m of provisions brought forward from December 2011 £14 8m were utilised and £0 3m were released during 2012
After additional provisions of £34 6m were made dunng the year and an unwind of discount of £1 7m applied, with the exception
of £0 5m of redundancy provissons retained by the Group the balance of £101 2m of provisions was transterred from the Group
upon restructuring Mine Holdings inhented £34 4m of prowisions and Harworth Estates acquired £6 7m of provisions Addmionally
£8 3m of employer and public iabilities in the books of Harworth Insurance Company Limited have been transferred to habilities
held for resale

Retirement Benefit Obligations

At the beginning of the year the Group had a deficit calculated under International Accounting Standards on its defined benefit
pension and retirement schemes of £144 7m  All new employees who joined after the privatisation in 1984 have been ehigible
to join defined contribution schemes

The Blenkinsopp scheme, which showed a deficit of £0 7m at the year end, has been retained as a hability of the Group The large
defined benefit pension and retirement schemes compnsing two funded industry wide schemes, 1ogether with an unfunded concessionary
fuel scheme were transferred to Mine Holdings upon restructuning The brought forward deficit noted aboeve included a hatiliy

of £43 7m in relation to the unfunded concessionary fuel scheme All of these schemes are valued annually by our independent
actuaries, the Government Actuary's Department

For these financial statements the schemes have been valued under 1AS19 “Employee Benefits”, using the projected unit method
and discounting future scheme liabilities on the basis of AA-rated corparate bond yelds of over 15 years The discount rate used,
net of nflation was 15% {2011 2 0%}

Movements in the net habihities of the schemes dunng 2012 are set cut below

Concessionary

Pensian* fuel Total

fm fm £m

December 2011 1010 437 147
Contributions pard less current service tost {21} {09) {3.0}
Change in fund value compared to expected return (16 0) 21 {13.9}
Actuanal loss on liabilities 992 58 1050
Contribution of 75 1% of property business to Pension Trustees {138 0} - (1380)
Transfer on restructuring {43 4} {507) (941)
Decembar 2012 07 - 07

*Including Blenkinsopp scheme

Prior to the transfer of £43 4m of liabilities to the mining business upon restructuning, there was a significant decrease in the deficit
on the pension schemes of £56 9m The main movements were

* Anactuanal loss on the funds habilines of £99 2m anising from the change in actuaral assumptions Principally this was due
to a reduction of J 5% n the discount rate net of inflation used to value feture scheme habilities

o The transfer of 75 1% of the property business to the Pension Schemes, at a value of £138m {after a £30m equity injection from
the Pension Schemes) 1s treated as a deficit contribution

e Agamof £16 Om due to returns on the funds’ assets being higher than expected

£79 5m of the movement in the deficit on the pension schemes has been charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income { SOCI™}in the year

Preor to restructuning there was an increase in the liability for the unfunded concessionary fuel scheme of £70m of which approximately
f4m was due to a reduction in discount rate used to value the scheme habiities and £3m was due to fuel cost ncreases over and
above the assumption made n 2011 £5 Bm of the movement in the deficit has been charged to SOC! in the year The deficit at the
date of restructunng has been transferred to the mining business

Details relating to retirement benefit abhigations are shown in note 25 to the financial statements
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Financial Review

continued

Earnings Per Share
The loss per share for the period was 2 1 pence {2011 profit of 18 5 pence)

Movement in Group Net Debt
A summary of movements i our Group net debt gosition 1s set out below

mz 201
Em £m
Operating profit/{ioss} from continuing operations i3] (16)
Operating {lgss)/profit fram discontinued eperations {109.2) 668
Operating {loss)/profit before non trading exceptionals {1081) 652
Revaluation of property {162) {33)
Profit on sale of iInvestment properties operating property plant and aquipment 18 (33)
Depreciatian/umpairments of property, plant and equipment 1196 405
Cash impact of non-trading exceptionals - 103)
Non-cash movement in mining provisions u3 44
Net working capital movements 173 145
Finance costs/interest payments (including loan arrangement fees) {136) [212)
QOther movements 54 13
36.1 978
Deep mines
Caputal expenditure — cash (198} 38
Payments agamst pravisions mz (108}
(tsposal proceeds on operating property, plant and equipment 35 13
(280} {413}
Surface mines
Amortisation of restoration assets 158 171
Pre-coaling expenditure 44} {26}
Deferred stipping adjustment (185) {08}
Restoration expenditure (31} {16 9}
(102} (33)
Harworth Estates
Net proceeds of sales of investment properties 25 643
Planning and development expenditure {5.2) (4 8}
163 595
Pension cantributions in excess of current service cost i21) {10 0)
Proceeds from sale of business 526 _
Net movement in restricted funds 356 09
Generator loans {135) 117
54.8 BG 5

The total decrease in net debt in the year was £54 Bm {2011 decrease of £86 5m)




Key Risks and Uncertainties

Fallowing the restructure the key nisks and uncertainties of
the Group fundamentally changed from those facing an active
operational mming and property developer into those facing
an active investment holder with non controlling interests
In a mining business and a property busmess

Property Risk

The Group now holds a non-centroling 24 9% investment in
Harworth Estates While the Group has no operational exposure
the value of its investment 1s subject to the nsks inherent in
Harworth Estates These are

Property market downturn or volatility

Land values are potentially volatile to changes in the wider
envirenment Economi¢ conditions affect both business and
consumer investment confidence and both of these have a
knock-on effect for residential and commerceal land prices
The agncultural part of the Harworth Estates estate has proved
tess volatile in the past and we would expect it to remain so
given the more mature nature of the land's usage

The “immaturity” in planning terms, of Harworth Estates
brownfield sites means that a considerable amount of value can
be added by the work carrted out in advancing them through the
planning process Harworth Estates continue to seek favourable
planning outcomes acrass the development portfolic in order to
merease and allow this value to be realised, both of which help
to mitigate the carrying value nsk of these properties

Planning approvals
Any major changes in the planning regime could affect the
value of Harworth Estates erther positively or negatively

Mining Risk

As shown in the financial statements the Group does not
recognise any economic value in 1ts investment in Mine Holdings
As such the Group 15 no longer exposed to any nsks from these
operations The Group does still have some exposure to residual
financial habilities and guarantees from Mine Holdings and
UKCOL and these are explained more fully in the Going Concern
statement included in the Direciors’ Report
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Pension Risk

Following the restructure, the Group no longer bears any risks
under the terms of tha 1994 privatisation for those employees
who transferred to the employment of UK Coal Mining Ltd and
became members of one of two Pension Schemes As disclosed
in the accounts, the Group does sull have some nisk from
fiuctuations in the value of the Blenkinsopp section of the
scheme The habilites of this scheme are disclosed in the
financial statements under note 25 This scheme 15 elosed to
new members The scheme deficit 1s in accordance with
International Accounting Standards, calculated using a dhscount
rate in line with the market rate for corporate bonds Under

the Techmical Provisions, which are the basis for the treennial
calculation of the pension habilities for the Pensions Regulator
and far agreement on funding ratas with the Trustees different
rates, based on giltyields are employed Depending on changes
In these rates prevalling at, and investment performance to, the
next valuation date {being 31 December 2012}, a higher deficit
than that as at December 2009 could lead to higher deficit
contributions being needed in later years

Financing Risk

The Group requires funding from its investments on an ¢n-going
basis to cover s operational costs {being manly salanies, office
running casts and cost associated with maintaiming its Stock
Exchange hsting) This funding comes from contractual
agreements to pay management charges Should this
management charge not be pard the Group would require
external funding This could be debt or equity The Group s
currently in the pracess of securing a debt facility to cover
certain obhigations 1n the event that Mine Haldings and/or
UKCOL fail to honour certain indemnities — these are discussed
in more detail in the Going Cancern statement inciuded in the
Directors Report The ability to rasse funds on reasonable terms
depends on a number of factors including general economic,
poltical and capital market conditions and credit availability as
well as business credit worthiness There can be no assurance
that debt financing in the longer term will be avadable or, if 1t1s
that it will be available on acceptable terms for the Group
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Reduced Impact

Until the restructure in December 2012, the Group was a major
employer miming operator and landowner within Central and
Northern England The Group strived to minimise the impact
of 1ts operations by mantaining a corporate focus on the
local environment, communities economy and the safety

of our employees

A commrtment to Corparate Social Responsibility saw the
Group work wath a range of stakeholders including Business
in the Commuruty, to help deliver significant benefits to the
areas m which they waorked

A Small Employer

Following the restructure the Group employs only a small team
of people to manage the investment 1n Mine Holdings and
Harworth Estates The executive team consists of four people
the Chairman Finance Director, Company Secretary and
Personal Assistant The Charrman undertakes his duties to the
Group on a part time basis and the Finance Director and the
Company Secretary a!so provided suppart to Harworth Estates
and Mine Holdings The team s cffered time to undertake
continuous professional development and other forms of training
although pressure of the recovery plan and restructuring have
naturally precluded any such activities in recent years The aim
15 to attract, retain and motivate high calibre employees and
encourage personal and professional development

Given the small size of the team all matters are communicated
and shared withan the team on a regular basis

Health and Safety Risk Management

Given the small size of the team, health and safety and
operational risk are managed within an office environment
The offices are leased fram Harworth Estates and shared
with Mine Holdings who each provide an operational nsk
management review of ther warking environment

Impact on the Environment

Although the Group remains an investor in both Harworth
Estates and Mine Holdings 1ts direct impact on the environment
and 1ts ability to alter or change that impact s hmrted to its
nen-controlling influence as an investor The Group actively
seeks 10 ensure that the senior management of its nvestments
are aware of their impact on the environment and take appropriate
measures to comply with apprapniate legislation and mimimise
their impact




Board of Directors

Jonson Cox

Jonson Cox was appointed as Chairman with effect from

15 November 2010 He was formerly Group Chief Executive

of Anglian Water Group from January 2004 until March 2010
For the same period he was Chairman of Anglian Water
Services Limited and Mornison plc He 1s a non-executive
director of Wincanton plc In November 2012 he was appointed
as non executive chairman of the Water Services Regulation
Authonity

Jeremy Hague

Jeremy was appointed as the Finance Director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2013 following the decision of Dawid
Brocksom to step down from that position after completion of
the restructuring in December 2012 Jeremy joined the finance
function of RJB Mirung plc, a predecessor of UK Coal and
Coalfield Resources in May 1994 and has served in vanious
capacities, most recently as the Finance Director of the
Harwaorth Estates business a role which itis expected he will
return to and combine with his current role i the near future
Jeremy s a Chartered Management Accountant

Peter Hickson

Peter Hickson 1s Senior Independent Director and was appointed
as a non-executive director and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 July 2011 He 1s currently
Chairman of Communisis plc and Charman of Chemring Group
pic He was Chairman of Anghan Water Group from 2003 to
2008, and served as Finance Director of Powergen ple between
1996 and 2002 He was a non-executive director of Kazakhmys
plc from 2009 to 2041 Scottish Power plc from 2006 to 2007
Marconi Corporation plc from 2004 to 2007 and RAC ple from
1994 10 2002 He was also Senior Independent Director of
London & Continental Railways Ltd between 2007 and 201

He s a trustee and Board member of Orbis Chantable Trust

the international sight saving chanity and a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants
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Lisa Clement

Lisa Clement s a Chartered Accountant and was appointed as

a non-executve director and Chair of the Audit Commuttee with
effect from 15 December 2011 She was formerly Chiei Financial
Officer of Sea Contamers Limited, Managing Directer of Capita
Learning and Development and has held semor divistanal reles
at Cendant Inc and BPP Holdings Plc

Steven Undarwoed

Steven Underwood s Chief Executive of the Peel Group of
compamies, and was appointed 10 the Board as a non-executive
director with effect from 1 August 2010 He 15 also currently a
non-executive director of Pinewocd Shepperton PLC and an
alternate director ofintu pic {formerty Capital Shopping Centres
Group plc)
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their anaual report and the audited
conselidated financial statements for 2012 These will be
laid before the 2013 Annual General Meeting Details of all
resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Megting
are set gut in the notice calling the meeting which 1s enclosed
with this report

Princtpal Activities, Business Review and Future
Developments

On 10 December 2012, the Company announced the completion
of the restructuring process that began in March 2012 The
Board performed the restructuring to provide a stable platform
in the medwm term for the farmer UK Goal Group s mining

and property businesses and to achieve the best value for

Its stakeholders

Under the restructuring, the Group s business was legally
separated into the Mining Givision under UK Coal Mine Holdings
Limited ("Mine Holdings™) and the Property Division under
Harworth Estates Property Group Limited ( Harworth Estates”)
and the Group s man penson deficit became isolated as a
hability of the Mining Division The purpose of the separation
was that the pension deficit became ring fenced from the
Company and Property Division’s assets and hiabilities, so that
the value of the Company and the Property Division was not
subject to any change in the liability of the Pension Schemes

Control of the Mining Division has passed to a newly established
Employee Benefit Trust {"EBT™) which holds shares representing
67% of the voting, and 10% of the ecenomic rghts in Mine
Holdings for the benefit of current and future employees of the
Mining Dmsion The Company retains 90% of the economic and
33% of the voting, rights i Mine Holdings but the Company's
and EBT s shareholding both rank behind the debt due to the
Pension Schemes

The Company owns 24 9% of Harwaorth Estates, with 75 1%
having passed to the Pension Schemes in return for a £30 Om
cash injection into Harworth Estates The Company is entitled to
the benefit of the remaining 24 9% The Company no longer
guarantees the pension liabilities of the Mining Division but
has agreed that the first £5 Om of dividend income due to
the Company from Harworth Estates will be paid o the
Pension Schemes

On completion of the restructuring the Company changed
1ts name from UK Coal plc to reflect the changed structure

The principal activities of the Group during the penod up to the
date of restructure compnised surface and underground coal
mining property regeneration and management and power

generation Following the restructure the principal activity of
the Group was as an investment holding company The principal
activity of the Company duning 2012 was that of a holding
tompany

The Chairman s Statement and the Operating and Financial
Review are ncorporated by reference These provide a review
of the former Group's business which includes the

+ Development and performance of the former Group in the
penod to the restructure and its position at the year end,

¢ Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company

¢ Key Performance Indicators used to measure the Group s
performance,

+ Environmental and employee priorities facing the Group, and

+  Therestructured Group's future davelopment and outlook
for 2013

Dinndends Per Ordinary Share

There was no intenim dividend paid duning the year (2011 £nil}
The direciars are not recommending the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the 2012 financial year {Z011 £ndl)

Directors

The directors who served during the year were Davtd Brocksom,
Lisa Clement, Jonson Cox, Keith Heller Peter Hickson Owen
Michaelson Steven Underwaod and Gareth Williams The
following changes in directors occurred durning the year and
since the year end

¢ Keith Heller Owen Michaelson and Gareth Williams
resigned on 7 December 2012,

+ Dawid Brocksom resigned on 31 December 2012

¢ Jeremy Hague was appointed on 1 January 2013 and
will offer imself for re-election at the 2013 Annual
General Meeting

Inaccordance with the Articles of Association Jonson Cox will
retire by rotation and seek re-appointment at the 2013 Annual
General Meeting The Board unanimously recommends both his
and Jeremy Hague s re electien

All executive directors have service contracts which may be
terminated by the Company en not more than twelve months
notice, for all non-executive directors the notice period 1s three
months with the excepuion of Peter Hickson Senior Independert
Director whose appaintment 1s subject to six months’ notice
There are no directors on fixed term contracts There are ne
centractual clauses that give any of the directors an entittement
to compensation exceeding therr due payment in heu of notice




Details of indemmties from the Company and insurance taken
out for the henefit of the directors 15 set out in the Corporate
Governance Report

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company
are shown n the report on directors remuneration

Chantable Donations

The contrbutions made by the Group duning the year for charitable
purposes were £nil (2011 £nil} No political donatiens were
made i 2012 (2011 £l

Employees

Subsequent to the restructuring, the number of employees in
companies where the Company has contral has fallen to four
In the period to the date of restructuning the Group consulted
and discussed with employees matters hkely to afiect therr
interests Internal news-sheets were produced and distnbuted
free to all employees regularly Information on matters of
concern to employees was given periodically to achieve a
common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial
and economic factors affecting the Group s performance

Disabled Persons

The Campany gives full and fair consideration to surtable
applications for employment by disabled persons and all
disabled persons are provided with traiming to assistin obtaining
promotions and developing therr career Oppartunibies also exist
for employees of the Company who become disabled 1o centinue
in their employment or to be traned for other positions within
the Company

Health and Safety

The Company 1s committed to maintamning high standards of
health and safety in every area of the business Following the
restructuning the responsibility for health and safety matters

in the Group devolved to Mine Holdings and Harworth Estates
It1s the aim of the Company to exceed the requirements of the
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and all other relevant health
and safety legislation Details of the Company s commitment

to health and safety are found in the Corporate Social
Responsibility section

During the period before restructunng UK Coal Mining Ltd
["UKCML"} was ordered to pay the sum of £420 000 comprising
£200,000 in fines and £220 000 1n costs n respect of breaches
of health and safety legislation brought against it by the Health
and Safety Executive { "HSE") following a fatality in 2008 In the
penod pnor to the restructure UKCML pleaded guilty to a further
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charge for breaches of health and safety legislation following
a further fatality in 2009

Treasury Policy and Liquidity

The Company Is finalising a borrowing line estimated to !
be sufficient to cover forecast cash requirements In thrs

assessment, the Company only takes into account existing

or renewing facilities and new facilities where these have

recewved credit approval or equivalent

Details of financial risks in respact of market nsk, credit nisk and
liguidity nisk are seicut in note 24 to the financial statements

Supplier Payment Policy

The Company and the Group does not {ollow any speaific
external code or standard on payment practice {ts policy
15 normally to pay supphters according te terms of business
agreed with them on entering into contracts and to keep to
the payment terms prowading the relevant goods or services
have been supplied in accordance with the contracts

The Company had 57 days' purchases outstanding at
29 December 2012 {2011 65 days) based on the average
daily amount invoeced by suppliers during the period

Ethical Policy

The Company 1s committed to working with its employees,
customers supphers and contractors to promote responsible
working and trading practices Further information regarding
how the Former Group addressed social and community issues
1s shown in the report on Coerporate Social Responsibility

Quality and Integrity of Personnel

It1s the Company s policy to employ the highest calibre of
management and staff and encourage the highest standards
of personal integnty Recruitment procedures are designed
to identify and reward high calibre individuals

Share Capital, Voting Rights and Transfer of Shares
Details of the structure of the Company 5 share capital and
changes in the share capital during the year are disclosed
n note 26 to the financial statements

The nghts and obligations attaching ta the Company s ordinary
shares are set out in the Campany s Articles of Association
copies of which can be obtained from Compamies House in the
UK ar by writing ta the Company Secretary In particular subject
to partsicular statutes and the Company s Arucles of Association
shares may be 1ssued with such nights or restrictions as the
Board may determing
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Directors’ Report

continued

Shareholders are entitled to attend speak and vote at general
meetings of the Company, to appoint one or more proxies and, if
they are corporations to appoint corporate representatives On
a show of hands at a general meeting every holder of ordinary
shares present in person shall have one vote and every proxy
present who has been duly appointed by a member entitled to
vote on the resolution has one vote and an a poll every member
present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every
ordinary share held Further details regarding voting including
deadhines for voting at the Annual General Meeting can be found
in the notes to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting No
person 1s unless the Board decides atherwise entitled to attend
or vote either personally or by proxy at a general meeting or to
exercise any other shareholder nghts if he or any person with
annterest in shares has been sent a notice under section 793 of
the Companies Act 2006 and has failed to supply the Company
with the requisite informatron within the prescnbed pertod

Shareholders may receive a dividend and on a iquidation may
share In the assets of the Company The Company has one class
of ordnary shares which carry equal voting rights and no
contractual right te recerve payment

The instrument of transfer of a certificated share may be in any
usual form or in any other form which the Beard may approve
The Board may refuse to regrster any strument of transfer of
a certificated share which s not fully paid provided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the Company from
taking place on an apen and proper basis The Board may also
refuse to register a transfer of certificated share unless the
instrument of transfer {i)s lodged, duly stamped (if stampable)
at the reqistered office of the Company or any other place
decided by the Board accompanied by the certificate for the
share to which 1t relates and such other evidence as the Board
may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to
make the transfer, (i) 1s in respect of only one ¢lass of shares
(m}1s m favour of not more than four transferees Transfers of
uncertificated shares must be carned out using the relevant
system and the Board can refuse to remster a transfer of

an uncertificated share in accordance with the reguiations
gaverning the operation of the relevant system and with UK
legislation Restrictions may also be imposed on certain Group
employees who are required to seek approval from the Company
before dealing 1n shares in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Listing Authority

There are no other himitations on the holding of ordinary
shares in the Company and the Company 1s not aware of any
agreements between holders of secunties that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of secunties or on voting rnights

Details of major shareholdings are included in the Corporate
Governance section of this Annual Report Details of employee
share schemes can be found in the Directors Remuneration
Report

Sigmficant Agreements

The Companies Act Z006 requires us to disclose significant
agreements that take effect, alter or terminate on a change of
control of the Company Fallowing the termination or transfer of
all previously disclosed banking facilities to Harworth Estates
atrestructuring these are as such no longer disclosed

There are no agreements between the Company and Its
directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss
of office or employment that accurs because of a takeover bid

Going Concern

These financial statements are prepared on the basis that the
Group 1s a gong concern In forming its opinian as to going
concern the Board prepares cash flow forecasts based upon its
assumptions as 1o Income streams and costs required to fulfil res
objectives Consideration is also given to known habilities as
outhned below, which may become payable by the Group under
certain circemstances The resulting cash flows are then
compared to avaifable furding, both committed funding and
funding which the Board reasonably expects to be available

to the Group In a timeframe such that it meets any shortfall

in the expected cash flows

The key factors that have been considered in this regard relate
te both on going running costs of the Group and residual
labilities that the Group may have to settle

* Income 15 predominantly in sespect of management services
supphed to Mine Holdings and Harworth Estates This
service income 15 covered by contractual agreements
Costs are mamly in relation to management and those costs
associated with the administration of the Group including
maintaning rts Stock Exchange listing Should Mine Heldings
fail to pay its share of management services the Group
could have a deficit against its running costs of up to
£0 3m per annum

s The Company remains guarantor to certain lease obligations
of the Mining Group The assets concerned are currently
in use by UKCOL in their deep mine operations The Board
expects that should these guarantees be called the liability
would be £0 5m, and

s The Group engaged a number of advisors to assist in the
restructuring process The Group recerved an indemnity
from UKCOL for payment of these fees and other iabiliues
including the £0 2m annual Blenkinsopp pension scheme
contributron Should UKCOL not honour this indemnity then
the Group would have to settle these hiabilities out of 1ts
own resources The expected balance still to be settled 1s
£3 Bm for casts associated with the restructuring process
and the on going annual pension scheme contribution

Following the Daw Ml fire in February 2013, and the resultant
liabiities this created for Mine Holdings there 1s an increased
nsk that they will be unable to honour the indemnities given
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to the Grougp {which includes on goung running costs) in the The Company carries its tnvestment in Mine Holdings at £1
immediate future As such the Group has entered into negouations  so there 15 no risk to shareholder value ansing from the fire

to secure a one-year bank factlity that would enable it to meet However Mine Holdings was due to contribute to the Company's
these habiliies should they fall due The Group has received a on-gong runmng costs and at the date of signing of the Annual
credit approved Heads of Terms for a sustable facility and based ~ Report and Accounts 2012, owed £3 6m in respect of restruciuring
on this the Board believe an appropriate facility will be entered  fees recharged by the Company The directors consider that

into by the half year The Group would look to repay the loan there 1s some uncertanty as to the recoverability of this

and rarse sufficient funds to cover any of these liabilities not receivable, as further disclesed in note 33 of the financial

yet settled from the proceeds of an equity raising during 2013 statements whereby the value of Harworth Estates could

The Board has received an informal commitmeni to underwnte  be impacted by this event

fort that th
an equity rarsing which provides comfort that the facility can By order of the Board

be repaid 4
The Board notes that the matters set out above indicate the / /
existence of material uncertanties that may cast significant Geoff Mason //

doubt aver the Group's ability 1o continue as a going concern Company Secretary
if current or expected funding and facilities are not recerved 30 April 2013

as envisaged Nevertheless the Board confirms its belied

that it 13 appropriate to use the going eancern basss of

preparation for these financial statements These financial

statements do not include the adjustments that would result

if the Group or Campany were unable to continue as a going

concem

Auditors and Disclosure of Information To Auditers

Each of the directors at the date of approval of this report
confirms that so far as the director 1s aware there 1s no relevant
audit infarmation {being information needed by the Company’s
auditors in connection with prepanng its report) of which the
Company's auditors are unaware In addition, each dirgctor
confirms that he has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit tnformation and to establish that the Company’s
audstor 1s aware of that mformation

A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors to the Company will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting

Subsequent Events
Since restructuring the Group has retained only a imited
economic interest in its investment in Mine Holdings

0On 22 February 2013 Mine Holdings’ Daw Mill colliery suffered
a major underground fire On 7 March 2013, Mine Holdings
announced the closure of Daw Mill colhery putting the
workforce of 650 at risk of redundancy

The fire and subsequent closure of Daw Mill has had a significant
impact on the mining business The Company has worked closely
with Mine Holdings and the government led by the Department
for Energy and Chimate Change to help Mine Holdings manage
the closure of Daw Mull and seek a way forward for the mining
business
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
the Directors Remuneratton Report and the financial statements
in accerdance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group and Parent Campany financial
statements in accordance with International Financiat Reporting
Standards ("IFASs") as adopted by the European Umon Under
company faw the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or foss of the Graup for that persod In prepaning
these financial statements, the directors are required to

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

»  State whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unson have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained n the finaneial
statements and

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t I1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
contmue in busingss

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose wath reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and
as regards the Group financial statements Arucle 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence far taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Group 5 website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation i other junsdictions

Each of the directors whose names and functions are detailed
inthe Company and Advisois section confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge

¢ The Group financial statements which have been prepared
n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true
and farr view of the assets habilities, financial position and
profit of the Group and

¢ The Drrectors Report contamed in the Annual Report includes
a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group together with a
description of the principal nsks and uncertasmties that
it faces




Corporate Governance

The Campany recognises the importance of, and 1s commtted
to, hugh standards of Corporate Governance and the following
sections explain how both the Company and the Group has
applred the main and supporting principles set out tn the UK
Corporate Governance Code {"Code”}, 1ssued by the Financial
Reporting Council in June 2010 a copy of which 1s publicly
available at www frc org uk/corparate/ukegcode cfm The Board
confirms that the Company and the Group have complied with
the provistons set out in the Code throughout the year ended
29 December 2012 save that 1n light of the need to develop the
two distinct principal busiesses within the Group prior to the
restructuring 1t aligned the Board and management structure
such that the Managing Directors of the Mining and Property
Divisians respectively report to the Chairman who retained
overall leadership of the Group Following the restructuring

1t 1s expected that over time the Chairmanship will reduce

tn commitment and revert to a non-executive pasition

The Board of Directors

The Company 1s headed by a Board of Directors now compnising
of the Chairman, one executive director and three non-executive
directors two of whom are determined by the Board to be
independent The Board recogmises that Steven Underwood,
who 15 a Director and representative of Peel Holdings which
1s the major sharehelder in the Group 15 not independent It 1s
considered that his skills and experience are relevant to the
business and he contnbutes to the reahisation of the Group s
strategy

The Chairman has overal! leadership of the Company, with
responsibility for ensuring the development and implementation
of the Board's strategtes and policies He 1s also respansible for
the runnung of the Board including but not hmited to, ensuring
that a fixed schedule of matters 1s exclusively retained for the
Board s review and approval, and that a framework exists to
allow the clear and timely dissemination of relevant information
to all directors for such revtew 10 occur The Sentor Independent
Director 1s Peter Hickson

The Board of the Company 1s responsible for setting the
Company s objectives and policies and for the stewardship

of the Company's resources The Board 1s responsible to the
shareholders for the overall management of the Company and its
investments in the former Property Division, Harworth Estates
{which 18 now 75 1% controlled by the trustees of the Pension
Schemes in which the former Mining Dwvision Mine Holdings
participates) and Mine Holdings in which the Company now
has only 33% of the vating nights, contro!l having been ceded
te an Employee Benefit Trust
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The Board censiders its non-executwe directors bring judgement,
knowledge and expenence to the Board's deliberatiens They
have no financial or eentractual interests in the Company, other
than interests in ordinary shares as disclosed in the Directors
Remuneration Report Non-gxecutive directors are offered the
opportumiy {o attend meetings with major shareholders and
would attend them if requested by major shareholders

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are comphed with The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary are matters for the Board as
awhole The Board has established a procedure under which
any director, wishing to do so in furtherance of his duties may
take independent advice at the Company s expense

The Company matntains an appropriate level of drectors’ and
officers nsurance in respect of legal action against the directors
Further there are indemmities between the Company and
certain directors in respect of costs and expenses suffered
from an investigation by a regulatory body which are not
covered by insurance

The mterests of the directors in the shares of the Company
are shown in the Directors Rernuneration Report
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Attendance at Board Meetings

Attendance by indrvidual directors at Board meetings {including those convened and held as conference calls) and at Committees
during 2012 1s shown in the table below Attendance by non-Committee members at Committee meetings s not included

Board Audnt Remuneration Nomination Safety

Possible Actual Possible Actual Possible Actua! Possible Actual Possible Actual
J Cox 20 20 - - - - 1 1 3 2
D Brocksom
[resigned 311212} 20 20 - - - - - - - -
K Heller
{resigned 712 32) 19 19 4 4 3 3 - - k] 3
L Clement 20 20 4 4 - - - - - -
P Hickson 20 13 - - 3 3 1 i 3 2
0 Michaelson
{resigned 712 12) 19 19 - - - - - - - -
S Underwood 20 19 - - - ~ - - - -
G Williams
[resigned 712 12} 19 18 - - - - - - - -
Committees Chairman of the Committee, he wall not chair the Committee

The Group's governance structure ensured that all decisions
were made by the most appropriate people in such a way that
the decision making process itself does not unnecessarnly delay
progress The Board delegated specific responsibilities to the
Nommation Remuneration Audit and Safety Committees as
described below Each committee had terms of reference that
the whole Board had approved Following the restructure the
terms of reference have been reviewed in ling with the revised
circumstances of the Group and following the devolutien of
control of the mining business the Shareholders of Mine Holdings
have agreed to the establishment of a Safety Committee within
that business Detatls of the current terms of reference for

the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit Committees ¢an

be found on the Company's website Board and committee
papers are circulated in advance of each meeting so that all
directors are fully briefed Papers are supplemented by reports
and presentations to ensure that Board membess are supphed

n a timely manner with the information they need

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commuittee leads the process for Board
appointments by making recommendations to the Board about
filing Board vacancies and appointing additional persons to the
Board The Committee also considers and makes recommendations
to the Board on 1ts composition, batance and membership and
on the re-appointment by shareholders of any director under
the retirement by rotation provisions i the Company s Articles

of Association

The Commttee’s members are the independent non executive
directors and the Chairman  Although the Chairman 1s also

when 1t deals with the appointment of a successor to the
chairmanship The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance
of skifls knowledge and expenience on the Board and, i the
light of this evaluatien prepares a description of the roles and
capabilities required for a particular appointment

During the year the Committee engaged the serwices of external
search consultants to assist with the recruitment of a new
finance director and chief executive for Mine Holdings

The Board imstially appoints all new directors, having first
tonsidered recommendations made to 1t by the Nomination
Committee Following such appotntment the dirgctor 1s required
toretire and seek re-appointment at the next Annual General
Meeting There 15 a process of rotation which ensures that
approximately one third of all directors are required to retire
and seek re appaintment at each Annual General Meeting

The Nomination Committee considers succession planmng for
appeintments to the Board and to senior management posttions
50 as to mantain an appropnate balance of skills and experience
both on the Board and in the Company

Remuneration Committee
The composition and work of the Remunaration Committee
are described in the Directors Remuneration Report

Audit Committee and Auditors
The Audit Committee comprises Lisa Clement {Chair) and
Steven Underwood

Kesth Heller, who retired from the Board on 7 December 2012
was a member of the Committee until he resigned as a director




The Board (s satisfied that Lisa Clement and Steven Underwood
have recent and relevant financial experience but recognise that
Steven Underwood is not an independent non-executive director
The Chairman, Finance Director and the external auditors are
inviied to attend meetings The minutes of meetings of the
Committee are circulated to all directors Going forward the
Committee will meet at least twice a year to review the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting practices, the work of
external auditors and comphance with policies procedures

and applicable legislation The Audit Committee alse reviews
the half year and annual financial statements before submission
ta the Board During the period under review the Committee
reviewed the scope, remit and effectiveness of internal audit
provision and the effectiveness of the Group's internal contral
systems It alsg reviewed “whistle blowing " arrangements

by which employees of the Group could, in confidence, rarse
concerns about possible financial or other improprieties
Following the restructure and the censequent reductian in the
size and complexity of the Company s reporting and systems

of control it has been agreed that there is currently no need for
an internal audit or whistle-blowing arrangement wathen the
Company The terms of reference of the Audit Commitiee are
available to sharehalders on request and are also available

on the Company s websile

The auditors throughout 2012 have been
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, at costs as detailed below

Year Year
ended ended
December December
012 M
a1 0] £000
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company
auditors for the audit of tha
Parent Company and the
consolidated accounts 135 75
Fees payable to the Company
auditors and ts associates for
other services
—The audrt of the Company's
subsidianies pursuant to legistation 195 244
= The auditing of the accounts of
any associate of the Company 50 -
— Audit related assurance services 10 45
- All other assurance related
SBIVICES 47 17
- Tax adwisory services 90 81
—Tax compliance services 80 -
— All other non-audit services 230 -
3,757 462
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The Board recognises the importance of safeguarding auditer
objectivity and has taken ihe following steps to ensure that
auditor independence 15 not compromised

e The Audit Commitiee reviews the audit appointment
penodically

It 1s Group policy that the external auditors will not as a
general rule prowide consulting services to the Group The
external auditors provide audit-related services such as
regulatory and statutory reporting as well as formalities
relating to shareholder and other circulars However the
complexity of the restructuning which was undertaken

by the Group and developed throughaut the period under
review meant that the Board recogmsed the financial
prudency in appointing the audit firm as financial advisors
to the restructuring thus ensuring that the complex
transactions entered during this process could be more
easily understood during the subsequent audit,

The external auditors may undertake due diligence reviews
and provide assistance on tax matters given their knowledge
aof the Group's businesses Such pravision will however, be
assessed on a case by case basis so that the best placed
adviser 15 retamed The Audit Committee momtors the
apphcation of the policy in this regard and keeps the policy
under review

*  The Audit Committee reviews on a regular basis all fees
paid for audit and all other fees, with 3 view 10 assessing
reasonableness of fees value of defivery, and any independent
1ssues that may have ansen or may potentially anise in the
future and

¢ The independent auditors report to the directors and
the Audit Committee confirming thewr independence
in accordance with Auditing Standards

Satety Committee

Duning the penod up to restructuning the Board had a Safety
Committee to assist it in ensuring that the Group comphed with
1ts health and safety obhigations and to review and recommend
to the Board strategic options that could enhance the policies
standards and processes that operated within the Group The
Committee compnsed Keith Heller {Chairman), Peter Hicksen
Jonson Cox and Gareth Wilhams and meetings were attended
by all relevant senior managers

Other Meetings

In accordance with best practice the Chairman has frequent
meetings with the non-executive directors without the executive
drrectors being present




24 COALFELD RESOURCES PLC ANNUAL REPOAT AND ACCOUNTS 2012

Corporate Governance

continued

A meeting of the non-executive directors chaired by the Senror
Independent Director {without the Chairmany, takes place at
least annually to appraise the Chairman s performance

Directors’ Development

All directors recerve induction on joining the Company and
access to further traming 1s made avaitable The Company
provides the necessary internal and external resources to
enable directors to develop and update therr knowledge
and capabiltties

Performance Evaluation

The performance of the Board and its committees 15 considered
and reviewed by the Board throughout the financial year with
matters requiring attention sdentified and addressed The
Chairman s performance is reviewed by the non executive
drrectors, led by the Semior Independent Director, after
consultation with the executive director The Chairman holds
responsibihity for the appraisal of the performance of the
nan-executive directars tagether with responsibibity to
conduct a performance evaluation of executive directors
and members of the Executive Management Committee

Executive Management Committee

Untll the date of the restructure the Executive Management
Committee was In being to manage and co-ordinate all strategic
and key operational issues of the Former Group It comprised
the Chairman, Finance Director Managing Dector {Mimng) and
Managing Director {Property} with attendance by the Company
Secratary HR Director and Director of Communications

Following the restructure the day to day management of the
Campany 1s carned out by the Chairman, Finance Director and
Company Secretary who meet regularly to despatch busmess
1SSUES

Directors Conflict of Interest Procedures

A director has a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a
situation in which he has or can have a direct or indirect interest
that canflicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of the
Company This duty 1s in additron te the existing duty that a
directar owes to the Company te disclose to the Board any
transaction or arrangement under consideration by the Company
The Company’s Articles of Assaciation allow the directors to
authorise conflicts and potential conflicts The Board has a
pracedure when deciding whether to authonise a conflict or
potential conflict of interest Firstly, only independent directors
{te only those that have no interest i the matter under
consideration) will be able to take the relevant decision
Secondly in taking the decision the directors must actin a
way they consider, 1n good faith will be most hikely to promote

the Company's success In addition, the directors will be
able to impose limits or conditions when giving authonsation
if they think this 15 appropriate

Relations with Shareholders

The Group maintains en gaing dialogue with major shareholders
through regular presentations and meetings i outline the
Group s trading environment and objectives and also offers them
the opportunity to meet non-executive directors The Semor
Independent Director 15 available to all shareholders Private
investors are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting
where they have the opporturuty to guestion the Board

Substantial Shareholdings in the Company
The directors have been notified of the following substantial
sharehaldings as at 13 March 2013

% of

Issued

Number of Share

Company Shares Capsta!
Goodweather Holdings Ltd* 87 234470 2915
Invesco Perpetual 24 861080 831
Pelham Camtal Management 22 376 560 748

* Member of Pesl Holdings

Powers of Directors to Allot Shares

At the 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

22 June 2012 the directors were authonsed to allot new shares
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £997,660 In accordance
with the latest institutignal guidelines published by the
Association of British Insurers a resolution to seek authonty to
allot new shares up to an aggregate nominal value of £1 995 320
will be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting {full details
are available in the 2013 Notice of Annual General Meeting)

Purchase of Own Shares

Atthe 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Company shareholders
gave the Company permission unil the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company te purchase up to
28,929,815 ordenary shares of 1 pence each of the Company

No such purchases were made during the year The directors
will seek renewal of a similar authority at the next Annual
General Meeting (full details are available in the 2013

Nouce of Annual General Meeting)

Internal Control Risk Assessment

Up to the date of the restructuring there was an on-going process
for entifying, evaluating and managng the sigrificant risks of the
Group Following the restructunng the nsks to the Company are
easier to review and this process 15 regularly undertaken by the
management team A strategic risk assessment of the Group s




nisks and effectiveness of internal controls was reviewed on
27 March 2012, 1t was concluded that there were no strategic
risks that had not been considered nor any significant weaknesses
in internal controls that had net been denufied

This assessment supplemented on-going dialogue between the
Board and the directors of both Harworth Estates and Mine
Holdings for morutoring nisks within these nvestments Ourmg
the penod up to the restructure the Board received internal
audt reports and reviews by the Health & Safety Management
depariment These reports wdentified areas of nisk expasure
recommendations made and actions implemented They also
mghhighted new areas of legislation that would impact on the
nisk profile of the Group and provided positive assurance that
pracedures were working and assisting in the attamment

of business objectives

Operational and financial risk management i now containged
within the two investments {Harworth Estates and Mine Holdings)
and s the respansibility of the directors and managers of those
busiresses who are responsible for the day 1o day management

of the business Key risks and uncertainties for the business
were reviewed and agreed by the Board on 29 Apri 2013

The following controls remain relevant

Environmental Management — full detatls of the environmental
policies and practices of the Group are set outn the Corporate
Social Responsibibity section

Financial {wiich assist in the financial reporting and
consolidation of the Group s financial statements)
—these controls are considered under the following headings

«  (ost budgeting
The cost budgets of both Harwarth Estates and Mine
Holdings are now reserved for shareholder approval under
the agreements that have been entered into respectively
with the Pension Teustees and the EBT The annual budget
setting process includes a review of each business unit and
the final budgets for each of these businesses are approved
by the shareholders Performance is reported and monitored
on a monthly basis against budgets within Harworth Estates
and reported to the Company in ine with the Shareholder
Agreement The management of Mine Holdings regularly
reports to the Shareholder Committee of that business
which reviews and adwises but has mited day to day
management authority within the mining business

s Treasury
Following the restructure the treasury actions of the Company
are limited and controlled jointly by the Finance Director
and Chairman who are responsible for placing deposits
for arranging borrowangs and for making payments
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e insurance nsk
The Company holds insurance cover for all employer hability
and public fiability claims whichs currently 1ssued by 1ts
captive insurance company, and which limits the Company’s
exposure to £250 000 per claim Under the restructuring an
optian exists for the captive nsurance company to be
acquired by Mine Holdings It1s proposed that, going
forward the Company will effect policies separately from
the Mine Holdings business for its nsks All claims are
subject to expert assessment and challenge and where
appropnate, independent medical and legal opinion

e (Capital expenditure
Board approval of any major capital projects is required
Smaller capital projects are approved in accordance with
the Company s delegated authornities

Assurance Procedures

Until the date of the restructure, assurance was provided by

an in house teamn of Internal Auditors Assurance was further
provided by in-house Health & Safety Auditors and Environmental
Auditors This resource was supplemented by the HM Inspectorate
of Mines (Heatth & Safety}and other Health & Safety Commission
personnel legal adwisors and professional claims handlers
{Insurance and Claims Managemant} and external environmental
consultants {Environmental Management)

Reports were prepared and summarised at management level
for reporting to the Board as either standing or intermittent
agenda items The Audit Committee reviewed internal audit
reports and corporate governance matters The Group appointed
anew Head of Internal Audit during the year wha untif
restructuning managed all external resources Following
restructuring, this role transferred to Mine Holdings

Going Concern

As set gut more fully in the Directors’ Report and note 1 the
directors have formed the conclusion that the Company and
Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future The financial statements
have, therefore, been prepared on the going concern basis

Annua! General Meeting

The Board encourages shareholders to exercise their nght
to vote at the Annual General Meeting The notice calling the
meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at least
20 working days before the meeting and separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue

Shareholders are encouraged to participate through a question
and answer session and individual directors or where appropriate,
the Chairman of the relevant committee respond to those
questions directly Shareholders have the opportenity to

talk informally to the directors before and after the formal
proceedings
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

*Denotes auditable elements of the Remuneration Report

Context

This report 1s set following the completion of the restructuring
of the Group, of which the principal objective was to provide a
stable platform for the Group s mining and property businesses
This was undertaken with the intention to provide the greatest
value for all stakeholders As reported in the previous Annual
Report, the Remuneration Commettee aimed to incentivise

key executives to meet operational targets and delver the
restructuring plan thereby aligning executive reward 10 the
challenges facing the Group

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with the reguirements
of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 The report also meets the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and has comphed
with the provisions set out in The UK Corporate Governance
Code relating to remuneraticn matters

Remuneration Committee

Responsibibity for reviewing Group remuneration strategy and
policy recommending any ehanges and approving individual
remuneration packages for the Charrman executive director
and any other senior executive rests with the Remuneration
Commttee [the “Committee”) The Committee consists of
independent non-executive Directors and meets on at least
two occasions each year

The members of the Committee throughout the year were
and continue te be

*  Peter Hickson - Commuttee Charrman and

* LisaClement

The Committee may seek any nformation it requires from any
employee or director, and all employges and directors are
required to co-operate with any request made by the Committee
Colin Reed {Group HR director up to the date of the restructuring)
Geotf Masen {Company Secretary) and Richard Cole (Company
Secretary to May 212) provided infarmation to the Committee
duning the year

The Committee also meets without management and exercises
its judgement using publically available information During the
year Mr Reed received information and independent executive
remuneration advice from specialist remuneration consultants
New Bridge Street a trading name of Aon Corporation, who
were apponted by the Committee No director participates in
drscussions relating to their gwnremuneration The Commitiee
haises with the Audit Committee where appropriate this
includes confirmation of the Group’s financial performance

to assist in determwning whether performance targets and
measures have been achieved and to ensure that the structure

for the incentive arrangements throughout the Group are
appropriate from a nisk perspective It also haised with the
Safety Committee of the Group in respect of the safety element
of the annual bonus scheme

The Committee has terms of reference, approved by the Board
which are available from the Company Secretary and via the
Group s website

Remuneration Policy

The policy for the peried under review as well as current period
far the remuneration and incentivisation of executive directors
and other senior executives 1s as follows

* Toensure that ndwvidual rewards and incentives are
ahgned with the performance of the Company and
nterests of shareholders,

* Toensure that performance-related elements of remuneration
constitute an appropriate proportion of an executeve’s
remuneration package and

+ Tomantain a competitive remuneration package which
enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate
high calibre executives

The Committee reviews executive remuneration and implements
ncentive arrangements to support the objective of rewarding
those indwiduals who deliver shareholder value In developing
these arrangements the Commitiee and its advisers consider
current best and market practice The Committee reviewed
remuneration arrangements after the restructuring was finalised
to ensure that they remained appropniate for the Company and
current smaller Group This was particularly relevant with the
transfer of employment of both Owen Mrchaelson and Garsth
Williams together with therr relevant management teams
outstde of the Group as part of the restructuring Potential

major changes going forward witl continue to be discussed

with major shareholders prior to adoption

Executive director remuneration {excluding the Chairman}
comprises a base salary, an annual performance bonus,
participation in a long term ingentive plan or arrangement, a
car or car allowance plus fuel card, pension contributions to a
defined contribution pension scheme or a pension allowance,
life assurance and health insurance Bonus payments and
benefits in kind are not pensionable An appropniate balance
15 maintained between fixed remuneration and performance-
related remuneration

Jonson Cox, Chairman received, n place of the existing annual
bonus and long-term incentive arrangements, hespoke share
based awards, which were determined on appointment and
awarded 1n February 2011 ta reflect the nature of the role and
the strategic and operational challenges presented by the
Company over the three years following his appomntment

The follewang paragraphs explain the operation of the man
constituents of the remuneration policy




Base Salaries

Executive directors’ salaries are normally reviewed by the
Remuneration Commitiee an an annwal basis In determining
salary levels for executives the Commuttee has, principally had
regard to external comparators for roles of equivalent size and
complexity and for Mr Brocksom specifically, the number of years
without an increase Following a review of executve salary levels
Messrs Brocksom Williams and Michaelson s base salaries were
increased to £242 888 £240 350 and £236 900 respectively with
effect from 1 January 2012 Following the restructuring and the
departure of all three executives from the Board Mr Hague was
appainted as Finance Director on a part ime basis shanng his
duties with that of Finance Director for Harworth Estates His
remuneration reflects the changed nature of the role

Annual Bonus for Executive Directors

Wth the exception of the Chairman, the Executive Directors
participated in an annual bonus arrangement The Commitiee
sets both the performance measures and targets based on the
Group s business prionties These targets ensure that incentives
are payable only for Group and indwidual performance

Howaver in light of the planned restructuning the Committee
agreed one off bonus arrangements for 2012 which replaced
the normal potential awards only in respect of Messrs Wilhams
Michaelson and Brocksom

Messrs Wilhiams and Michaelson had the opportunity to receve
an enhanced bonus of up to 150% of base salary in the event

of the restructurning plan announced on 14 March 2012 being
successfully implemented The first half of this bonus {of up to
75% of salary} would be payable at the end of 2012 for actvevement
of specific targets to improve the operational and financial
perfermance of the business tegether with achieving key
persanal targets The second half of the bonus {of up to 75%

of salary} was to be paid on successful implementation of the
restructure plan during 2012 but will be deferred until the end
of 2013 and was conditiona! upon the continued emplayment

of Messrs Williams and Michaelson

As part of the restructunng process Messrs Wilhams and
Michaelsan transferred respectively to Mine Holdings and
Harworth Estates However 1t was agreed and announced at
the time of the completion of the restructunng that Mr Wilhams
would leave the Mine Holdings business in early 2013 The
Committee has determined that although Mr Williams broadly
achieved the safety performance required the operational
and financial performance of the mines put the mines in such
difficulties that they wall not recommend to the directors of
Mine Holdings that the bonus 1s payable (2011 £106,375)
Mr Willlams also benefitted in 2011 from an award of 500,000
shares which wiil vest dunng 2013 and whuch he will be required
to hold for a mmmum of 12 months
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The Committee reviewed Mr Michaelson s perfarmance in the
year and will recommend to Harworih Estates that a bonus
of £152 500(2011 £114,900)1s payable in respect of the
operational and financial performance in the year

in anticipation that Mr Brocksom would leave the business on
completion of the restructuning, his enhanced bonus for 2012
was agreed at a lower level of 100% of salary, with no deferred
bonus following the successful implementation of the
restructuring plan He will recerve this enhanced bonus of
100% of his base salary of £242 888 {2011 £114 404} due
course Inreviewing his performance to the date of termination
1t was agreed that this will be payable under tus settlement
with the Company Oawd Brocksom also benefitted from a
one-off award of shares 10 a maximum of 250 000 shares
hased upon the achievement of personal performance targets
for the 2012 financial year and which he will be required

to ho!d for a minimum of 12 months

Chairman

Mr Cox, Chairman was recruited on a base salary of £350 000
per annum on the basis he provided three days per week In
the hght of the time Mr Cox was required to provide in 2012

n relation te the restructuring and on gong business, the
Commuittee agreed to supplement Mr Cox’s base salary by
£120,000 for 2012 only However this was not paid untd the
sutficient short term recovery of the mining business and the
proposals for December 2012 restructuning were fully developed
and tabled with key stakehalders Going forward, Mr Cox's ime
commitment has been reduced by agreement to 2 days per week
and his fee reduced broadly commensurately

In connection wath the Chairman’s appointment and instead of
his participation in the annual bonys and long-term incentive
plan, share based awards were designed to reflect the specific
challenges, of the role

0n 4 February 2011 and in connection with fus appomntment,
Mr Cox was granted the following awards pursuant to the
authanty comtained in Listing Rule 9 4 2R(2)

* Along Term Award to acquire up to 2,800,000 ordinary
1 pence shares which will normatly vest on 15 November 2013
{bemng the third anniversary of Mr Cox s apposntment) subject
to continued employment and satisfaction of performance
critena related to the turnaround and recovery of the Company

An Award over 1520 000 shares which was to normally
vest on an annual basis in three equal tranches subject to
Mr Cox s continued employment and progress agarnst the
achievement of strategic key performance indicators over
the three year penod These required the stabilisation of the
mining buseness delivery of short medwim and long-term
value in the property business creation of appropnate
levels of financial headroom, achievement of financial
stabihty with a de leveraged balance sheet and
development of a long-term strategy
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» Following the decision in March 2012 10 restructure the business of the Former Group 1t was recogmsed that (i) the restructured
Group would no longer control the financial and operational aspacts of either Mine Heldings or Harworth Estates {n) Mr Cox
in us role as Chairman of the Company would have significantly reduced ability to affect the outcome or the results of these
businesses and (i} the achievement of a solvent restructure of the Group represented a formidable challenge the Committee agreed
that the two awards would vest on successful completion of the restructuring The Commuttee has agreed that this was achieved
in December 2012

The awards may be satisfied with either existing shares {other than treasury shares) or following shareholder approval at the
2012 Annual Genera! Meeting through new issue, rather than existing, shares Mr Cox has indieated his intention to hold the
shares {net of those sold to pay tax) for at least a 12 month perad from completion of restructuring

Long Term Incentive Plan {(“2010 LTIP")

Under the 2010 LTIP an annual award of up to 100% of base salary 1s conditionally allocated to each executive director (excluding
the Chairman) However the Remuneratien Committee wrote to each of the dwectors in June 2012 confirming that due to business
difficuluas at the time and the proposed restructuring it did not consider 1t was appropriate to award further shares under the 2010
LTIP at this time

The shares that have already been awarded are released to the executive three years from the date of grant of award contmngent
upon predetermined performance targets being met The parformance conditians for awards in 2011 were based on a comparison
of the Company s Total Shareholder Return {"TSR"} against the constitvents of the FTSE all share index excluding financial and
Investrment comparnues over a three year period commencing at the beginning of the 2011 financial year Twenty five per cent of the
award will vestif TSR 1s ranked at the median of the comparator group nsing on a straight=line basis to full vesting 1f the Company’s
TSR s ranked at or above the upper quartile In addition the Company s absolute TSR has to be positive over the three year performance
peniod and the Committee must be satisfied that there has been an underlying improvement in the Company s financial parformance

Awards may be satrsfied with newly 1ssued shares or existing shares

In hght of the restructure of the Group, 1t 1s not expected that any further awards will be granted under the 2010 LTIP and that a new
long term incentive plan for executives will be put mto place No awards were made 1n 2012

Share Usage

The 2010 LTIP cantains limits which control the 1ssuance of new shares to satisfy share awards This limit restricts the issue of new
shares to an amount equivalent to no more than 5% of 1ssued shara capital over any ten year penod As at 29 December 2012 the
level of 1ssuance of new shares was at 0 4% of the curent issued share capital

Shareholding Guidelne

An executive shareholding guideline applies for executive directors and other selected senior executives To the extent awards vest
under the 2010 LTIP the Directors will be required 1o retain no less than 50% of the net of tax valug of the shares until a holding
equivalent to 100% of salary 1s attaned {50% of salary for other senior executives) This same guideline apphes to the Chairman
and other directors in respect of the full net of tax value of any sharas that vest under bespoke arrangements
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The above graph displays the values by the end of 2012 of £100 invested in the Company on 31 December 2007 compared with the
value of £100 invested 1n the FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding nvestment trusts) The other pants are the values at intervening
financial year ends

Other Terms and Conditions of Service

The executive directors service contracts, including arrangements for early termination are considered carefully by the Committee
and are designed to recrurt retain and motivate executive directors of the quality required to manage the Group The Commttee
considers that a notice peniad of no more than cne year 1s appropriate Itis the Company s policy not to enter into service contracts
that provide written notice of more than one year

In respect of Jonson Cox, employment will contmue until terminated by the Company giving not less than twelve months written
notice, ar by Mr Cox giving the Company not less than six months written notice JeremyHague s contract shall continue until either
he or the Company terminate it by not less than 6 months notice i writing

When calculating termination payments, the Committee takes into account a variety of factors including individual and Group
performance the obligation of the executive director to mitigate his own loss {for example by gaining new employment} and the
best nterests of the Group Should the Company terminate the contract of an executive drector compensation for loss of office 15
limited to the amounts payable under these notice periods There are no spectal provisions for payments on a change of control

Non-Executive Directors

The Board aims to recruit non-executive directors of a lugh calibre wath broad commercial and other relevant expenence
non-executive directors are appointed far an inihial three year perigd The terms of thewr engagement are set out m a letier of
appointment The initial appeintment and any subsequent re-appointment 1s subject to election or re-election by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting The letters of appamntment contan three months notice peniods, with the exception of Peter Hickson,
Senior Independent Director, whose appontment 1s subject to six months’ notice
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Compensation for foss of office 15 hrited to the amounts payable under these notice penods The Board considers these notice
perrods appropriate given the skills and expertise of the Directors

To reflect the role fulfilled by Peter Hickson as Senior Independent Non-Executive Directar in a business where the Chairman has had
a part-exgcutive role he s paid a fee of £65 000 per annum  this includes his responsibibties as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee Other non-executive directors are paid a basic fee of £40 000 per annum with an additional fee of £6 000 per annum
payable for chairing a committee

Non executive directors are not eligrble to participate n any of the Company s shara schemes incentive schemes or pension
schemes

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointmant

Unexpired
term
{as at
Contract December Notice
date M2) period
Charman
Jonson Cox 151110 Rolling 1 year 1 year
Executive Directors
Jeremy Hague 020113 N/A 6 months
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Hickson 306141 1 year f months 6 months
Lisa Clement 29111 1 year i1 months 3 months
Steven Underwood 27710 7 months 3 months

There are no habilities in respect of directors’ service contracts that require disclosure Copies of directors service contracts and
agreements are available to shareholders for inspection at the Company s reqistered office by application to the Company Secretary

Directors’ Emoluments for the Year Ended December 2012*

Compens-
Annual Benefits ation Total Total
Salary/fees’ Allowances bonus m lund? payment m2 201
£000 £000 £000 £0060 £000 £000 £00D
Chairman
Jonsan Cox? B11 20 - 8 - 639 493
Executive Directors
David Brocksom? 316 7 243 3 246 815 437
Owen Michaelson?
{Resigned 0712 12}* 282 g 163 3 - 447 457
Gareth Williams?
[Ras.gned 0712 12)% 286 9 - 4 - 29 420
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Hickson 65 - - - - 65 33
Lisa Clement 46 - - - 4% 2
Keith Hellar*
{Resignad 0712125 42 - - - - 2 2
Steven Underwood® 40 - - - - 40 13

! Jonson Cox raceives a cas allowance of £20 000 pes annum which 15 weluded i allowances above

? (wen Michaelson and Gareth Williams each recerved a car altowance of £10 000 per annum which 15 included in allowances above Dawid Brocksom recerved
a reduced car allowance of £6 666 in the year

? Benefits w kind compnise car benefits hie e and health e

* Fees in respect of the services prowded by Keuth Heiler are paid to $/Dolo Inc

* Faes payabla for the services provided by Steven Underwocd are paid to Pael Management Limited

¥ Remuneration 10 Owen Michaelson Gareth Williams and Kerth Heller are shown to the date of resignation from the Board

7 The bonus for Owen Michaelson 1s payable by Harworth Estates

¢ Salary and fees includes the amounts paid in respect of pension contnbutions The comparatives for 2611 have been emended to Include the relevant prior year figure




COALFIELD RESOURCES PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012 31

Pension Contributions®

The Chairman and executive directors are entitled to recerve an annual pension contribution at the rate of 30% of base salary
During the year Owen Michaetson was a member of the UK Coal money purchase penstonscheme The money purchase scheme
does not provide additional post-retirement benefits {including contingent death benefits} Penston contributions on behalf of

executive directors were as follows

Pension Pensions
contributions contributions
2mz2 2019
£000 £000
Jonson Cox' 141 14
David Brocksom? n 70
Owen Michaelson® 65 69
Gareth Williams'* 66 69
5 322
1 This was paid as an allowance
2 Of thos £73 000 was paid as an allowance to Mr Brocksom {2011 £3 000)
? Contrbutions for Messrs Michaelson and Williams are shown to the date of theur departure from the Board
Long Term Incentive Plan*
Interest Interest
Interest awarded lapsed Interest
st Dec during duning atDec
aam the year the year m2
End of
No of No of No of No of Vestuing performance
shares shares shares shares date penod
David Brocksom
Executive LTIP 2010? 586 687 - - 586 687 260813 Dec2012
Executive LTIP 2011'2 680,217 - - 680 217 200414 Dec 2013
Total 1,266,904 - - 1266504
Owan Michaelson
Executve LTIP 2010¢ 575000 - - 575,000 260813 Dec 2012
Executve LTIP 20112 666 665 - - 666 665 200414 Oec 2013
Total 1,241,665 - - 1,241,665
Gareth Williams
Executive LTIP 20102 575000 - - 575000 26 0813 Dec 2012
Executive LTIP 20011'2 666 665 - - 666 665 200414 Dec 2013
Total 1.241,665 - - 1,241,665

1 The share ptca at the data of the awards for Messrs Bracksom Michaelson and Williams on 20 April 2011 was 34 5 pance

The performance conditions for 2040 and 2011 awards require relative TSA performance against the FTSE all shara index excluding financial and investment

tormpanies over a three year penad commencing at the beginning of the 2010 and 2011 financial years respectvely Twenty five per cent of the award will vestif
T5A 15 ranked at the median of the comparaor group nsing on a straight—ine basis to full vesting if the Company’s TSR 15 ranked at or above the upper quartile
tn addion the Company s absolute TSR has ta ba positive over the three year performanes penied and the Committee must be satsfied that there has been an

undertying improvement in the Company s financial performance

3 MrHague on appeintment at 1 January 2013 holds LTIPs granted n 2010 and 2011 of 47 124 and 95 613 shares respactivaly
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Jonson Cox — Share Awards*

Interest
awarded Amended
Interest at durning Interest at vestng
Dac 2011 the year Dec 2012 date?
Annual Award'? 1520 000 - 1,520,000 10 Dec 2012
Long Term Award'? 2 B00 000 - 2,800,000 10 Dec 2012

.

" The share price at the date of the awards on 4 February 2011 was 45 5 penca

* The vesting date was varied from 1511 2013 on announcement of the intention to seek a sestructuning n March 2012 with an agraement for a 12 month
holding penod for the full nat of tax vatue of the shares

3 The performance conditions set out above were vaned to provide $or vesting on comptetion of tha restructuring The Committee confirmed the vesting
In Apnl 2013 the shares have not been allatted at the date of the report

Compensation payments
Burmng the year Owen Michaelson Gareth Williams and David Bracksom stood down from the Board Each received continuing
benefits or compensation following their resignation

Owen Michaelson stood down from the Board at the commencement of the restructuring process an 7 December As part of the
restructure his employment transferred to Harworth Estates where ke was appointed as Chief Executive on unchanged terms and
conditions As part of these continued benefits he will receive the bonus payment which accrued during his period as a director
of the Company which will be patd by Harworth Estates

Gareth Williams also stood down from the Board at the commencement of the restructuring pracess on 7 December As part of

the restructure, he took up the role of misng director with Mine Holdings on unchanged terms and conditions At the time of the
restructuring 1t was announced that Kevin McCullough would join the miung company as Chief Executive of Mine Holdings i early
2013 and that Mr Williams would exit the business

Mr Williams' employment with Mine Holdings was terminated under a compromise agreement dated 20 February 2013 under which
Mine Holdings agreed to make a payment to Mr Wilhams in the sum of £317 656 to be made in twelve equal monthly instalments
The payment incfuded payment in lieu of contractual benefits and employer pension contribution but excluded private medical
msurance hfe insurance and bonus Mine Holdings agreed to continue to provide private medical and hfe msurance for a twelve
menth period 1t was further agreed that Mr Williams contractual bonus of up to 150% of us basic salary payable in two equal
instalments on completion of the restructuring would be paid when the Remuneration Committee advised the Board of Mine
Heldings of its decision regarding the performance of the executive in the period to restructure In Apnil 2013 the Committee
conciuded that although the safety performance n the peried had been satisfactory, the operational and financial perfermance of
the mining bustness had been such that no benus would be paid MrWiliams compromise agreement included a requirement
to mitigate his loss threugh an obligation to seek alternative employment and to reduce outstanding monthly payments by 50%
at the tme of taking a new job if with a UK based company

Dawid Brocksom stood down from the Board on 31 December 2012 having led the restructuning jontly with the Chairman His
empleyment with the Company was terminated under a compromise agreement dated 11 January 2013 under which he received a
mitigated sum of 75% of hus contractual notice and benefits equivalent to £246 192 In addition having 1o the satisfaction of the
Remuneration Committee completed the restructuring Mr Brocksom became entitled to hus bonus for 2012 of 100% of base salary
and the vesting of an earhier retention award of 250 000 shares Following the completion of the restructuring and to assist the
handover of respensibilities, Mr Brocksom has continued to prowide part-time assistance to the Company for the period up to

30 Apnl 2013 under a consultancy agreement through a third party
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The directors beneficial interests in ordinary shares of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries at the end of the financial year were as set
out below None of the directors had an interest in shares of the Company s subsidianies during the year

Beneficial

mnterest in
ordinary Bensficial
shares at Interast in
Dec 2012 crdinary
or date of shares at
termunation Dec 2011

No of shares No of shares

Jonson Cox

Dawid Brocksom
Petar Hickson

Lisa Clament

Keith Heller
Steven Underwood

196,945 196 945
4709 47090
525,000 525000
31,369 31369

There have been no changes in Directors’ interests in shares between the end of the year and 30 April 2013

The market value of the Company's shares during the year ranged from 3 75 pence to 34 0 pence The market value on 31 December 2012

was 6 75 pence

External Appointments

The Remuneration Committee recognises the importance of allowing executive directors to take non-executive director roles
elsewhere Mr Cox’s business interests include a non-executive directorship of Wincanton PLC for which he received {and retaimed)
fees of £45 000 in 2012 Mr Michaglson held 2 non-executive directorship within the Pee! Group and the Peel Group has confirmed
that he receved no remuneration nar participates in any form of incentive arrangement which might benefit him currently or at any

fuiure time frem his involvement with the Peel Group

This report has been approved by the Board for submission to shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting and signed

on behalf of the Board by Peter Hickson
On behalf of the Board

Peter Hickson
Chairman
Remuneration Committee

30 Apnl 2013

A
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Coalfield Resources plc
{farmerly UK Coal PLC)

We have audnted the financial statements of Cozlfield
Resources plc {formerly UK Coal PLC) for the year ended

29 December 2012 which comprise of the Censolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consohdated and Company Statements of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity, the Group and Company Balance Sheets
the Group and Company Statements of Cash Flows and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in thewr preparation s apphcable law and International
Fimancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financiat
statements as applied in accordance with the provisions

of the Compames Act 2006

flespective Responaibilities of Directors and Auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities
Statement the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinton on the financial statements in accordance
with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Ths report including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company s members as a hody in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving these opinions accept or assume
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 15 shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in thae financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable asgurance that the financial statements are free '
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Company s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of sigrificant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentatian of the financial statements In addition, we read
all the financral and non-financial nfermation in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2012 1o ientify matenial inconsistencies
with the audrted financial siatements If we become aware

of any apparent matenial misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the imphcations for our report

Opinton on Financial Statemeats
in our opinion

* the financial statements give a true and farr view of the
state of the Group s and of the Parent Company s affairs
as at 29 December 2012 and of the Group s loss and of the
Group's and Parent Company’s cash flows for the year then
ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adcpted by the European Union,

+ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in agcordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern

In forming our opinion on the financyal statements, which s not
modified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures
given n note 1 to the financial statements concerning the
ability of the Group and Parent Company to continue as a geing
concern The Group has entered into negotiations to secure
funding ta meet both on-going running costs and residual
hiabilities that it may have to settle and would look to repay
the loan and raise sufficient funds to cover any habilities not yet
settled from the proceeds of an equity raising These matters
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast significant doubt over the ability of the Group and the
Parent Company to centinue as a going concern The finangial
statements do nat include the adustments that would result

if the Group or the Parent Company were unable 1o continue

as a gotng congern

Opinton on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our epinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 and

* the information given in the Directors Report for the
financial year for which the financral statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements




Matters on which we are Required to Report by Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fallowing

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if 10 our opinton

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us or

* the Parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not
In agreement with the accounting records and returns or

* certain disclosures of directors remuneration spectfied
by law are not made, or

» wehave not recewved all the information and explanations
we require for pur audit or

* acorporate governance statement has not bean prepared
by the Parent Company

Matter on which we have Agreed to feport by Exception
The Company voluntarity apphes the UK Corporate Governance
Code and therefore prepares a Corporate Governance Statement
in accordance with the Disclosure Rules & Transparency Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authonity The directors have requested
that we review the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement
retating to the Company s comphance with the nine provisions of
the UK Cerporate Governance Code specified for auditor review
by the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty as If the
Company were a premium listed company We have nothing to
report in respect of this review

1/ puunle-

Richard Bunter {Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Leeds
30 Aprd 2013

Notes

The maintenance and integnity of the Coalfield Resources ple
website 15 the respensibility of the directors, the work carried
out by the auditors does not nvolve consideration of these
matters and accordingly the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
staiements since they were imhially presented on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
wn other junsdictions
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Consolidated Income Statement
far the year ended 29 December 2012

Restated
Yoar ended Year ended
24 Dacember 31 December
2012 anom
Continuing operations Note £000 £000
Revenue 8 -
Cost of sales - ~
Gross profit 8 _
Other operating income and expenses 4 108 {1585)
Operating profit/{loss} k] 116 {1,585}
Finance costs 6 {465) {361}
Loss before tax (349) {1946}
Tax credit/{charge} 8 10 {700}
Lass for the year from continuing operations {339} (2,646)
Discontinued operations
(Loss}/profit for the year from discontinued operations {attributable to the owners of the parent} 2 {5,986} 57887
{Loss)/profitfor the financial year {6,325) 55 241
(Loss}/profit attributable to
— owners of the parent {6.325) 55241
{Loss)}/earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the parent during the year pence pence
Basic and diluted 2arnings per share
From continuing operations 1 {01) [09)
From discontinued operations 11 {20) 194
{Loss)/profit for the year 11 {21) 185

Comparatives have heen restated for the reasens shown in note 1 to the financial statements

‘-‘-t\](\ \
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 29 December 2012

Restated
Yearended Yearended
29 December 31 December
2012 201
Note E000 £000
Loss for the financial year from contimuing operations {339} {2 646)
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal {loss)/gamn on Blenkinsopyp pension scheme 25 {290} 132
Total other comprehansive {loss)/income (continuing operations) {290) 132
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year {continuing operations) (629) (2,544)
{Logs}/profit for the year from discontinued operations {5,986} 57,887
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal {loss)/gain on industry wide pension schemes 2% {79.175} 10,633
Actuanal loss on concessionary fuet reserve 25 {5,803} (7 463)
Amortisation of interest rate swaps recycled from reserves 23 - 372
Mavement on deferred tax asset relating te retrement benefit obhgations 8 (8.125) -
Movement on deferred tax asset relating to cash flow hedges 8 - (10}
Revaluation of property transferred from operating to investment properties 13 100 4,519
Tota! other comprehansive {loss)/income (discontinued operations) {93,003) 7851
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the financial year {discontinued operations) {98,989) 65,828
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the financial year {99,518) 63 324
Attributable to
Owners of the Parent (99,618} 63,324

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

Comparatives have been restated for the reasons shown in nate 1 to the financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Share
Ordinary premium Dther Retamned Total
shares account reserves earnings equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at January 2011 2,993 30.756 229128 {181.484) 81,393
Profit for the financial year to December 2011 - - - 55,241 85,241
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on post retrement benefits 25 - - - 3,302 3302
Farr value profit on revaluation of investment properties 13 - - 3325 {3325} -
Property revaluation on transfer to iInvestment properties 13 - - 4519 - 4519
Transfer of realised gain on disposed properties 28 - - (44 837} 44 697 -
Hedging reserve —amortised in pentod 28 - - n - n
Movement on deferred tax asset in relation to cash flow hedges 8 - - {110) - (10}
Total comprehensive profit for the penod ended December 2011 - - {36 991} 99,915 63324
Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan habilities 26 - - - 1286 1,286
- - — 1,286 1286
Balance at December 2011 2,993 30,756 192,537 {80,283} 146,003
Loss for the financial year to December 2012 - - - {6,325) {6323)
Other comprehensiva income
Actuarial loss on post retirement benefits 25 - - - {85 268) {85 268)
Fair value profit an revaluation of investment properties 13 - - 16 188 {16 188) -
Property revaluation on transfer to investment properties 13 - - 100 - 100
Movement on deferred tax asset in relation to retirement
benefit obligations B - - - {B175) {8125)
Transfer of reahsed gain on disposed properties 28 - - (208,568) 208 568 -
Total comprehensive loss for the period ended December 2012 - - (192 280} 92,662 {99,618)
Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan habilities 26 - - - 1544 1,544
- - - 1,544 1544
Balance at December 2012 2,993 30,756 251 13,923 47,929
» ’ w
Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Share
Ordmary premium Other Retained Total
shares account reserves earnings sty
Company Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at January 2011 2,993 30,756 257 316.056 350,062
Loss for the firancral year - - - (3,829) {3 829}
Other comptrehensive income
Actuanial gain on post retirement benefits 5 - - - 132 132
Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan liabilities 26 - - - 1286 1,286
Balance at January 2012 2,993 30,756 257 313,645 341,651
Loss for the financial year - - - (302 437) {302,437
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal loss on post retirement benefits 25 - - - {290) {290}
Transactions with owners
Accrual for long term incentive plan iabilities 26 - - - 1544 1544
Balance at December 2012 2,993 30,756 257 12,462 45,568
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Balance Sheets
at 29 December 2012
Group Group Company Company
Asat Asat As at As at
29 December 31 December 29 December 31 Qecember
2012 20 2012 am
Note E00D £000 £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Operating property plant and equipment 12 - 223 495 - -
Surface ming development and restoration assets 12 - 25,745 - -
- 249,240 - -
Investment properties 13 - 250,640 - -
Investment in subsidianies 14 - - 3,314 300,310
Investment in associates 14 50,288 - 50,288 -
Investment in joint ventures 14 - 2979 - -
Deferred tax asset 8 - 31509 - -
Qther recevables 15 - 3,357 - -
50,288 537725 53,662 300 310
Current assets
Inventories 18 - 34,754 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 3,903 26 302 3,903 216,307
Cash and cash equivalents 19 5 25,278 51 419
Assets classified as held for sale 18 21,303 16 600 - -
25,257 102,934 3,954 216,726
Total assets 75,545 540,659 57,616 517,036
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Borrawings —bank loans, overdrafts and finance leases 20 - (37,541 - -
—generator loans and prepayments pli] - {41,723 - -
Dervatve financial instruments 2 - (546) - -
Trade and other payables 21 {9.697) (113,759) (9.882) {168,793}
Prowisions 22 {546) 113 480) {546} -
Liabiities classified as held for resale 18 {16,653) - - -
{26,896) {207,049 {10,428} {168,793)
Net current (habilities)/assets {1,639) 1104 115) (6.474) 47,933
Non-current habilities
Borrowings — bank loans, overdrafts and finance leases b2 - 113,349) - -
—ganerator loans and prepayments 20 - 142 386} - -
Denvative financial instruments 23 - (4 470) - -
Trade and other payables 2 - {736} - -
Defarred tax habilities g - (1171} - -
Provisions 22 - {75 290) - -
Reurement benefit obhigatons 25 (720) {144,705) {720) {582)
{720} {287,607) {720} {592}
Total hiabilities {21,616} {494 B56) {11.148) {169.385)
Net essets 47,929 146,003 46,368 347,651
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital end reserves
Called up share capital 26 2,99 2993 2,933 2,993
Share premium 30,756 30 756 30,756 30756
Revaluation reserve 28 - 113,097 - -
Capital redemption reserve 28 257 257 257 257
Farr value reserve 28 - 64,993 - -
Amounts recognised in reserves relating to non-current assets held for sala 18 - 14180 - -
Retained earnings/{loss) 27 13,923 {80,283) 12,462 313645
Total shareholders’ equity 41,929 146,003 46,468 347851

The finangal statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

Company Registered Number 2649340

J Hague
Finance Drrector 1
S
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 29 December 2012

Group Group Company Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
2% December 31 December 29 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note E£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss}/profit for the financial year (6,325) 55 241 (302,438) {3829}
Depreciatton/impairment of property plant and equipment 12 119,556 40,499 - -
Amortisation of surface mine development and restoration assets 12 15,818 17121 - -
Net fair value increase in investment properties 13 (16,188} (3,325) - -
Net interest payable/{recewvable) and unwinding of discount on provistons 17,165 22 856 465 {156)
Net charge for share-based remuneration 1544 1 286 1,544 1,286
Share of post-tax loss from joint ventures 900 LK) - -
Dwvidend income from subsidiary undertakings - - (90,814} -
(Lass)/prafit an disposal of businesses {143,095) - 3,920 -
Losses arising on Restructuring - - 78,636 -
Loss/{profitjon disposal of investment properties 428 {2 685) - -
Impairment of investment - - 8,757 -
Impairment of investment n subsidiary undertaking - ~ 296,936 -
Profit on disposal of operating property, plant and equipment {2,051} {B57) - -
Decrease in capitalised surface mune restoration assets - {3684} - -
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 19,522 (19,635) 546 -
Pension contnibutions below/{in excess) of charge 2,819 {23,697} {162) {128)
Tax charge B 22,28t 2742 - 701
(tperating cash inflows/|outfiows) before movements 1n working capital 32,373 86,593 {2,610) [2,128)
Decrease in inventories 3,630 15580 - -
{Increase)/decrease n recevables {10,472) 2094 {14.619) {4 998)
Decrease/{increase) in payables 24178 {3,197} 16,826 7159
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 49,710 101 070 {203) 35
Loan arrangement fees paid {2,019) (744} - -
Interest pard (11,950} 120,678} {465) -
Cash generated from/{used in} operating activities 35,741 79648 (868) 35
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recerved 369 258 - -
Net receipt from insurance and subsidence secunity funds 23,589 885 - -
Dividends recewved from subsidiary undertakings - - 1,102 -
Proceeds on disposal of businesses 20,000 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents transferred on disposal of business {19,898} - - -
Cash and cash equivalents transferred to assets classified as held for resale (14,973} - - -
Fees payable on restructure of busingss (15,215} - - -
Proceeds on disposal of mvestment properties 21,496 64,342 - -
Proceeds on disposal of operating property plant and equipment 3,498 1349 - -
Acgquisition of investment - - (7.263) -
Loan made 1o subsidiary undertakings - - (3,339} -
Development costs of investment properties {5,263} 14 774) - -
Pre-coaling expenditure for surface mines and deferred siripping costs (22,961} 13,507) - -
Purchase of aperating property, plant and equipment (19,816} [31.815) - -
Cash (used in}/generated from investing activities 128,174) 26,736 500 -
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from/{repayment of) bark loans 28,541 (84 282) - -
Net repayment of generator loans and prepayments 133,508} 117,078) - -
Repayments of obligations under hire purchase and finance leases {3,238} {3,762} - -
Cash used in financing activities (8,205) 1105,122) - -
{Decrease}/increase in cash {1,638} 1 262 {368) 35
At January
Cash 1,689 427 119 3s4
Cash equivalents 23,589 24,474 - -

25,278 24 901 419 384
Decrease in cash equivalents {net receipt from insurance and subsidence security funds) {23,589) {885} - -
{Decrease}/increase in cash {1.638) 1,262 {368) 35

5 25,278 51 419

At December
Cash 51 1,683 51 419
Cash equivalents - 23.589 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 51 25,278 51 419
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 29 December 2012

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting pokicies adopted In the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently
appled to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with European Umion {"EU”) Endorsed Intesnational Finangial Reporting Standards
{"IFRSs") IFRIC interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and financial assets and financial liabilities
{including derivative Instrumenis} at fair value through profit or loss

Trading Financial Statements within the Group are made up 1o the last Saturday in December each year For 2012 trading 15 shown for the year ended on 29 December 2012
(2011 year ended 31 December 2011}

Where a major line of business has been disposed of or has been classified as held-for-sale, the business activity has been treated as a discontinued operation Further
1o the sale of the Group's power generation business in Octaber 2012 and the Group restructure that occurred in December 20i2, the Group s mining, property, power
generat:on and insurance businesses have been treated as discontinued operations The post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations for both the current and
proceeding period together with the post-tax gam or loss on disposal of discontinued operations, are presented as a stngle line on the Consolidated Income
Statement Comparatives have been restated to show as discontinued operations those operations which were classified as discontinued in the current period

Restatement of Comparatives

As noted above, comparatves have been restated in accordance with IFRS 5, "Non-current assets held for resale and discontinued operations” to show as
discontinued operations those operations which were classified as discontinued in the current penod The financial statements and notes impacted are

+ Consolidated Income Statement

+ Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

¢ Noted Operating profit /{loss) before tax

* Noie 4 Other operating income and expenses

» Note 5 Employee informatian

* Note6 Financecosts

* Noted Tax

General Information
The Company 1s a public hmited company which 15 histed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and domiciled inthe UK The address of its registered
office 1s Coalfield Resources plc Harworth Park Blyth Road, Harworth, Doncaster, South Yorkshire, DN11 808

Going Concern

These financtal statements are prepared on the basis that the Group 1s a going concern In forming 1ts opinion as te going concern the Board prepares cash flow
forecasts based upon its assumptions as 1o incomne streams and costs required to fulfil its objectives Consideration ts also given to known kabilities as outhned
below, which may become payable by the Group under certain circumstances The resulting cash fows are then compared to avallable funding, both committed

funding and funding which the Board reasgnably expects to be avadable to the Group in a timeframe such that 1t meets any shortfall in the expected cash flows

The key facters that have been considered in this regard relate to both on-going ruaning costs of the Group and residual habities that the Group may have to settle

¢ Income is predominately in respect of management services supphed to the Mining Group and Harworth Estates This service income 15 covered by coniractual
agreements Costs are mainly in relation to management and those costs associated with the admimistration of the Group including maintaining its stock
exchange hsting Should the Mining Group fail to pay for these management services the Group could have a deficit against its running costs of around £300 000
per annum,

* The Company remains guarantor to certain lease abligations of the Mining Group The assets concerned are currently i use by UKCOL s their deep mine
operatigns The Board expects that should these guarantees be called the hability would be £0 5m, and

* The Group engaged a number of advisors to assist in the Restructuring process The Group receved an mdemmity from UKCOL for payment of these fees and
gther liabilities including the £200 000 annual Blenkinsopp pension schema contnbution Should UKCOL not honour this indemnity then the Group would have
to settle these liabihties out of its own resources The expected balance still to be settled 15 £3,800,000 for costs associated with the Restructurning process
and the on-going annual pension scheme contnbution
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 December 2012 continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Going Concern continued

Fallowing the Daw Mull fire in February 2013 and the resultant hiabilities this created dor the Miming Group there 1s an increased risk that they wall be unable to honour
the indemnities given to the Group in the immediate future As such the Group has entered inta negotiations to secure a ane-year hank facility that would enable it

to meet these habilities should they fall dve The Group has recewved a credit approved Heads of Terms for a surtable facility and based an this the Board believes
an apprapriate facility will be entered nto The Group would look to repay the loan and raise sufficient funds to cover any of these habifities not yet settled from the
praceeds of an equity raising during 2013 The Board has recerved an informal commitment to underwrite an equity raising which provides comfart that the facility
can be repaid

The Board notes that the matiers set out above indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt aver the Group s ability to continue
as a gomg concern If current or expected funding and facilities are nat recewved as envisaged Nevertheless, the Board confirms ts belief that it 1s appropriate to
use the going cancern basis of preparatian for thess financial statements These financtal statemants do not include the adjustments that would result i the Group
or Company were unable to continue as a going concern

Changes in Accounting Poligy and Disclosures

{a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group and Company

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first ume for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2012 that would be expected
to have a matenial impact on the Group or the Company

{b} New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2012, and have not been
applied n preparing these consolidated financial statements None of these 15 expected to have a signtficant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group except the following set out below

* Amendment to IAS 1, "Financial statement presentation” regarding other comprehensive income The main change resulting irom these amendments 15 a
requirement for entities to group items presented in “other comprehensive ncome™ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification adjustmenis) The amendments do not address which stems are presented 1n OCI The Group and Company are yet to assess
the impact

* [FAS13, "Far value measurement” aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirernents for use across [FASs The requirements which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP do not extend
the use of far value accounting but provide guidance on how it shouid be applied where 1ts use 15 already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs
or US GAAP The Group is yet to assess the full mpact of the amendments

* |AS 19 "Employee benefits”, was amended m June 2011 The impact on the Graup will be as follows to immediately recognise all past service costs, and to
replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
habiity {asset} The Group 15 yet to assess the full impact of the amendments

* IFRS9 “Financial Instruments”, addresses the classification measurement and secogmition of financial assets and financial liabilities {FAS 9 was 1ssued In
November 2009 and October 2010 [t replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial nstruments [FRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories those measured as at far value and those measured at amortised cost The determination
1s made at imtial recognition The classification depends on the entity s business model for managing its financial nstruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument For financial habilties the standard retams most of the IAS 39 requrements The main change 1s that, in cases where the farr
value option 1s taken for financial habilities tha part of a fair value change due to an entity's own credit risk 1s recorded 1n other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Group s yet to assess IFRS 9 s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later
than the accounting period baginning on or after 1 January 2015, subject to endorsement by the EU The Group will also consider the impact of the remaning
phases of [FRS 9 when completed by the Board

* IFRS 10 “Censoldated financial statements”, builds on existing principles by dentifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company The standard provides additional guidance to assist 1n the determination
of cantrol where this rs difficult to assess The Group 1s yei to assess IFRS 10°s full impact and intends to adopt [FRS 10 no later than the accounting penod
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 subject to endorsement by the EU

* [FRS 11 "Jont arrangements™ 15 a more realistic reflection of (it arrangements by focusing on the nghts and ohhigations of the parties to the arrangement rather than
its legal form There are two types of jont arrangement joint operations and joint ventures Jont operations artse where a joint operator has rights to the assets and
obligations relating to the arrangement and therefore accounts for 1ts share of assets, hatilities revenue and expenses Joint ventures anse where the jomt venturer
has nghts to the net assets of the arrangemeant and therefore equity accounts for its interest Propartional consoltdation of jomt ventures 1s no longer allowed The Group
15 yet 1o assess IFRS 11's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 11 no later than the accounting period begnning on or after 1 January 2014
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Changes 1n Accounting Palicy and Disclosures continued

{bl New standards and interpretations not yet adopted continued

* |FRS12, “Drsclosures of interests in other entities™ includes the drsclosure requirements for all forms of nterests in other entiies including jomt arrangements
associates special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 12's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later
than the accounting period beginming on ar after 1 January 2014

* Amendment to IAS 12, * Income taxes” Currently IAS 12 reguires an entity to measure the deferred tax relaung 1o an asset depending on whether the entity
expects to recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale It can be difficult and subjective to assess whether recovery will be through use or
through sale when the asset 1s measured using the far value model in IAS 40 Investment Property Hence this amendment intraduces an exception to the existing
principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or Irabilities arising on investment property measured at fair value As a result of the amendments, SIC 21

Income taxes-recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets” would no longer apply to investment properties carried at far value The amendments also incorporate
into IAS 12 the remaining guidance previously contained in SIC 21 which 1s accordingly withdrawn The Group 15 yet to assess Amendment to IAS 12 s full impact
and intends to adopt Amendment to I1AS 12 once endorsed by the EU

Consolidation
The cansolidated financial statements incorporaie the financial statements of Coalfield Resources plc {formerly UK Coal PLCH the Company”) and its subsidharies,
together the Group”

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has power 1o govern the financial and operating policies Control is presumed to exist where the Group owns more
than half of the vating nights, unless in exceptional circumstances where 1t can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute centrol The consohdated
financral statements include all the assets, habilities revenues expenses and cash flows of the parent and its subsidianies after elminating intercompany balances
and transactions The results of subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the consolidated mcome statement up to or from the date control passes

Where a major {ine of business has been disposed of or has been classified as held-for-sale, the business activity has been treated as a discontinued operation
Further to the sale of the Group s power generation business in October 2012 and the Group restructure that occurred i December 2012 the Group’s mining property
power generation and insurance businesses have been treated as discontinued operations The post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations for both the current
and preceding penod, together with the post-tax gain or loss on disposal of discontinued operations, are presented as a single line on the Consolidated Income
Statement Comparatives have been restated to show as discontmued operations those operations which were classified as discantinued in the current peniod

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to consolidate subsidiartes On acquisition the identifiable assets, liahilities and contingent hiabilities being
acquired are measured at thewr fair values at the date of acquisinon Accounting policies are changed where necessary to bing them into ine with those adopted
by the Group

When the Group ceases to have control any retaned interest in the entity 1§ re-measured to its far vatue at the date when control 1s lost, with the change n carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss The fair value 15 the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate
joint venture or financial asset

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint contro! estabhished by contracteal agreement Interests in joint ventures through which the
Group carries on its business are ¢lassified as jowntly controlled entities and accounted for using the equity method This nvolves recording the investment imtially at
cost to the Group and then in subsequent periods adjusting the carrying amount of the investment to reflect the Group s share of the yoint venture’s results less any
impairment tn carrying value and any other changes to the jomnt venture s net assets such as dividends

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generalty accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights Investmenis in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting Under the eginty method the investment is onginally measured at cost and
the carrying amount 15 Increased or decreased to recognise the investors’ share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition The Group s Invesiment
In assaciates includes goadwill identified on acquisition The Group s share of post-acquisition profit or loss 1s recogmised in the income statement and 1its share of
post-acquisitton mavements m other comprehensive income 1s recogmised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment

Where the Group holds more than 20% of the voting power of an entity, but the directors can demonstrate that the Group does not have significant influence over
that entity the investment 1s classified as available for sale

Where the directors have agreed to the sale of a business prior to the balance sheet date but the completion date for the transaction 1s after the balance sheet date
the assets and habihties of that business are presented as held for sale
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 December 2012 continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Accounting pohicies applicable to both continuing and discontinued operations
Accounting pohicies that are applicable to both continuing and discontinued operattons are shown below

Investments
Investments held by the Company i subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost less impairments to wite them down to their recoverable amount An impairment
to the carrying value of investmants Is made if there 15 an indication at the batance sheet date that the carrying value 1s not racoverable

Revenue
Revenue from coninuing operations anses from management and company secretanal services mvoiced to related parties

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recogrised imtially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred Borrowngs are subsequently stated at amartised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transattion costs) and the redemption value 15 recognised in the consolidated income statement over the penied of the borrowings using the effective
interest method

Trade Receivables

Trade recevables are recognised imitially at farr value and are subsequently reduced by any provision for impairment A provision for imparrment of trade receivables 1s
estabhshed when there 1s objective evidence that the Group or Campany will not be able to collect all amounts due Indicators of imparment would include financial
difficutties of the customer likebhood of the customer s insolvency default in payment or a significant deterioration in credit worthiness Any impairment is recognised in
the consolhidated income statement within “other operating income and expenses”™ When a trade recewvable 1s uncollactible it 1s written off against the allowance account

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against “other operating income and expenses” In the consohidated income statement

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acguired in the ordinary course of business from supphers Trade payables are classified
as current if payment s due within one year or less 1f not they are presented as non-current habifives Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective iterest method

Cash and Cash Equivalents
In the preparatton of the Group s and Company s cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents represent short term liquid investments which are readily realisable
Cash which 1s subject to restrictions, being held to match certain liabihties 1s included in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet

Employee Benefits

Pansion ebligations

Prior to Restructuring the Group operated pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay for employees who joined the Group on privattsation

in 1994 Employees within defined benefit schemes are members of Industry wide schemes, being ether tha Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme
["IWCSSS™) or the Industry Whde Mmeworkers’ Pension Scheme {“IWMPS™} both of which commenced on pavatisation following the Coal Industry Act 1994 The
assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group being funds administered by Trustees of the Schemes A qualified actuary assesses the cost of
current service and revalues the Schemes annually under the prowvisions of 1AS 19 using the Projected Unit Credit Methed A full valuation for funding purposes is
carnied out by the Schemes’ actvaries tnennially The Group accounts for pensions and similar benefits under IAS 19 “Employee benefits” In respect of defined benefit
plans obligations are measured at discounted present value and plan assets are recorded at fau value Certan additional benefits may become payable dependent
upon the funding levels of the Schemes being at “sustamable levels™ These liabilities are only provided if 1115 reasonably certain that the Schemes' funding nvesiment
policy and growth assumptions mean that it1s likely that the Scheme Actuary will be in a position, at afuture date to certify that the Schemes are at a "sustanable”
level of funding Service costs are charged systematically over the service fives of employees and finanzing costs are recognised in the periods in which they arise
Actuarial gans and losses are recognised in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes in respect of all employees wha joined after the privatisation date m 1994 The cost of this 1s charged to the
consolidated mcome statement as incurred

Following completion of the Restructurtng, the Company continues to have certain residual iabilities in respect of the Blenkinsepp Section of the Industry Wide
Mnewarkers Pension Scheme (which has an {AS 19 deficit of £720,000 at 29 December 2012) and which 1s secured by first ranking securtty over certamn deep ming
sites owned by UK Coal Gperations Limited
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Employee Benefits continued

Share-based payments

The fair value of share plans 1s recognised as an expense in the conselidated income staiement over the expected vesting period of the grant The fair vatue of
share plans is determmed at the date of grant taking into account any market based vesting conditions attached to the award Non-market based vesting conditions
{e g earmings per share targets) are taken into account in estimating the number of awards likely to vest The estimate of the number of awards hikely to vest
15 reviewed regularly and the expense charged adjusted accordingly The fair value of employee share option plans 1s calculated using a generally accepted
simutation model

The proceeds received net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital {nominal value) and share premium {any increment) when
the options are exercised

Tax

Current tax

The charge or credit for current tax 1s based on the results for the year adjusted for items that are esther not subject to taxatian or for expenditure which cannot be
daducted in computing the tax charge or credit The tax charge or creditis calculated using taxatton rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recogrused using the balance sheet habiity method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habihties in the finangial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax ts recogrised in respect of all taxable temporary timing differences
with certain limited exceptions

» deferred tax s not provided on the imtial recogmtion of an asset or liability i a transaction that does not affect accounting profit or taxable profit and is not
a business combination and

+ deferred tax assets are only recognised 1f 1t 1s probable that there will be sufficient profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing cifferences
can be deducted In deciding whether future reversal is probable the directors review the Group s forecasts and make an estimate of the aggregate deferred
tax asset that should be recogmised This aggregate deferred tax asset is then allocated into the different categones of deferred tax taking account of the fact
that the deferred tax asset in relation to the pension deficit will be recognised over a longer penod, as the pension lialility reverses over the average remaning
service hfe of employees

In relation to nvestment praperties, a deferred tax hability 1s provided on the basis of normal income tax rules for the proportion of the property s carrying amount
expected to be recovered through use and 1s provided using capital gains tax rules in respect af the rematnder of the preperty s carrying amount (including all land)
expected to be recovered through sale Prowision is made for gains on disposal of property plant and equipment that have been rolled over into replacement assets
only where at the balance sheet date there 1s a commitment to dispose of the replacement assets

Defarred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periogs in which uming differences reversa based on tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, excepi where it applies to tems credited
or charged to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown tn equity as a deduction net of tax
from the proceeds

Dividend Distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogrused in the financial statements in the year in which the dwidends are paid (in the case of interim
dividends) or approved by the Company s shareholders (in the case of final dvidends)

Segment Reporting
Since Restructuring, the Group has had only one operating activity that of an imvestment holding company, and consequently no segmental analysis has been
presented in respect of the Group s continuing operations

Accounting policies applicable to discontinued operations only
Accounting policies that are applicable to discontinued operations enly are shown below

Sagment Reporting

Prior to Restructuning the Group reported operating segments in a manner consistent wath the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
The chief operating decision-maker, who was respensible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, was dentified as the
Executive Management Commitiee

45
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 December 2012 continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Segment Reporting continued

The Group managed its business primanly by reference to operating segments Deep mining comprised the underground mining operations of the Group and related
labour services and the captive insurance company Surface mming incorporated all mining activities at surface level together with the plant hire operations of the
Group The Property Division Harworth Estates maintaned, developed and rented the Group s property portfolio and operated the Group s methane generation activities
Any activity not falling into any of these categories was included in the Other segment

Foreign Currencies

The presentational currency of the Group s sterling Transactions in other currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habilities are translated at year end exchange rates and the resulting exchange rate differences are included n the consolidated income
statement within the results of operating activities if anising from trading actnities and within finance cost/income 1f arising from financing

AN Group companies have a functional currency of sterling which is consistent with the presentational currency of the consolidated financial statements

Revenue
Revenue from discontinued operations comprises sales (excluding intra group sales) of coal property sental income and other external sales including sales of power
and of labour services

Coal transactions
Revenue 1s recogmised when delivery of the product or service has been made and when the customer has a legally binding obligation to setile under the terms of the
contract and has assumed all significant nisks and rewards of ownership

A large proportion of production 15 sold under medium to long term contracts Revenue 15 only recogmised on individual sales when all of the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to a third party In most instances this 15 when the product is despatched, being the point at which title to the product s transferred
to the purchaser

Service transactions
Rental income 1s recogrised duning the penod in whech rents due to the Group accrue Sales of power are recognised when electricity 15 transferred into the local
distribution network

Exceptional items

Items that are both matenial and non-recurning and whose stgnificance 1s sufficient to warrant separate disclosure and identification within the consolidated financial
statements are referred to as exceptional items and drsclosed within therr relevant income statement category within note 2 restructuring and discontinued operations
Items that may give rise to classification as exceptional items include, but are not limited to significant and material restructuring closures and reorganisation programmes
asset impairments, and profits or losses on the disposal of businesses

Exceptional items are divided into non-trading and trading exceptional lems, depending upon the impact of the event giving nse to the cost or income on the on going
trading operations and the nature of the costs or Income involved Non-trading exceptional items include costs and income ansing from closure rationalisation and
business dispgsals

Property related transactions including changes in the fair value of mvestment propertres, and profits and losses ansing on the disposal of property assets are not
included in the definition of exceptional items as they are expected to recur, but are separately disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement where
maternal

Profit or Loss on Disposal

Disposals are accounted for when legal completton of the sale has accurred or there has been an unconditional exchange of contracts Profits or losses on disposal
anse from deducting the asset's net carrying value from the net proceeds {being net purchase consideration less clawback iability anising on disposal) and are
recogrised i the consolidated income statement Net carrying value includes valuation in the case of investment properties and hustanic cost or deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation in the case of all other property plant and equipment

In the case of investment properties the revaluation reserve which arose on transfer from operating property to investment property, for the property disposed
of 1s treated as realised on disposal of the property and transferred to reiamed earmings

Where a major ine of business or subsidrary undertaking 1s sold, profit or loss on disposal 15 calculated by deducting the net carrying value of assets disposed of from
the net proceeds {being the purchase consideration less costs of disposal) and 15 recognised in the income statement wathin prafit or loss from discontinued operations
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Investment Properties and Operating Properties
The Group held the following types of freehold property up untit completion of the Restructuning

*  Working deep mines in production,
«  Working surface mines in production
¢ Property held for administrative purposes, and

e Property held for rental income, capital apprectation or both

Working deep mines in preduction working surface mines in production and property held for administrative purposes are held as operating properties (as these
assets are used or intended to be used within the operations of the Group} and are accounted for at historic depreciated cost, in accordance with IAS 16 “Property
Plant and Equipment” All sther freehold properties are held as investment properties {as these are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both) and are
accounted for at valuation, in accordance with JAS 40 “Investment Property”

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise freehold land and buildings and are measured at far value The fair values are determined by obtainng an independent valuation
prepared n accordance with the current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation Standards pubhshed by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors External,
ndependent valuation firms having appropriate, recogmised professional qualifications and recent experience n the location and category of property being valued
are used to value the portfoho at each reporting date

In accordance with IAS 40, for properties transferred from operating properties to investment properties any difference between the book value and the first vatuation
on recogmition as an investment property 1s taken to reserves Subsegquent gains or losses arising from changes in the farr values of assets are recogmsed in the
consohdated income statement net of any property clawback by DECC {see accounting policy on property clawback) on deemed disposal Investment properties
are not depreciated

Properties being held for their long term rental ncome or caprtal appreciation but with the added potential for coal extraction are held as investment properties,
being transferred to operating properties at fair value when planning permission to mine the site has been receved and mining operations have commenced and
are transferred back to mvestment properties once mining has terminated

Where the development of investment property commences with a view to sale the property s transferred from investment properties to nan current assets
classified as held for sale, which 1s then considered to represent deemed cost

Operating Praperties

Operating properties which are acquired or constructed are initially recorded at cost being the purchase pnce of the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset
nte existing use and subsequently stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation {other than freehold land whuch 15 not depreciated} Where properuies are
transferred from investment properties to aperating properties this transter 1s made at fair value which (s then considered to represent deemed cost

Properties which have historically been used as working deep mines or working surface mines {operating properties) are transferred to property held for rental income
or caprtal appreciation investment properties), when there 1s a change inuse at the point when a decision 1s made to pursue planning with a view to future develepment
{rather than for shart term sale) or rental and once mining has ceased 1AS 16 1s applied up to the date of transfer and any difference at that date between the book
value and far valug 1s taken to the revaluation reserve

Properties in the Course of Development

Drectly attributable costs incurred in the course of developing a property are capitalised as part of the cost of the property For aperating properties depreciation
of these costs follows the depreciation pohicy for the property Development costs on mvestment properties are capitalised and the change in value 1s recogrmised
through the next revaluation

Exploration and Evaluation

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs that are directly attnibutable to
s Researching and analysing existing exploration data

*  Conducting geological studies exploratory drilling and sampling,

*  Examining and testing extraction and treatment methods and/or

» Compiling prefeasibibty and feasibility studies

Exploration expenditure relates to the imitial search for deposits with economic potential Evaluation expenditure anses from a detailed assessment of deposits
that have been identified as having economic potential
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Exploration and Evaluation continued

Camitalisation of exploration and evaluation {pre-coaling) expenditure commences when there 15 a high degree of confidence n the project s viabibty and hence it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group Such capitabsed expleration and evaluation expenditure 1s reviewed for impairment when facts and
circumstances indicate that 1ts carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount

Subsequent recovery of the resulting carrying value depends on successful develapment of the area of interest or sale of the project | a project does not prove
viable, all wrecoverable costs associated with the project net of any related impairment provisions are written off

Plant and Equipment
The cost of plant and equepment compnises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to brnging the asset to the location and condition necessary for
It to be capable of operating in accordance with agreed specifications Plant and equipment 1s stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation

Once a mining project has been established as commercially viable expenditure other than that on land, buildings plant and equipment 1s capitalised under ‘mine
development assets” together with any amount transferred from "exploration and evaluation”

During the development of a mine before production cammences, development stripping costs are capitalised as part of the investment i construction of the mine
{see accounting policy on mining assets}

Costs assgciated with commissioning new assets are capitalised in the period before they are capable of operating in the manner intended by management
Development costs incurred after the commencement of production are capitalised to the extent they are expected to give rise to a future economzc benefit

Mining Assets

Mine development

The purpose of mine development s to access and establish infrastructure n order to allow the safe and efficient extraction of recoverable reserves Depreciation on
mine development Js charged from the time when full production commences or fram when the assets are put to use Oncommencement of full production, depreciation
15 charged over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves Coal extracted prior to the commencement of full production 1s credited against the cost of mine
development where 1t can be clearly shown that the production of saleable material s directly attnbutable to bringing the asset 1o the condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management otherwise such revenue {and the costs of producing the saleable material] 1s recogrised n the consohidated
income statement

Mines and surface works

Assets acquired on the privatisation of Bntish Coal in 1994 were valued at discounted net recoverable value, based en the contemporary mining plans, in accordance
with the accounting guidance exisiing at that trme Depreciation 1s charged over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves Subsequent additions to mines
and surface works are accounted for at cost and deprectated over their ndividual estimated reserves

Sersmic and geologrcal mapping costs

Expenditure on seismic and geological mapping costs which increasas the value of the reserves by identrfying additional reserves over and above those previously
recegmised, or increases the value of the existing known reserves by providing information which enables reserve estimates to be increased 1s caprtahsed This
expenditure 15 depreciated over the estimated tonnage of the recoverable reserves as these are extracted [f the information does not fulfil either of these ¢riteria
the costis charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred

,Surface mine development and restoration assets
Costs incurred prior to coaling for surface mines are capitatised as surface mme development and restoration assets within tangible fixed assets once a planning
apphication 1s to be made and a separate provision for the outstanding restoration and rehabilitation obligations ts established Both of these costs are then charged
to the consclidated income statement {net of any residual value) over the recoverable reserves of the mine

Deferred stnpping costs

Overburden and other mine waste materials are often removed duning the imtial development of a mine site in order to access the mineral deposit This activity 15
referred to as development stngping The directly attributable costs (inclusive of an altocation of relevant overhead expenditure) are capitalised as surface mine
development assets and are amortised together with restoration and pre-coaling costs, once coaling commences over the tonnage of coal expected to be extracted

The Group defers stnpping costs incurred subsequently, during the production stage of its operations, for those operations where thrs 1s the most appropriate basts
for matching the costs against the related economic benghts and the effect 1s matenal

The amount of stripping costs deferred 1s based on the ratio obtained by dividing the tonnage of waste mined by the quantity of coal mined Strpping costs icurred
duning the period are deferred to the extent that the current penod ratio exceeds the remaining life of mine ratio Such deferred costs are then charged agamst
reporied profits to the extent that, in subsequent pertods, the current penod ratio {alls short of the life of mine ratic Changes to the life of mine ratio are accounted
for prospectively
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Miming Assets continued

Deferred stnpping costs continued

If the Group were to expense the production stage stripping costs as incurred, there would be greater volatility in the year to year results from operations and excess
sinpping costs would be expensed at an earlier stage of a mine s operation

Depreciation

The costs of operating properties, excluding freehold fand, and the cost of all other plant and equipment, less estimated residual value are wnitten off on a strasght
line bawis over the asset s expected useful Iife Residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropnate, at each balance sheet date Changes to the
estimated residual values or useful lives are accounted for prospectively The costs of heavy surface mining and other plant and equipment are depreciated at varying
rates depending upon therr expected usage

Indicative expected lives for non-current assets are set out below

Freehold tand not depreciated
Operating properties (excluding land) 25 to 50 years
Mines and surface works Heavy mining equipment 8 to 20 years

Plant and equipment

- Plant and equipment 3to 15years
— Motor vehicles JtoSyears
Impairment

Operating property plant and equipment are reviewed for imparment 1f there 15 any indication at the balance sheet date that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable

The carrying value of cash generating units {taking into account related habilties and allocated central net assets) 1s tested for impairment by comparisan with
expected relevant future cash flows discounted at the pre-tax cost of capital taking into account approprizte risk and provision s made for any impairment identified
Cash generating umts compnise individual mines or groups of mines depending upon the nature of the income streams derived from each

When a review for impairment is conducted the recoverable amount s assessed by reference to the higher of value in use” {being the present value of expected
future cash flows of the relevant cash generating umt) or “fair value less costs to sell” Where there 1s no tinding sale agreement or active market fair value less
costs to selbis based on the best information available to reflect the amount the Group could receive for the cash generating umit in an arm s length transaction

Future cash flows are based on
« Estmates of the quantities of the reserves and resources for which there 1s a high degree of confidence of economic extraction
¢ Anticipated production levels and costs

* Anticipated coal prices

Cost levels incorporated in the cash flow forecasts are based on the current long term mine plan for the cash generatingunit For impairment reviews, recent cost
levels are considered, together with expected changes in costs that are compatible with the current condition of the business and which meet the requirements
of IAS 36 "Impaument of assets” [AS 36 includas a number of restnctions on the future cash flows that can be recognised in respect of restructurings and
improvement related to capital expenditure

Finance and Operating Leases - as lessee

Leases which transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the Group are treated as finance leases All other leases are treated as operating leases
Assets held under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements are capitahised and depreciated according to the depreciation rate of the applicable asset category
The gutstanding capital obligations are mcluded n pavables Interest s allocated to accounting perods over the hire purchase or lease term to reflect a constant rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligation Costs in respect of the operating leases are charged to the consolidated ncome statement on a straight hne
basis over the term of the lease

Finance and Qperating Leases — as lessor
The Group grants leases over land and buildings m the course of its property business These do not substantizlly transfer the nisks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee and therefore they are accounted for as pperating leases
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Financial Instruments and Derivatives

The Group recognises financial instruments when 1t becomes party to the contractual provistons of the nstrument Fnancial assets are derecogmsed when the
contractual right to receive the cash flows expire or it has ransferred the financial asset and the economic benefit of the cash flows Financial habilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires

Financial instruments are used to support the Group s operations Interest is charged to the consohdated income statement as incursed or earned Issue costs for
mstruments subsequently recorded at amortised cost are netted against the far value of the related debt instruments on initial recognition and are charged to the
consolidated mcome statement over the term of the relevant facility

Fnancial instruments are recorded initially at fair value Subsequent measurement depends on the designation of the instrument, as follows

a) Financial assets/habilities held for short term gain, including denvatives other than hedging instruments, are measured at fair value and movements m fair value
are credited/charged to the consalidated income statement in the period

b} Loans and recevables/payables and non-denivative financial assets/liabilities with fixed or detarminable payments that are not quoted Iin an active market, are
measured at amortised cost These are included in current assets/hiabilities except for instruments that mature after mare than 12 months which are included n
non-current assets/labilities

The Group holds dervative financial instruments { dervatives™) to manage exposure to fluctuations in interess rates Derivatives are designated as hedges when
applicable and treated as such from the inception of the relevant coniracts Amounts payable or recevable in respect of interest rate swap agreements are
recognised as adjustments to the interest expense over the period of the contracts

Changes i the far value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and etfective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly n equity, and the
ineffactive portion is recognised immedtately in the income statement as a finance cost If the cash flow hedge of a firm cammutment or forecasted transaction results
in the recogrition of an asset or hiability, then at the time the asset or liabiity 1s recogrised, the assaciated gains or losses on the dervative that had previously been
recognised i equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or hability For hedges that do not result in recognition of an asset or a iabiity amounts

deferred in equity are recognssed in the consolidated ncome statement in the same period in which the hedged tem affects net profitor loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold terminated, or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that ume,
any cumulative gam or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s retaned in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no
longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the consalidated income statement i the peried

Changes in the fair value of dervative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immedrately in the consolidated income statement
as a finance cost

Inventaries
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Values of spares and consumables are based an average purchase prices Appropriate provisions
are made for slow moving and obsolete inventortes Coal 1s recogmsed as mventories when delivered to the surface and 1s valued at the average cast of extraction

Property Clawback

Under the terms of the 1994 privatisation Sale and Purchase Agreement, DECC 15 entitled to a percentage of any property gain (above certan threshotds and after
deducting an amount representing corporation tax thereon) aceruing or treated as aceruing to the Group, as a result of the disposal or deemed disposal or major
development of certain properties acquired at privatisation The percentage apphied was 18% for 2012, reducing by 3 percentage pomts per annum until 31 March 2015
when it reduces io zero If properties are disposed of, or are deemed 10 have heen disposed of during this perrad, a part of the relevant gan will become payable to
DECC

DECC agreed that on implementation of the Restructuning, all historic Clawback habilities incurred by the Company as at the date of the Restructuring would be
transferred to the Mining Division and that all Clawback liabilities relating to properties sold by the Property Division after that date would be the responsibility of the
Property Dvision The Company and DECC agreed that the total amount of lability otherwise due as aresult of the disposal of properties over the period from 1994
to 31 March 2015 will remain unaltered as a consequence of this reallocation of liabihties notwithstanding the Restructuring

Prowvisions for Restoration, Rehabihitation and Environmental Costs

An oblgation ta tneur restoration, rehabifitation and environmental costs anises when envirgnmental disturbance 1s caused by the development or ongoing production
of a mining property These costs consist of shaft treatment and pit top restoration spoil heap restoration, pumping activities and ground and ground water
contamination at deep mines and soil excavation and surface rehabilitation at surface mines
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Provisions for Resteration, Rehabilitation and Environmental Costs continued

Such costs ansing from the decommissioning of plant and other site restoration work discounted to therr estimated present value, are provided for and caprtahsed

within operating property plant and equipment at the start of each project, as saon as the obligation to mcur such costs anses These provisions do not include any
additional obligations which are expected to anse from future damage and are estimated on the basis of a closure plan These costs are charged agamst income

over the hfe of the operation through the deprectation of the asset as an operating cost and the unwinding of the discount on the provision as a financing cost

Costs for restoration of subsequent site damage which 15 created on an on-going basis during production are provided for at their estimated present values and
charged against income as extraction progresses

Changes in the measurement of a llability relating to the decommisstoning af plant or other site preparation work that result from changes in the estimated timing
or amount of the cash flow or a change in the discount rate are added 10 or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current penod If a decrease in the
hability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset the excess s recogrused immediately i the consolidated income statement If the asset value 1s increased and
there 1s an mndication that the revised carrying value is not recoverable an impairment test 1s performed in accerdance with the accounting policy above

Other Pravisions

Surface damage {subsidence}

Provision 1s made for the estimated present value of the cost of damage to structures on the surface as a result of settlement durng the production phase of underground
mining The provision 15 calculated in respect of each colliery, location of miming activity and type of property affected or likely to be affected based on claims
expected and clamms submitted and using histonical settlement experience These costs are charged to the consolidated wcome statement Movements in the
provisions arg presented as an operating cost except for the unwinding of the discount which 1s shown as a financing cost

Employer and public hability claims

The Group has established a OECC approved and Financial Services Authonty ("FSA”) regulated UK based insurance subsidiary {Harworth Insurance Company
Limited) This msures employer and public hability risks buying reinsurance with third parties above certain levels Prowsion 1s made for the estimated value
of both known and incurred but not reported, third party claims on an actuarially determined basis taking into account expected remsurance recavenes

Redundancy

Provision 15 made for the eshimated present value of redundancy costs when there 1s a demonstrable commitment to terminate the employment of either an employee
or group of employees The expected amounts of redundancy payments intluding any amounts in respect of ex gratia payments, are provided where the employment
terminations have been communicated to employees These costs are charged to the consolidatad ncome statement Movernents in the provisions are presented as
an operating cost except for the unwinding of the discount which 1s shown as a financing cost

Where contributions to redundancy costs have been firmly committed by third parties these centributions are credited to the consolidated income statement in the
same period to the extent, that the related redundancy cost has been recognised

Employee Benefits

Concessionary fuel

Prior to Restructuring the Group made piovision for the estimated ability anising from the abligation to provide concessionary fuel benefits to certam retred and
current employees The costs of the concessionary fuel benefits are determined annually by a gualified actuary using the same Projected Uit Credit Method adopted
for the pension schemes The arrangement is unfunded so no assets are held directly to meet the ebligations The regular sarvice cost and interest on the scheme
habilities are charged to the consolidated income statement Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
representing the difference between actual and expected performance

Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Many of the amounts included in the financial statements involve the use of judgement and/or estimation These judgements and estimates are based on management s
best knowledge of the relevant facts and circumstances having regard to previous experience but actual results may differ from the amounts included in the financial
statements Information about such judgements and estimation ss contained in the accounting policies and/or the notes to the financral statements and the key areas
summarised overleaf
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continued

Areas of judgement and sources of estimation uncertainty that have the most sigmificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financtal statements, split between
those applicable to continuing eperations and those applicable to the discontinued operations of the Group are

Applicable to continuing operations

Carrying value of investment in Harworth Estates Property Group Limited (the property business) as an associate

The Group accounts for its 24 3% investment in Harworth Estates Property Group Limited as an associate and values its investment based on Its share of net assets,
subject to a reduction in the carrying value of £5 000,000 to reflect the fact that the first £5,000 000 of shareholders’ dividend income, which would otherwise be due
to the Group, will be paid to the Pension Schemes The carrying value of the investment in Harworth Estates Property Group Limited 1s linked te the underying value
of the property assets within that company and so any reduction in property values will lead 10 a falt in the carrying value of the investment in the Group s financial
statements

Carrying value of mvestment in UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited (the mining business}

The Group recognises that the investment that it holds in the mmning business in which it has a 33% share of voting rights 15 subject to sigasficant econoric risk, and
over which 1t does not have significant centrol Consequently the Group recogrused the carrying value of its iInvestment at a fair value of £1, and accounts for its interest
In the mining busness as an available for sale mvestment rather than as an associate Future profits and losses anising n the mimng business will not be recognised
in the Group s Income statement or balance sheet m respect of the mining business’ operating actvity

Classification of mvestments n Harworth Estates Property Group Limited and UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited
The Group has used its judgement in classifying its nvestment in Harworth Estates Property Group Limited as an associate and its investment in UK Coal Mine
Holdings Limited as an availabla for sale investment for the reasans outlined above Further details are given in note 14 {Investments)

Estimatron of post retuement benefit obligations

Retirement benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions 1o project benefit obligations and farr values of plan assets
Reurement benefit accounting 1s intended to reflect the recogmition of {uture benefit costs over the employee s approximate service period based on the terms of the
plans and the investment and funding decisions made by the Group These are subject to actuanal estimates of, amongst other items rate of return on nvestments
rate of salary increases, rate of price inflation the cost of funding future hiabilities and post retrement ife expectancy Details of the significant estimates used are
set out n note 25

Applicable to discontinued operations

Estimation of future production fevels

Along with estimations required as part of the going concern review, estimates of future production are used in the forecasting process which 15 used in the
assessment of the carrying value of certain assets, impairment charges colliery asset lives and coal reserve estimates

Review of asset carrying values and impairment charges

The Group performs imparment testing m accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1 The calculation of recoverable amount requires the use of estimates
and assumptions consistent with the most recent budgets and plans that have been formally approved by management Sigmificant factors considered when using
estimates to assess the carrying value of assets include future coal prices expected annual production expected colliery operating costs remaining colliery lives and
coal reserves and discount rates Refer to note 12 for the key assumptions used in the calculations

Estimatian of colfiery asset ves
Capntalised mine development costs {deep and surface mines) are amorused over the tonnage of coal expected to be extracted in the future

It the amount of coal expected to be extracted varies, this will impact an the amount of the asset which should be carried in the consolidated balance sheet See accounting
poltcy stated in note 1

Determination of coal reserve estunates
Reserves are used m the calculation of deprecration, amortisation and impairment charges the assessmant of e of mine stripping ratios and for forecasting the
timing of the payment of close down and restoration and clean-up costs

In assessing the e of a mine for accounting purposes, mineral resources are only taken into account where there 15 a high degree of confidence of economic extraction
There are numerous uncertanties inherent in estimating coal reserves and assumptions that are valid at the time of estimation may change significantly when new
information becomes available

Changes in the forecast prices of commodities, exchange rates production costs or recovery rates may thange the economic status of reserves and may, ultimately,
result in the reserves being restated

Deferral of stnppng costs
See accounting policy note 1
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Judgements n Applying Accounting Policies and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continued
Applicable to discontinued operations continued

Caputalisation of exploration and evaluation costs

See accounting policy note 1

Estmation of fair value of investment property

The fair value of Invesiment property reflects, amongst other things rental incame from our current leases assumptions about rental income from future leases and
the possible outcome of planning apphcations in the light of current market conditions The valuation has been arrived at primanily after consideration of market
avidence for similar property although in the case of those properties where 1t is considered market value will be informed by their ultimate redevelopment potential
development appraisals have been undertaken to estimate the residual value of the landholding after due regard to the cost of and revenue from the development of
the property

In such instances on account af the sensitwity of the market value to the detail of any future planming consent and the potential for material vanance in the actuality
of development costs, as compared with our own estimates, together with the subjective nature of hope value, the values reported are subject to material
uncertanty and a change in fair values could have a material impact on the Group's results Investment properties are disclosed in note 13

Estimation of other provisions (including clawback habiities)

Provisions are dependent on assessments of whether the tritena for recognstion have been met including estimates of the outcome and the amount of the potential
cost of resclution Provisions are recogmsed by a charge against income when it 1s probable that a iabihty has been incurred and the amount of such habibty can be
reasonably estimated

Estimation of close down and restoration costs

Estimated provisions are established in the consolidated balance sheet and amortised in proportion to the coal expected to be extracted from a site If that expected
tonnage or the actual cost varies, then the provision may be under or over stated Estimates for environmental restoration provisions are based on the nature and
seriousness of the contamination as well as on the technology sequired for clean-up The provisions are disclosed n note 22

Recoverabihity of deferred tax assets

The recogmtion of deferred tax assets requures considerable judgement as 1o the future profitabihty of the mining business The recognition of a deferred tax hability
in relation to property revaluations requires an estmate to be made of the proportion of the value of a property which will be recovered through use compared to the
proportion of the value which will be recovered through sale Deferred tax s disclosed in note 8

2 RESTRUCTURING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

a) Restructunng of the Company’s Business ("Restructuning”)

Summary

On 10 December 2012 the Company announced that it had restructured into two separate businesses comprising the Mining Divisson {under a newly incorporated company
UK Coa! Mine Holdings Limited {"Mine Holdings™}} and the Property Division {under a newly incorporated company Harworth Estates Property Group Limited {"Harworth
Estates”}) Control of the Mining Division passed to a newly established Employee Benefit Trust {*EBT”) which holds shares representing 67% of the voting, and 10%
of the economic rights 1n Mine Holdings for the benefit of current and future employees of the Mining Division The Company retained 90% of the economic and 33%
of the voting, rights 1n Mine Holdings, but the Company’s and EBT's sharehslding both rank behund the debt to the UK Coal Mining Limsted {"UKCML"} section of each
of the Industry-Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme and the Industry-Wide Mineworkers’ Pension Scheme {*Pension Funds™)

The Company owns 24 9% of Harwarth Estates with 75 1% having passed to the Pension Funds in return for a £30 000,000 cash contribution by the Pension Funds
into Harworth Estates and their agreement to defer deficit coninbutions for 2012 and 2013 representing approximately £40 000 000 of support to the Mining Division

Separation of the Company's business

The Company's pension funding deficit has been 1solated as a liability of the Mining Division and ring-fenced from the Property Division’s assets and liabifiues Save
for finance lease debt of approximately £7,000,000, a £10,000,000 lean that was provided by Harworth Estates to provide the Mining Division with additional working
capital headroom {to be secured by second ranking secunity over certamn freehold deep mines) and security granted over a cash account in respect of the property and
cash hacked bonding facility, the Mining Division was left free of bank debt and bank security and with an amended pension deficit repayment schedule This was
expected to create a more stable platform more lkely to release the value in the Miming Division

As part of the Restruciuring, the Pension Trustees no longer have a claim on the assets of the Property Division and have lost the benefit of statutory parent company
guarantees from the Company UK Coal Holdings Limited Harwarth Group Lirmited and Harworth Power Limited Following the Restructuring, the UK Coal Operations
Limsted {"Mineco™} section of each of the Indusiry-Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme and the Indusiry Wide Minewaorkers’ Pension Scheme (*Mining” Sections)
has the benefit of a statutory parent company guarantee only from companies in the Mining Division
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2 RESTRUCTURING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS continued

a} Restructuring of the Company’s Business {“Restructuring”) continued

Property Division

As part of the plan 1o address the pension defien, the Pension Trustees received a direct stake of 75 1% n the Property Division {through a shareholding in Harworth
Estates}in consideration for a £30,000 000 cash contribution and agreement to defer deficit contributions far 2012 and 2013 representing approximately £40,000,000
of support to the Mining Division

The cash contribution was intended to ensure that the property operations had adequate funding to enable the release of the latent undeveloped value in the property
portfalio The Company 15 entitled ta the benefit of the remaming 24 9% This stake would na longer guarantee the pension lability In addition, the first £5 000,000
of shareholders dividend income which would otherwise be due to the Company will be paid to the Penston Trustees

Mining Division

The legal structure necessary to facilitate the nng-fencing of the Company's pension deficit frem the Praperty Division requiras that the Company retams less than
ane third of the voting power at any general sharshelders meeting of the holding company of the Mining Division, Mine Holdings Consequently 67% of the voting
rghts in Mine Holdings and 10% of 1ts aconomic rights wese transferred te the EBT for norminal consideration Although necessary to facilitate the implementation
of the ring-fence structure, the Board believes that the transfer of voting and economic rights to the EBT will also better align the interests of the Mining Division’s
employees with its economic performante The remaining 33% of the voung rights in Ming Holdsngs and 90% of 1ts economic rights are held by the Company
{see note 14{d} explaimng why the Group does not exercise significant control over Mine Holdings}

Pension Scheme Changes

The Company operated several different pension schemes The two main schemes are Pension Funds The Restructuring has had a significant impact on the Pensian
Funds by amending the Mining Diviston’s statutory funding plans so that only the Mining Division will be hiable to fund the Company’s defined benefit pension
habilities

The pension aspects of the Restructuning involved a “bulk transfer™ on a without consent bass, of all of the assets and liabilities of the Pension Funds {including
deferred and pensioner liabilities} to the Mining Sections The pnncipal employer {and only partisipating emplayer} in the Mining Sections 1s Mineco UKCMLs liability
i respect of the Pension Funds was reduced to zero as a result of this “bulk transfer which as a consequence, also reduced the Company s hability in respect of its
guarantee relating to the Pension Funds to zero

The Miming Dhvision remains liable to the Company in respect of the Blankinsopp Sectton of the Industry Wide Mineworkers' Pension Scheme {secured over certan
deep mine sites owned by Mineco)

The Company

Following completion of the Restructuring the Company continues to have certain residual iabilities in respect of the Mimng Division These include the Blenkinsopp

Section (which had an IAS 19 deficit of £720,000 at 29 December 2012 and which 1s secured by first ranking security over certain deep mine sites owned by Mineco),

certain guarantees in respect of [rabilities in certain mining leases of approximately £4 000 000 at cempletion of the Restructuning and costs and expenses incurred ‘
prior to the Restructuring

Treatment of Mining and Property Activities in the Financial Statements \
In accounting for the Restructuning, the transfer of the Mining and Property activities of the Group to Mine Holdings and Harworih Estates has been treated as a disposal

The subsequent acquisition of 24 9% of Harworth Estates by the Company has been accounted for as an acquisition of an associated undertaking, and of the Company s

interest it Mine Holdings as an available for sale investment for the reasons outhned 1n note 14

b} Disposal of Harworth Power {Generation) Limited

On 1 October 2012 the Company announced that its wholly owned subsidhary Harwarth Power Limited, had completed the disposal of its subsidiary undertaking
Harworth Power (Generation} Limited ("HPGL™) to Red Rose Infrastructure Limited for aggregate consideration of £20 300 000 of which £20,000,000 was payable
upon completion and payment of the remamng £300 000 would be contingent upon future rights to gas extraction being granted to HPGL by The Department for
Energy and Climate Change The Group realised a £13,200 000 prefit on disposal after deduction of fees

¢} Harworth Insurance Company Limitad

On 7 December 2012 the Company agreed a put and call option with Mime Holdings to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Harworth Insurance Company Limited !
The consideration for the option was £4,650,000 Exercise of the option is conditional on obtaining Financial Services Autharity consent ar the parties agreeing that

such consent 1s no konger legally required Since the call option had not been exercised at the year end the assets and habilities relating to Harworth Insurance

Company Limited have been presented as held for sale




2 RESTRUCTURING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS continued
d) Discontinued Operatiens and Profit on Disposal
The combined cash flows of the discontinued operations nated above were as follows
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2012 01
Group £000 £000
Operating cash flows 36,610 79,613
Investing cash flows {29675} 26736
Financing cash flows (8,205) {105122)
Total cashflows (1.270) 1227
Analysis of discontinued operations and the results recognised on the remeasurement of assets of disposal group are as follows
Power
Mining Property Insurance Ganeration Total

Discontinued operations 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 E000
Revenue 360178 6484 - 21m 368,773
Expenses {486 450) {6 892} 72 (1,530) (494.151)
Change in fair value of investment properties - 16,188 - - 16,188
Oparating [loss)/profit from discontinued operations {126 272) 15780 bl 581 {109,190)
Finance costs {16,700}
Share of post-tax loss from joint vantures {900}
Tax {2291}
Loss after tax from discontinued operations {149,081)
Pre-tax profit on disposal 150877
Rameasurement loss on insurance business (7.782)
Tax -
Post-tax profit on disposal 19.0%
Loss for the year from discontinued cperations {5,986}

The remeasurement loss of £7 782 000 relating ta the insurance discontinued operation represents the difference between the net assets of the insurance business
of £12,432,000 and the farir value of the business based on the consideration received from Mine Holdings of £4,650,000 for the granting of a put and call option to

acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Harweorth Insurance Company Limned

Power

Mining Property Insurance Generation Total
Discontinued operations 2011 £000 £000 £000 £000 E0DD
Revenue 477613 7105 85 3413 488,216
Expenses (422 986} |2 066) 1246 (978} (424,794)
Change n fair value of investment properties - 3,325 - - kK v.
Operating profit from discontinued operations before exceptional items 54 617 B 364 130 2435 66,747
Non-trading exceptional item 16 108 - - - 16,508
Qperating profit from discontinued operatigns 70725 B 364 133 2435 B2,855
Finance costs {22.495)
Share of post-tax loss from jomt ventures {431)
Tax {2,042)
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 57,887

Non-trading exceptional items consist of professional fees in respect of refinancing of £1 700 600 a curtailment gain of £1 430 000 and an accounting adjustment

relating to past service casts in pension schemes of £16 378 000 following changes to the scheme rules in the year
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2 RESTRUCTURING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS continued
d} Discontinued Operations and Profit an Disposal

The consideration received and faw value of the assets and habiites of the discontinued operations disposed of during the year and the resulung orofit or loss

on disposal 15 shown below

Power

Mining Property Generation Total
Consideration £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash - - 20000 20,000
Fair value of equity interest retained - 50288 - 50,788
Releasa of the Compary pension obligation - 138000 - 138,000
Total consideration - 188 288 20000 208,288
Recogmised amounts of identifiable assets and habihties disposed
Property, plant and eguipment (note 12) 136 437 - 4936 1313
Investment properties {nate 13} - 273337 - a5y
Investment in joint ventures (note 14¢) - 2,079 - 20m
Inventories 31125 - - 1S
Trade and other recevables 21841 15359 - 31,200
Restricted cash 8985 - - 8,985
Cash 7430 1907 1576 10913
Borrowings {62 920} {76 249} - {139,169}
Corporation tax (100} 29 - (Fall
Trade and other payablas {109,593} (17233) {1,075) {127,901)
Provisions {note 22} {94 118) (6748} - {101,166}
Derwvative financial instrements - (498} - (458)
Retirement benefit obligations {note 25) (94,071} - - {94.071)
Total identifiable net (habilities)/assets {155 284) 192 043 5437 42,19
Profit/{loss) on disposal 65 284 {3755) 14563 166,092
Costs associated with disposal {15.215)
Profit on disposal after costs associated with disposal 150,877

Costs associated with dispesal comprise legal and adviser fees, refinancing fees and salary and personnel costs Restructuring fees relating to the disposat of the
Minmng, Property and Insurance businesses all arose from the Restructuring and it has not been possible 10 allocate these costs to specific disposal groups Disposal

costs associated with the Power Generation busimess amounted to £1,374,000

3 OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS)

Restated
Year ended Year ended
December December
2mz2 201
Note £000 £000
Operating profit/|loss) before tax 1s stated after charging
Staff costs = continuing operations s 3,828 3434

Comparatives have been restated for the reasons shown in note 1 to the financial statements
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4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Restated
Year ended Year ended
December December
2012 2011
£000 £000
Administrative expenses {4,839} (5725}
Other operating income 4,947 4140
(ther operating Income and expenses 108 {1585}
Comparatives have been restated for the reasons shown in note 1 to the financial statements
5 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
The average number of persons {including the Board of Directors) employed by the Group duning the year was
Broup
Year Year
ended ended
December December
2012 2011
Number Number
Deep mining 1,946 2026
Surface mining 455 517
Property n 26
Qther 32 36
2,467 2,605
The average monthly number of employees relates to both continuing and discontinued operations during the year The average number of employees of the Group
and Company 1n 2013 15 expected to be 4 {excluding non-executive directors)
Total staff costs for the Group were
Group Company
Restated Restated
Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
December December December December
2012 wnn 2012 2m
Staff costs (including the Board of Directors) ~ continuing activities only E000 £000 £000 £000
Wages and salanes 1448 1810 1,448 1,810
Social secunity costs Falil 185 210 185
Pension and post retirement benefit costs 1] 153 80 153
Termination benefits 546 - 546 -
Share-based payments 1,544 1286 154 1286
3828 3,434 3Bz 3434

Comparatives have been restated for the teasons shown in note 1 to the financial statements
The staff costs shown above relate only to continuing activities

Directors’ Remuneration and interests

Detailed information relating to directors remuneration and their interests m share options 1s indicated by * in the Directors Remuneration Repart and forms part

of these financial statements
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6 FINANCE COSTS

Restated
Year Year
ended ended
December December
amz 201
£000 £000
Interest expense
—Facility fees {465) (361)
Finance costs {465) {361)
Comparatives have been restated for the reasons shown in note 1 to the financial statements
7 AUDITORS  REMUNERATION
During the year the Group obtained the following services from rts auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at costs as detalled below
Year Year
ended ended
December December
2012 201
£000 £000
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company auditars for the audit of the parent Company and the consolidated accounts 135 75
Fees payable to the Campany auditors and its associates for gther services
—The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant te legislation 195 244
—The auditing of the accounts of any associate of the Company 50 -
— Audit related assurance services 130 45
— All other assurance related services Y] 17
— Tax advisory services 790 LY
—Tax compliance services & -
— All other non-audit services 2330 -
3,757 462

All cther non-audst services relate predominantly to the refinancing and restructunng of the Group during the year

From time to time, the Group employs PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on assignments additional to therr statutory audit duties where their expertise and experience
with the Group are important They are awarded assignments on a competitive basis The Audit Committee reviews non-audit assignments quarterly, and approves
all assignments above a predetermmed cost threshold

8 TAX
Restated
Year Year
ended ended
December December
2m2 20m
Analysis of tax {credit)/charge m the year £000 £000
Corporation tax ~ current year - 700
Deferredtax  —prior year {1t} -
Tax charge (10} 700

Comparatives have been restated for the reasons shown in note 1 to the financial statements
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The tax for the year is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) The differences are explained below

Year Year

ended ended

December December

2012 2011

£000 EODO
Loss before tax {349) (1,948)
Loss before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5% {85} (516)

Etfects of

Expenses not deducted and income not chargeable for tax purposes 143 1216
Deferred tax not recogmsed (40} -
Group relief not paid for {17} -
Prior year deferred tax movement {10} -
Total tax {credit)/charge {10) 700

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 23% {2011 25%) A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate
fram 26% to 25% {effective from 1 Apnil 2012) was substantively enacted on 5 July 2011 and further reducttons to 24% (effective from 1 April 2012} and 23%
{effective from 1 April 2013} were substantively enacted on 26 March 2012 and 3 July 2012 respectively The potential deferred tax assets are therefore shown

at23%

The March 2013 Budget announced that the rate will further reduce to 20% by 2015 in addition to the planned reduction to 21% by 2014 previously announced

in the December 2012 Autumn Statement

Deferred tax assets and liabuhvies are offset when there 1s a legally enforced right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxes relate to the same fiscal authonty At December 2012 the Group had neither deferrad tax assets nor deferred tax hiabilities but in 2011 the Group's deferred tax
hability in respect of fixed assets was all offset in this way apart from the hability of £1,171,000 in respect of revaluation gains on investment properties expected

to be recovered through future use

As at As at

December December

2012 201

£000 £000

Deferred tax asset— to be recovered after more than 12 months - 31509
Deferred tax hiabilty — 1o be paid after more than 12 months - 171
Net deferred tax asset - 30 338

The movement an the net deferred tax assetis shown below

Year Year

ended ended

December December

mz 201

£000 £000

At the beginning of the year 30,338 33,209
Ampunts tharged to the consolidated income statement {discontinued aperations) {22,213 {2761)
Amounts charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (B.125) {110)
At the end of the year - 30,338
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8 TAX continued

A deferred tax asset of £mil {2011 £31 509,000} has been recognised to the extent that it 1s expected to be recovered based on forecasts of future taxable profits
Further deferred tax assets have not been recognised owing to the uncertainty as to therr recoverability If these deferred tax assets were recognised, the total asset

would be £3,387 000{2011 £152 453 00D} as set out below

As at As at As at As at

December Decomber December Dacember

012 mz 2011 2011

Total Total Total Total

amount potential amount potential

recognised asset recogrised asset

£000 £000 £000 F000

Fixed asset timing differences - - 1y 47264
Other iming differences - 683 - 1119%
Tax losses - 2,538 22139 57,683
Retirement benefit habilities - 166 8125 36,176
Cash flow hedges - - 1245 137
Net deferred tax asset - 3387 30338 152 454

The fixed asset timing difference recogmsed in 2011 related to the deferred tax liability ansing from the directors’ estimate of the proportion of revaluation gains
on investment properties which 1t was anticipated would be recovered through use No tax hiability was recegnised in relation to the balance of the gain which
was expected to be realised through sale, due to the fact that the Group had unrecogrised capital losses brought forward of £350 000,000

The movement on the deferred tax asset charged to equity during the year 1s as follows

2m2 2011
£000 £000
Movement on deferred tax asset refating to retirement benefit habilities in the period (8,125} -
Movement on deferred tax asset relating to cash flow hedges i the period - {110}
Deferred tax asset movemeni charged to equily (8,125) {110}

The Company has no recognised deferred tax in 2012 {2011 £nil} but has a potenuial deferred tax asset of £3,387,000 in respect of the Blenkinsopp pension scheme

(£166 000) other trming differences {£683 000) and unused tax losses (£2 538 000}

9 LOSSFORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR THE PARENT ENTITY

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company s income statement and statement of comprehensive income have not been included

separately in these financial statemants The loss for the finannial year was £302 437000 (2011 £3 824 00}

10 DIVIDENDS
No dividends have been paid or proposed in refation to 2012 or 2011

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

{Loss)/earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attrsbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue

and ranking for dividend during the year

There 1s no dilutive effect of share options potenuially 1ssuable under the Group s employee share opticn plans

Year Year

ended ended

December Becember

amz2 201

£000 £000

Loss from continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent (339} (2 B46)
{Less)/profit from discontinued operattons attributable to owners of the parent (5,985) 57887
{Loss)/profit for the year {6,325) 55 241
Weighted average number of shares used for basic earnings per share calculation 299,293,160 299 298160
Ouutive effect of share options - -
Weighted average number of shares used for diluted earmings per share calculation 299,293,160 299 298 160
Basic and diluted {loss)/earnings per share {pence} 21) 185

Basic and diluted earnings per share as adjusted to exclude tax, for the year 15 5 3 pence {2011 19 4 pence)
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12 DPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EGUIPMENT

Surface mine
Deep mines development
ncluding and
Operating surface Plant and restoration
proparties works equipment Sub total assets Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
Al January 2012 19727 889 008 a0822 389 557 61227 1,050 784
Additions a7 18 284 1485 19816 22 961 42777
Disposals {68B] {45 304) [17 552} {63 544] - (63 544)
Transfer from investment properties {note 13} 3,109 - - 3109 - 3109
Transfer to investment properties {note 13) {21 000) - - {21 000} - {21 000)
Disposal of Power Generanon business {note 2) - - {12 460} {12 4B0) - {12 460)
Disposals ansing from Group Restructuring {note 2} {1195} (861 988) {52,295) 1915,478) {84188) {999 666)
At Dacember 2012 - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation
At January 2012 4607 694,247 67208 766 062 35482 801 544
Charge for the year [discontinued operations) 149 39599 1792 41540 15818 57358
Impairment charge (discontinued operations) - 78015 - 78016 - 78 16
Disposals (688) {45,304} 116 105) {62097 - {62,097}
Transfer te Investment properties (note 13} {4 D6} - - {4 068) - (4 068}
Msposal of Power Generation business [note 2} - - [7524) (7 524) - (7524}
Disposals ansing from Group Restructuning (note 2} - {766 558) {45 371) (811 929) {51300) (863 229}
At December 2012 - - - - - -
Nst book amount
At December 2012 - - - - - -
Cost
At January 2011 23984 857,365 89,470 970819 55 416 1026 235
Additrans 13 0174 1618 31805 719 384996
Disposals {167 - {8797) [8,964) {1380) {10 344)
Transfers - 1489 (1 4B9) - - -
Transfer to investment properties 4103} - - {4 103} - {4103)
At December 2011 19,727 889 608 80822 589 557 61227 1050784
Accumulated depreciation
At January 2011 s444 655 848 73,374 733 666 19741 753 407
Charge for the year {discontinued operations) 163 37390 2946 40 499 17421 57620
Transfers - i009 {1009) - - -
Disposals - - {9103) {8,103) (1380) {9483)
At December 2011 4 607 694,247 57 208 766 062 35482 801544
Net book amount:
At December 2011 15120 194 761 i3 674 223495 25745 249 240
At January 2011 . 19540 201517 16 096 237153 35675 272,828

Surface mme development and restoration assets net book amounts include capitalised pre-coaling costs of £ail (2011 £9,216 000} restoration/rehabihitation costs
of £nil {2011 £14 223 000) and deferred stnpping costs of £ml {2011 £2 306 000) These are depreciated over the estmated tonnage of the recoverable reserves
as these are extracted

Surface mine asset addittons in the peniod of £22,961,000{2011 £7191 000} comprise £4 409,000{2011 £2 606 000 for pre-coaling expenditure £16 449 000 {2011
£3,685,000} recognised as a non-current asset on tha creation of a corresponding prowision for restaration and rehabilitation costs and £2 103 000{2011 £900 000)
of deferred stnpping costs Upon the Restructuning surface mine development and restoration assets were transferred to the Mining Division

included in operating property, plant and equipment is £ni {2011 £9 131 600} of capitalised wark in progress which 1s not depreciated
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12 OPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
Assets under finance leases disclosed under deep mines including surface works and plant and equipment have the following net book amgunts

As at As at

Oecember December

F1F 2m

£000 £000

Cost - 21894
Aggregate depreciation - {14 999)
Net book amount - 6 895

In accordance with IAS 36, operating property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if there 15 any ndication that their carrying amount may not be
recaverable Animpairment review has been performed for the aperating property plant and equipment of the deep and surface mining business as a result of
movements in the coal price and other assumptions The estimates of recovarable amount were based on value-in-use calculations using a pre-tax discount rate
of 10% These calcutations use cash fiow projections based en financial budgets approved by management covering a five year period, but reflecting the anticipated

shortened hife of Daw Mill

Prior ta the Restructuring and followng the announcement af plans to consult on the closure of Daw Mill colliery s 2014 an impairment charge of £78 016 000

was booked in respect of fixed assets

Sensttivity analysis

No further impairment of operating property, plant and equipment would be recognised by the Group if any of the fallowing oceurred i isolaticn
* The revised estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flows was increased to over 20%

* The estimated long-term price of coal of $97/tonne assumed in calculating the discounted cash flows decreased by 7 5% or

» The estimated level of annual production assumed in calculating the discounted cash flows decreased by 5%

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at As at

Decamber Cacember

a0mz2 M

At valuation — Group £000 £000
At the beginning of the year 50,640 314 237
Additions 5,263 4774
Drsposals (1.224) {53,718)
Fair value increase 16,188 3325
Transfer from operating property, plant ang equipment at net book amount {note 12} 16,932 4103
Transfer to operating property, plant and equipment at net book amount {nots 12} {3.109} -
Transter to non-current assets held for sale (note 18) (5.433} (16 500}
Revaluation of property transferred to investment properties 10 4519
Disposal of investment properties on Restructuning of Group {note 2) (273,357) -
At the end of the year - 250,640

The properties were valued at December 2011, in accerdance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, by three firms,
BNP Paribas Real Estates Smuths Gore and Bell Ingram, all mdependent firms with relevant experience of valuations o this nature The valuairon excludes any deduction
of rehabilitation and restoration costs which are stated within provisions in the balance sheet At Restructunng an internal review of the valuation of investment properties
was carried out The review was undartaken by suitably quahfied employees with both appropriate professional qualification [FRICS/ MRICS} and a comprehensive

knowledge of these properties and associated markets The valuation basis and assumptions were consistent with those used as at 31 December 2013
Upon Restructuring ivestment properties were transferred to the Property Division

Key assumptions within the basis of fair value were

+ The sites will be cleared of redundant bulldings levelled and prepared ready for development

* The values are on a basis that no material environmental contaminatien exists an the subject or adjoining sites, or where this 13 present the sites will be

remediated to a standard consistent wath the intended use the casts for such remediation betng separately provisioned

* No deduction or adjustment has been made in relation to clawback provisions or other taxes which may be payable in certan events

Had the above investment properties been carried at historic cost rather than fair value their valwe would be £nil (2011 £80 630,000)

Land and buildings with a value of £nl (2011 £282 335 000) are subject to fixed charges to cover borrowings against those assets and £nil (2011 £6 330 009) are subject
1o resirictions as they cover insurance requirements Other property plant and equipment was subject to floating charges to caver liabikties due to bank borrowangs




14 INVESTMENTS

{a} Investment in subsidiaries
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Company £00¢
Cost:

At January 2012 473224
Additions 250778
Disposals (250 779)
At December 2012 413,224
Prowvision for impairment

At January 2012 172914
Additians 296 936
At December 2012 469,850
Net book amount:

At December 2012 3374
Cost:

At January and December 2011 473 224
Provision for impairment:

At January and December 2011 {172 914)
Net book amount:

At December 2011 300,310

During the year the Company entered mto the following transactions involving its subsidiary undertakings

{1} itsindirect subsidiary undertaking, Harworth Power Limited disposed of 100% of its interest in Harworth Power (Generation) Linited for consideratian

of £20,000 000

{n) as part of the Restructuring, disposed of its direct and indirect interest in the followsng principal subsidiary undertakings

Harworth Group Ltd
Miming Services Limited
UK Coal Miming Lid
Centethnology (UK} Lid
EQS Inc Ltd

Harworth Estates [Agncultural Land) Limited
Harworth Estatas (Waverley Prince) Ltd

Potland Burn Lermted

{mn} additionally the Company agreed a put and call option with Mine Holdings to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of its subsidiary undertaking Harworth
Insurance Company Limiied Exercise of the option 1s conditional upon obtaiming FSA consent or the parties agreeing that such consent 1s no longer required

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for imparment As permitted by section 616 of the Companies Act 2006, where the relief afforded under
section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 applies cost s the aggregate of the norminal value of the relevant number of the Company's shares and the fair value of any

ather consideration given to acquire the share capital of the subsidiary undertakings
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14 INVESTMENTS continued
{a) Investmentn subsidiaries continued
Particulars of the Group undertakings at December 2012 are as follows

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

Description capital held by

of shares the Company

Company name Actity held %
Harworth Insurance Company Limited* Insurance Ordinary 100
Harworth Properties Limited** Property investment Ordinary 100
UK Ceal Holdings Limited Non trading Ordinary 100
Harworth Guarantee Company Ltd Non trading Orcinary 100
Harworth Trustees Limited Bormant Ordinary 100
Harworth Secretanat Services Limited (formarly UK Coal Secretanat Services Limited}  Company secretana’ services Ordinary 100

* sa0 () on previous page —the Company has granted & call option to UK Coat Mine Holdings Limited to acquire this entity
The Group owns 100% of the 1ssued share capital and voting nghts of all of the above companies except those marked * "where the holding 1s indirect
All of the above companies are incorporated in England and Wales They are all ncluded in the Group s consolidated results

(b) Investmentin associates

Group Company
£000 £000
Cost
At January 2012 - -
Additions 50 288 50 288
At December 212 50,288 50,288
Net book amount
At December 2012 50,268 50,288
Not book amopunt
At December 2011 - -

In December 2012, as part of the Restructuring, the Company acquired a 24 9% interest in Harworth Estates Property Group Limited a private company incorporated
n England and Wales at a far vatue of £50 288 000 {see note 2} The Group has not recorded 1is 24 9% share of losses i the three week penod post Restuciunng
on the grounds of matenahty The Group accounts for its investment m Harworth Estates Property Group Limited as an associate because it considers that it has
significant coniro! over that entity due to 1ts 24 9% shareholing and representation on the Harworth Estates Board

The Group’s share of net assets of Harworth Estates has been reduced by £5 Om ta reflect the fact that under the terms of the Shareholder Agreement the first
£5 Om of dividend income due to the Company will be paid to the Pension Schemes

The Group’s share of the results of 1ts assocrate, and 1ts share of the assets {including goodwill and habilities) are as follows

Interast hald
Country of Assets Liabihities Revenues Profit  atperiod end
mncorparation £000 006 E0DD £000 “h
2012
Harworth Estates Property Group Limited England and Wales 3131 {91 45%) - - 249

Total 313477 {91 451) - -
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14 INVESTMENTS continued

{c] Investmentin joint ventures

Up until the date of Restructuring, the Group held 50% of the 1ssued ordinary shares in UK Strategic Partnership Linited as a joint venture company with Strategic
Sttes Limited for the development of certain nvestment properties The first development was a1 the Advanced Manufaciuring Park at Waverley South Yorkshire

The Group also held 50% of the 1ssued ordinary shares in Bates Regeneratton Limited as a joint venture company with Banks Praperty Limited far the development
of an investment property at Blyth, Northumberland

2012 20m

£000 £000
At the beginning of the year 2979 3410
Share of loss {900} (431)
Disposal of jaint venture s upon restructuring {note 2) {2.0m9) -
At the end of the year - 2979

The Group's share of the results of its joint ventures which are included within discontinued operations and its share of the assets (including goodwtll and liabihities)
are as follows

Country of Assets Liahir R Profit/{loss) Interest held
meorporation £000 £000 £000 £000 %
212
UK Strategic Pactnership Limited England and Wales - - 493 286 -
Bates Regeneration Limited England and Wales - - - {1186} -
Total - - 493 {900}
201
UK Strategic Partnershep Limited England and Wales 3362 (2784) 830 [454) 50
Bates Regeneration Limited England and Wales 3570 {1169) - 23 50
Total 6932 {3 953) 830 {431)

The joint venture companies are unhsted

{d) Avallable for sale investments
In December 2012 as part of the Restructuning the Company acquired a 33% of the voting nights, and 90% of the economic rights of UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited,
a company incarporated in England and Wales, at a fair value of £1

Ordinarily 1t 1s presumed that where an nvestor holds 20% or more of the voung power of an entity it has significant power over that entity Management has concluded
that post restructurning it has no control or significant mfluence over Mine Holdings and therefore has accounted for the investment as an available for sale investment
rather than as an investment in an associate under IAS 39, Fnancial instruments Recognition and measurement™ The main considerations by management were

a  Majonty voting 1s held by the Employee Benefit Trust with the Company retaining imited rights under the Shareholders agreement,

b Mine Holdings mantans its own independent Board, none of whom has served as Directars of the Company and are explicitly prohibited from acting in the
interests of the Company

¢ Alithough the Company holds a 90% economic interest in Ming Holdings the large pension deficit means Mine Holdings 1s unlikely to pay dividends in the near
future and therefore the economic rights lack substance, and

d There 15 no economic incentive given that future dvidends and investment value are hmited unalf the Pension Schemes deficits are cleared
These factors support the canclusion to value the mvesiment at £1 as an investment available for sale

Management wll reassess on a regular basis the classification of the investment in Mine Holdings in accordance with International Accounting Standards
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15 OTHER RECEIVABLES — NON-CURRENT
Amounts classed as non-current are as follows

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
December December December Cecember
212 2m mnz o
£000 £000 £000 £000
Other recevables - 3157 - -

Other recervables include £nil (2011 £2,422,000} of leng-term deposits held as security for surface mines Long-term deposits held as secunty for surface mmes wera
transferred to the Mining Division upon Restructuring

16 INVENTORIES

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
December December December December
w2 20m 2012 20m
£000 £000 £000 £000
Coal stocks - 15,238 - -
Spares and cansumables - 19516 - -
- 34754 - -

The cast of spares and consumables recognised as an expense and included in expenses within discentinued activities amounted to £39,123 000 {2011 £29 165 000)
A net realisable value provision credit of £nil (2011 £nil} against coal stocks was included mn cost of sales in the year

All nventones were transferred to the Mining Division upon Restructuring

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

December December December Dacember

2012 201 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade receivables - 21589 - -
Less provision for impairment of trade recevables - (79} - =
Net trade receivables - 21520 - -
QOther recaivables 136 1161 336 B4
Prepayments and accrued ncome - 3621 - -
Amounts owed by related parties (note 32) 3.567 - 3,567 -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - - 216 243
3,903 26302 3903 216 307

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate to thesr fair value due to the short ime frame over which the assets are realised All of the Group's
and Company s receivables are denomated in sterhng

Due to the nature of the Group's activities prior to Restructuring, a substantial amount of the Group's sales were to a hmited number of large industrial customers within
the power generation sector Whilst this concentration provided an increased credit nisk, due to the financial strength of the power sector management did not
believe that this was significant

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reperting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recewvables as disclosed in note 23 The Group and Company do not
hold any collateral as secunty
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17 TARADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — CURRENT continued
Movements on the Group provisions for impairment of trade recervables are as follows

Group

2012 2011

£000 £000
At the beginning of the year kL] 97
Recewvables wriiten off dering the year as uncollectable - (12}
Unused amounts reversed - (B}
Unused amounts transferced upon Restructuring {79) -
At the end of the year — 79

The creation and releases of the provision for impaired receivables have either been included in cost of sales or other operating income and expenses in the
conschdated income statement Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally wnitten off when there 1s no expectation of any additional recoveries

The other classes of assets within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

Amounts owed by related parties includes £3 567 000 due from UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited and its subsidianes as noted in note 33 {post balance sheet events)
the Mirung Division suffered a major underground fire at 1ts Daw Mill colliery in February 2013 On 7 March UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited announced that it was
closing Daw Mill colliery These events may have animpact on UK Coat Mine Holdings Limited’s ability to settle the amounts due to the Group and the Company

As of December 2012, there were provisions against trade recevables of £l (2011 £79 000) which were impaired The ageing of these receivables 15 as follows

Group
As at As at
December December
2012 2011
£000 £000
Over 6 months - 79

As of December 2012, trade recewvables of £ml {2011 £21 186 000) were fully performing

As of December 2012 trade recevables of £mil (2011 £334 000} were pastdue but not impaired These related to a number of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default and consequently there were no indications at the reporting date that they will not meet their payment obligation The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables 1s as fallows

Group
As at As at
Decamber December
212 2m
£000 £000
Up to 3months - 213
Over 3 months - 121
- 334
18 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
a) Assets of disposal group classified as held for resale
Group
As at As at
December December
22 201
£000 £000
Investment properties 5433 16 600
Trade and other receivables 37 -
Cash and cash equivalents 14973 -

Total 21303 16,600
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18 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE continued
b} Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for resale
Group

As at Asat
December December
m2 20m
£000 £000

Trade and other payables 600 -
Provisions 82N -
Remeasurement loss on carrying value of Harworth Insurance Company Limited e -

Total 16,653 -

The assets and fiabilities of the disposal group held for resale at the year end relate 10 Harworth Inswrance Company Limited As descnbed in note 2, the Company
granted a cal! option to UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of its subsidiary undertaking Harworth Insurance Company Limited,
and UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited has granted the Company a put option to require UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited to acquire Harworth lnsurance Company Limited
Exercise of the call option 1s conditional upon obtaining FSA consent or the parties agreeing that such contral s no lenger reguired The consideration for the call
option was £4,650 000

Conditional sales contracts were exchanged during 2011 for the disposal of investment praperties, held within the property reporting segment with fair value of
£16 600,000 The conditions for these sales were not satisfied until 2012 Consequently these properues were classified as assets held for sale and were gresented
separately in the balance sheet in 2011

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
As at Asat As at As at
Dacember Gecember December December
2012 20m 012 2Mm
£000 F000 £000 £000
Cash deposited to caver insurance requirements - 14735 - -
Subsidence security fund - B854 - -
- 23589 - -
Cash held and others cash balances 51 1689 5 419
51 25,278 51 419

Total cash held subject to restrictions to cover insurance and surface damage habilities at the year end amounts to £nil (2011 £23 589 000} Following the granting
of an option for UK Coal Mine Holdings Linwted to acquure the Group s surance business, cash held subject to restnetions o cover msurance and surfate damage
liabilities 15 held within assets classified as held for resale {note 18} In addition to this, security to cover surface damage labdities in the form of an insurance bond
for £mil {2011 £10,000 000)1s i place The subsidence secunty fund was transferrad to the Mining Bivision upon Restructuring

20 BORROWINGS

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

December December December December

ama 211 a2 1

Current £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans overdrafis and finance leases due within one year or on demand

Secured — bank loans and overdrafts - 31007 - -

Finance lease obhgations - 6534 - -

- 3754 - -

Generator loans and prepayments due within one year - 41723 - -

Total borrowings — due within one year or on demand - 79 254 - -
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20 BORROWINGS continued

Groug Company
As at As at As at As at
December December December December
Mmz2 2011 w2 2011
Non-current £000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans overdrafts and finance leases due after more than one year

Secured — bank loans and overdrafts - 15712 - -
Finance Ipase obhigations - 3137 - -
- 18849 - -
Generator loans and prepayments due after more than ane year - 42,386 - -
Total barrowings — due after more than one year - 61235 - -

In April 2012 the Group renewed and extended its banking faciliies with the following principal changes

« Extensions to the matunty of the RCF the Additional Revolving Faciities {"ARF") tha Harworth Estates (Waverly Prince) Limited {*HEWPL"} facility and the EOS
Inc Ltd facility to the end of December 2013 were all agreed,

« The financial profile of the ARF was modified o that the amount available 10 be drawn which was imtially increased to £27 500,000, reduced by £7 500 000 on
30 September 2012 and amortised over the period June 2013 to November 2013 The facility reduced from £20 000,000 to £12,500 000 for a short period at the
end of 2012, before reverting to £20 000 000

Over and above these extended bank facihities the term of a further £10,000,000 of unsecured stand-by facility frorn Peel Holdings Finance Limited was extended
which was available for drawing in the event that bath the RCF and part of the ARF were fully drawn This facility which amortised gradually over the period August
2013 to November 2013, was also extended to mature in November 2013

During 2012 the Group borrowed an additional £28 541 000 from its bankers but at Restructuring all bank loans were transferred to the Property division and all
finance lease and generator loans were transferred to the Mining Division

Atthe year end and further to the disposal of the mining and property businesses the Group no longer has any bank facilities finance leases or generator lvans

As at December 2011 the carrying value of the Graup’s external borrowings which consisted of floating rate and fixed rate short-term borrowings approximated
to far value At that date all of the Group s borrowings were denominated in sterling

As at December 2011 bank loans and overdrafts due within one year or on demand were stated after deduction of unamortised borrowing costs of £989 000
Non-current bank foans and overdrafts were stated after deduction of unamortised borrowing costs of £l

The Group was party to certain contracts for coal supply which resulted in increased cash flows to the business in the past four years These benefits, together with
accrued implied interest were treated as generator loans and prepayments, and were to be be repaid either out of later revenue or as separate repayments which
commenced in October 2010 and end in 2015 Interest was charged an these outstanding amounts using actual or imphied nterest rates The average interest rate
on these balances was 11% All generator loans and prepayments were transferred to the mining business upon Restrutturing

The bank loans and overdrafts were secured by way of fixed and floating charges over certain assets of the Group

The maturity profile of the Group s drawn and undrawn external bank facilities 1s as follows

202 20

£000 £000

Expining within 1 year - 81253
Expiring between 1 and 2 years - 157112
- 96 965

These facilities were all nominally at fioating interest rates but interest rate swaps/caps wath principal value of £rul (2011 £67 150 000) were held to convert an
element of these horrowings to fixed/capped interest rates
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20 BORROWINGS continued
The matunity profile of the Group’s bank and finance lease borrowings 1s as follows

nm2 2m
Generator Generator

loans and Finance loans and Finance
Debt prepayments leases Total Debt prepayments leases Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E0DQ
Withm 1 year - - - - 31007 41723 6534 79264
Between 1 and 2 years - - - - 15712 17461 2253 35426
Between 2 and b years - - - - - 24825 884 25809
- - - - 45719 84109 9671 140 499

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

As at Asat

December December

w012 2011

£000 £000

Within 1 year - 1176

Between 1 and 5 years - 313317

- 10513
Future finance charges on finance leases - {842)

Present value of finance lease habilities - 9671

Lease habihties are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default Lease liabilities transferred to the mining business
upon Restructuring Post Restructuring the Company continues to guarantee the finance lease hahilities which were transferred 10 the Mining Divesion

Following the Daw Mill fire in February 2013 and the resuttant habilities that this created for UK Coal Mine Haldings Limited {see note 33 — post batance sheet events)
there 1s an increased nisk that UK Coal Mine Haldings Limited will be unable 1o honour the indemnities given to the Group in the immediate future As such the Group
has entered into negotiations ¢ secure a one year bank factty that would enable it to meet these hiabilities as they fall due The Group has received a credit approved
Heads of Terms for a suitable faciity and based on this the Board beheves that an appropnate facility will be entered into The Group would look to repay the loan and
raise sufficient funds to cover any of these habilities not yet settled from the proceeds of an equity raising dursng 2013 The Board has received an informal commitment
to underwrite an equity raising which prowides comfort that the facility can be repaid

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
As at As at As at Asat
December December December December
2012 2011 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current
Trade payables 1281 51 688 1,281 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary urdertakings - - 185 158 409
Taxation and social security 38 14 262 k2 -
Accruals and deferred tncome 8,072 47809 8,072 10384
9,697 113,759 9,862 168793
Non-current

Trade payables - 736 - -
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22 PROVISIONS

Transfer to
At hatilties At
January Provided Rel d Utilised Unwinding On disposal held for December
amz i year In year nyear of discount of business resale mz
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000
Employer and public liabiltties gas2 1208 - {1390) - - (8271) -
Surface damage 16 492 5774 - {7223) 286 {15 329) -
24944 6983 - {8613} 286 {15,329} {8,271) -
Claims 15 1 500 - - - {1515) - -
Redundancy 445 31013 - {2,783) - 129} - [T
Restaration and closure costs
of surface mines 41159 18124 {326) (3 0B4) 978 {56 851} - -
Restaration and closure costs
of deep mines
~ shaft treatment and pit top 9646 2700 - 81) 190 [12 455} - -
- sposl heaps 2484 - - (224 LY:] {2,308} - -
— ground/groundwater
contamination 10077 2313 - - 189 (12 579} - -
Total 88770 34633 (326} {14,785) 1691 (101 166} 8271) 546
Company
Redundancy - 546 - - - - - 546
Total - 546 - - ~ - - 546
In accordance with [AS 37 Provisions contingent habilities and contingent assets” discounting has not been applied against the insurance provisions i respect
of employer and public labilities
The total of provisions created net of provisions released s £34 307000 (2011 £13 088,000)
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows
Group Company
As at As at As at As at
December December December December
012 201 2012 201
£000 E000 £000 £000
Current 546 13 480 546 -
Non-current - 75,290 - -
546 B8 70 546 =

All provisions save for £546 000 relating 1o redundancy and £8 271,000 transferred to habilities held for resale have been transferred to the Mining Division upon
Restructuring

The nature of the Group s obligations and an indicatien of the uncertainties surrounding each of the above prowisions are provided below

Employer and Public Liabilities

Provisions are made for current and estimated obhgations in respect of claims made by employees contractors and the general public relating to aceident or disease
as a result of the business activities of the Group These relate primanly to the claims held by the Group's captive insurance company Harworth Insurance Company
Lirmted Ownership over land and buildings and dedicated cash deposits as set out in notes 13 and 19, has been granted to cover these provisions
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22 PROVISIONS continued

Surface Damage

Proviston 1s made for the Group's hability to compensate for subsidence damage ansing from past mining operations Claims can be lodged by the public up to six
years after the date of the relevant damage The estimate 1s based on hustorical claims expenience following a detalled assessment of the nature of the damage
foreseen Sacunty over dedicated cash deposits and an insurance bond as set out in note 19, has been granted to cover these provistans

Claims

Where surface mine sites owned by the Group are mined by external contracters and mining condrtions vary fram those specified in the contract, the external
contractors may be entitled to clam further costs incurred Claims are settled with indwidual contractors, generally at the completion of a surface mining site
Ali claims prowisions are based on known mining conditions encountered historical experience and contracted rates

Prowiston has been made in the penod aganst a restoration claim under a lease on a former site

Redundancy
Provision 1s made for current estimated future costs of redundancy and ex-gratra payments to be made where this has been commuricated to those employees concerned

Restoration and Closure Costs of Surface Mines
Provisions are made for the total costs of reinstatement of soil excavation and for surface restoration, such as topsol replacement and landscaping Costs become
payable after coal mining has been completed Further habilities for aftercare can extend after restoration for a penod of up to six years

Restoration and Closure Costs of Deep Mines

Shaft treatment and pit top— provisions are made to meet the Group s liability to fill and cap all mene shafts and return pit top areas to a condition consistent with
the required planning permission No liabilinies will anse untik decommissioning of each indvidual collkery The current pit top prowision reflects existing planning
permissions that require pit areas to be restered to former use, usually agnicultural The Group well where possible, seek planning permission for development use
which, if successful may reduce the expected cost

Spoil heaps — provisions are made for the costs payable to bring spail heaps to a condition consistent with the requred planming permission and to complete approved
restoration schemes An element of spoil heap restoration 15 ongoing although the majority of costs will be mcurred after the decommissioning of a colliery

Fumping casts—there 15 a legal requirement to continue pumping activities at certain mine sites followng closure and for a penod into the future The provision 1s based
on current expenence and the net present value of future cost prajections Pumping costs on conttnuing operations are expensed as incurred

Ground/groundwater contamnation — provisions are made for the Group s legal or constructive obligation to address ground and groundwater pollutants at 1ts operating
sites The provision 1s based on estimates of volumes of contaminated soil and the histonical contract costs of ground contamination treatment Thase costs will
usually be incurred following the decommesstoning of a site

23 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
The Group s principai financial mstruments duning the year cleded denvative financial instruments, irade and other receivables finance leases cash and cash
equivalents, interest bearing barrowings and trade and other payables

Oerivative Financial Instruments

Assels Liabiliies
£000 £000

At the end of the year
Fair value — 2012 - -
Fair valye — 2011 - 5016

Prior to Restructuning the Group used interest rate swaps in order to fix the interest payable on a larga proportion of its vanable raie borrowings The fair value of
derivative financial instruments was valued, where posstble using quoted market prices The fair value of these mstruments equalled the book value at December 2011
There are no existing swaps in place after Restructuring

For those swaps which ware effective cash flow hedges under 1AS 39 the effective portion of their fair value movements was deferred in reserves Exposures were
presented as net positions by a counterparty whenever there was the intention and ability to legally se1off assets and fiabihties

Under IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosures™ all derivative financial imstruments were classed as level 2 as they were not traded in an active market and the fair
value 1s therefore determined through discounting future cash flow
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23 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVES continued
Hedging Relationships
As at December 2012 the Group had no cash flow hedges Prior to Restructuning the Group had cash flow hedges i place up to July 2013 None of these hedging
relationships were effective for hedge accounting purpeses
The movement in the fair value of contracts which were not effective for hedge accounting purposes or which were not designated as cash flow hedges, being
again of £550000{2011 £445 000] in the year 1s presented within finance costs in discontinued aperations (see note 2|
The application of hedge accounting in the year resulted in no movement in reserves (2011 £nil) for effective hedge relationships and no charge to ncome {2011 £372,000)
for the amortisation of reserves for discontinued hedging relationships
In 2010 the Group entered into a nonional pringipal £40 000 000 fixed interest cap agreement at a rate of 4 75% effective between 29 July 2011 and 31 July 2013
The terms of the agreement provided that the sutial notional principal was amortised by £20 000 00O per year At the year end the notional princtpal was £mil
{2011 £35000 000) The agreement was terminated upoan Restructuring
In 2011 the Group entered mto a fixed interest/interest rate cap agreement with a total initial notional principle of £46,000,000 amartising down to £16 500 000
in May 2013 The average fixed interest rate swap elament over the lifetime of the agreement was 38% The agreement was terminated upon Restructuring
As at December 2012 the Group had no fixed interest rate swaps At December 2011 the total notional principal of outstanding fixed interest rate swaps that the
Group was committed to was £32,650,000, with weighted average fixed interest rate of 815% and 0 8 years to maturity
The Company has no interest rate swaps
Other Financial Assets and Liabilities
December 2012 Dacember 2011

Book value Fair value Book valug Fair value
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51 51 25278 25278
Trade and other recevables 3,903 3,903 29653 29639
Liabilities
Bank barrowings - - 46719 6719
Finance lease habilities - - 967 9671
Generator loans and prepayments - - 84109 93,748
Trade and other payahles 9353 9,353 100 233 100 233
Derwvative financial instruments - - 5016 5016

In accordance with IAS 39 the Group classifies the assets and liabilities en the analysis above as “loans and recevables” and other financial abihities™ respectively

At the 2012 and 2011 vear ends the Group did not have any “held to matunity™ or “available for sale” financral assets or “held for trading” financial assets and
habilities as defined by 1AS 39

Atthe yearend the Company held cash and cash equivalents of £51 000 (2011 £419,000)

The carrying value of the Group s external borrowings, which consisted of floating rate and fixed rate short-term borrowings, approximated to far velue Detads of the
maturity profile of these financial iabshties are included in note 20

The carrying value of other long-term recewables approximates to fair value

For other financial assets and liabilities, which are all short-term in nature the carrying value approximates to fair value
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose 1t to a variety of finantial risks including credit nisk and iquidity nsk The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictabrhity of financial markets and seeks to mmimise potentizal adverse effects on the Group s financial performance Historically the Group has used dervative
financial mstruments to hedge certain risk exposures

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury function under policies apprgved by the Board of Directors Group treasury identsfies evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s mining and property businesses The Board pravides written principles for overall risk management as well
as written policies covering specific areas such as credit nisk and investment of excess liquidity

Credit Risk

The Group 18 subject to credit nisk ansing from cutstanding recewvables and committed cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financia! institutions
The Group s pohicy 1§ to manage credit exposure to trading counterparties within defined trading imits All of the Group s significant counterparties are assigned
internal credit imits

The Group is exposed to counterparty credst nsk on cash and cash equivalent balances The Group and Company hold all of their cash depostts with therr principa
bankers

Liquidity Risk
The Group 1s subject to the nisk that it will not have sufficient borrowing facilities to fund its on-going business The Group manages its iquidity requirements with
the use of both short and long-term cash flow forecasts

The net debt positron excluding restnicted cash, of £138 810 000 at the beginming of the year was transferred to the mining and property businesses upon Restructunng
so that at 29 December 2012 the Group had no net debt The Group generated cash from cperating activities and investing activities for the year of £6,567,000
{2011 generated £106 384,000}

The table below analyses the Group s financial babilities which will be settled on a net basis into relevant matunity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual matunity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than EBetween Batween
1 year land2years  2and5years
£000 £000 £000
At December 2012
Trade and other payables 9353 - -
At December 2011
Bank borrowings 36377 16 695 -
Finance lease habilittes 178 24826 N
Generator foans and prepayments 49 348 21,060 27,355
Trade and other payahlas 99 497 738 -
Derivative financial instruments 3291 2289 -

Capital Risk Management

The Group 1S subyect to the nsk that 1ts capital structure will not be sufficient to support the growth of the business The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going cencern in erder to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintam
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 10 shareholders return capital to shareholders issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt

Historically the Group has monitored capital on the basis of the geaning ratio Ths ratio 1s calculated as net debt divided by total equity Net debt 1s caleulated as total
borrewings {including borrowangs as shown in the consolidated balance sheet} less unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

The gearing ratios for the Group at Decernber 2012 and December 2011 were as follows

w2 nm

£000 £000
Total borrowings - 140 499
Less Unrestrcted cash and cash equivalents {note 19) - {1689)
Net debt - 138,810
Total equrty 41929 146 003
Geanng ratio 00% 951%

The gearing ratio has fallen to 0% at the end of 2012 due to the transfer of all borrowings to the mening and property businesses upon Restructuning
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined Contribution Pension Schemes

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes in respect of all employees who jomned after the privatisation date in 1994 Contributiens to defined
contribution schemes in the year amounted to £1 257,000 (2011 £1,425 000)

Defined Benefit Obligations

Prior to the Restructuring that was completed on 10 December 2012 the Group had three pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay Under
the Protected Persons Regulations estabhished on privatisation the Company was as a wholly owning Parent Company, a statutory guarantor of UK Coal Mining
Limited s labiltties to the scheme The majority of the employees within defined benefit schemes were members of ane or other of the two industry wide schemes
Separately the Group and Company has defined benefit abligations in respect of the Blenkinsopp section of the Industry-Wide Mineworkers Pension Scheme
{the Blenkinsopp scheme)

Under the terms of the Restructuring, all of the assets and habilities of the pension schemes {with the exception of the Blenkinsopp scheme) were transferred to the

15

UK Coal Operations Limited section of each of the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme and the Indusiry-Wide Mineworkers Pension Scheme The only

pnincipal employer in respect of these two schemes 1s UK Coal Operations Limited a subsidiary of UK Coal Holdings Limited which 1s not and never has been a
subsidiary of the Company Cansequently the Company has no habiity in respect of the liability of UK Coal Qperations Limited As all of the habilities of UK Coal Mining
Limited have been transferred, whilst the Company continues to guarantee the habilities these are now of £nil value

Prior to Restructuning the Group operated a concesstonary fuel arrangement in the United Kingdom Prowision for concessionary fuel was made to cover the future
retrement costs for those employees who were benefiting as part of thew regular terms of employment, or former ernployees who were benefiting in retirement
Upon Restructuring all obligations in respect of concessionary fuel benefits have transferred to UK Coal Operations Limited and are therefore no longer habilities
of the Group They were never habihties of the Company

The balance sheet amounts in respect of retirement benefit obligations are

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
Oecember December December Decembar
202 2011 2012 2019
£000 E000 £000 £000
Relating to continuing activities

Blenkinsopp 120 592 20 592

Relating to discontinued activities
Industry wide schemes - 100 417 - -
Concessionary fuel - 43 696 - -
720 144 705 120 592

Contributions to defined benefit schemes during the year amounted to £150 878 000 (including the contribution of 75 1% of Harwaorth Estates Property Group Limited

valued at £138,000,000) {2011 £23 836 000) At December 2012 contributions of £867 000 remained unpaid {2011 £2 066,000)

Industry Wide Schemes

The majority of employees within the defined benefit schemes operated by the Group were members of the two industry wide schemes being esther the Industry
Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme ("IWCSSS") or the Industry Wide Mineworkers Pension Scheme {"IWMPS”), bath of which commenced on privatisation
following the Coal Industry Act 1994 The pension schemes are valued annually by qualified independent actuaries for the purposes of IAS 19 and the preparation of
financial statements The assumptions which usually have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are the discountrate which is based on bond
yields and the rates of increases in salanes and pensions The ma assumptions underlying the valuations of the Group sections of each scheme were as follows

As at As at

& December 31 December

m2 201

Discount rate 43%pa 49%pa
Rate of salary increases — IWMPS 20%pa 19%pa
Rate of salary increases — IWCSSS 28%pa 29%pa
Rate of price inflation {RPI) 28%pa 29%pa
Rata of return on equities 58%pa 60%pa
Rate of return on debt 34%pa 1M pa

Rate of tash commutation 00%-250%  200%-250%
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

Year ended Year ended
December December
m2 2011
Longevity at age 60 for current pensioners [years)
IWMPS and IWCSSS
—Men 23-251 225 291
IWCSSS
- Women 274 274
Longevity at age 60 for future pensioners (years)
IWMPS and IWCSSS
- Men 233-258 234-258
IWCSSS
—Women 282 282

IWCSSS pensions m payment are assumed to increase in ine with retail price inflation in respect of service to December 2011 For the IWMPS the assumed pension
increases depend on the penod of service accrual (before April 1997 no increases, after 1997 in line with statutory mimmum increases based on consumer price
inflation] In the case of both schemes, follawing changes in the schemes rules in 2011, future salary increases exceeding the rate of inflation are not taken into
account (RP) n respect of the IWCSSS CPlin respect of the IWMPS) in respect of benefits accrued from service to December 2011

The overall expected rate of return on assets 1s based on an historic view of the yields from equrties and the rates prevailing on applicable bonds at the balance sheet date

The amounts recogmsed in the censolrdated balance sheet are as follows

ma2 m 2010 2008 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of plan assets - 448937 431746 379949 316 464
Present value of funding obligations - {549 354) [566 015) {564 822} 1390 543)
Nat labihty recogrised in the balance sheet - {100,417} {134 268) {184 B73) {74 079}

None of the pension schemes own any shares in the Company

The amounts recognised in the consohdated income statement {within discontinued operations) are

Year ended Year ended

December December

2012 2011

£000 £000
Current service cost {9,431} {12 660)
Interest cost {26,654) {31034)
Expected return on plan assets 2300 28174
Effect of curtailment or settlement - 1430
Past service cost - 14814
(13,054} 724

Current serwice cost and interest cost less expected return on plan assets are included within expenses in note 2 {restructuring and discontinued operations} and the
effect of curtatiment 1s iIncluded in non-trading exceptional items A further £79 175,000 loss {2011 £10633 000 gainy has been reflected in the statement of comprehensive
ncome in the year This represents the net effect of experience and actuanal gains and fosses on the schemes i the year
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In the case of both schemes for service after December 2011 pensions in payment increases will be in ine with the statutery minimum based on consumer price inflation

Year ended Year ended
December December
212 o
Change in assets £000 £000
Farr value of plan assets at the start of the year 443,937 431746
Expacted return on plan assets 230 28174
Actuarial gains/{lossas) on asseis 19,654 17272}
Contnbution of 75 1% of Harworth Estates Properiy Group Limited {note 2} 138,000 -
Employer contributions 11,292 22 495
Plan particrpants’ contribuiions 3365 3044
Benefits pand {23,635) {19 250}
Disposal ansing from Group Restructuring {note 2} {620,708) -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - 448937
The major categories of the schemes’ assets are as follows
As at Asat
December December
2012 201
£006 £000
Equity secenties - 289253
Debt securities - 159 684
- 448 937
The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £42,729,000{2011 £10,802 000)
Year ended Year ended
December December
202 2011
Change in defined benefit chligations £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the stars of the year (549,354} {566 015}
Current service cost (9.431) (12 660)
Interest cost {26,654) {31 034)
Plan participants’ contributions (3,385} {3 044)
Curtalment gain - 1430
Actuanal {loss)/gain {88,873) 27905
Benefits paid 23,635 19 250
Past service cost - 14 814
Drsposal ansing from Group Restructuning {note 2) 664,062 -
Present value of defined benefit abligation at the end of the year - {549,354)
Year ended Year ended
Dacember December
012 2011
Analysis of the movement of the balance sheet liabihty £000 £000
At the start of the year (100,417} {134 269)
Total amounts recognised in the income statement {within discontinued operations) (13,054} 724
Contributions 138,000 -
Employer contributions 1,282 22 495
Net actuanal {loss)/gain recogmised in the year (79,175) 10633
Disposal ansing from Group Restructunng {note 2} 43,354 -
At the end of the year - {100,417)
Yoar ended Year ended
December December
wmz2 0
Cumulative actuarial gains and logses recogmsed i equrty £000 £000
At the start of the year {67,955} {78 588)
Net actuarial {loss)/gain tn the year {79,175} 10 633
At the end of the year {142,130) |67 955)
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

Yoar ended Year ended

December December

2012 201

Expenence gains and losses £000 £000
Actual return less expected return on schemes assets 19,698 (17272
Experience (losses)/gams ansing on schemes liabihnes {6,853) 5472
Changes in assumptions underlying present value of habilities {92,020) 22423
Net actuanal {loss)igain {79.175) 10633
2012 201 2m0 2009 2008

History of expenence gains/{losses) £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Actual return less expected return on schemes assets 19,698 {17272 17155 31,840 {92 915)
Percentage of year end scheme assets % {4)% 4% 8% [29)%
Experience gains/{losses) ansing on schemes liabilties {6,853) 5472 7,386 (7412) {2 914)
Percantage of the present value of schemes’ habiliues 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

Contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of tnenmal valuations, using the projected credit unit method The most recent valuations for the
purpose of determining contributiens were at 31 December 2009 which were agreed in September 2011

Na contributions will be paid to the schemas in the year ending December 2013 because post Restructuring, Irability for the funding of the schemes has passed
to UK Coal Operations Limited

Blenkinsapp

Blenkinsopp 1s a section of the IWMPS covering the pension arrangements of the vanous companies comprising parts of the former British Coal Blenkinsopp
Colhenies Limited was sold by the Group in 1998 However it has since gone into iquidation and the retirement liabiliies have revearted to the Group and Company
The hiability as at December 2012 s £720 000 {2011 £592 000}, employer s contributions for the year were £215 000{2011 £192 000}, the ameunt recogmised in the
income statemnent is £53,000 (2011 £64,000) {current service costs £15 000 (2011 current service cost £16 G00) and interest cost less expecied return on plan assets
£38 000(2011 £48,000}} and the actuaral loss recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income 18 £290 000 {2011 gain £132,000) Cumulative actuanal gains
recognised in equity for this Blenkinsopp section were £327,000 (2011 £617000)

These are the anly defined benefit obhigations held by the Company

Concessionary Fuel

The Group operated a concessionary fuel arrangement i the UK up until the date of Restructuning Provisten for concessionary fuel was made to cover the future
retvement costs for those employees who currently benefit as part of their regular terms of employmsnt, or former employees wha are benefiting in retirement
This relates only to employees who transferred under privatisation A 1% annual allowance was made to reduce the provision for employees who were expetied
te be unable to take the benefits

An actuarial valuation for the purpose of IAS 19 was carried out by an independent actuary at Cecember 2012 1n order to estabhsh the value of the scheme habilities
to be transferred at the date of Restructuning The major assumptions used by the actuary were

Year ended Year ended
Deceamber December
am2 20
Discount rate 3% pa 49%pa
Inflatign assumption 28%pa 29%pa
The amounts recogmised in the balance sheet are as follows
2 200i 2010 2009 2008
£000 £000 £00D £000 £000
Net hability recogrised in the balance sheet - {43,696) |36 482) {34 879) (29277)
The amounts recognised In the consohdated mcome statement are
Year ended Year ended
December December
202 2011
£000 £000
Current service cost {470} {476}
Interest cost 2,119) {1988}
Past service cost - 1564

(2589) (900}




25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

COALFIELORESQURCES PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012 79

Current service cost and interest cost are included within discontinued activities A further Joss of £5 803 000 {2011 £7 463 000 loss) has been reflected in the
statement of comprehensive income 1n the year This represents the net effect of experience and actuarial gains and losses an the schemes in the year

Year ended Year ended
December December
an2 20m
Analysis of the movement of the balance sheet liability £000 £000
Concessionary fuel reserve at the start of the year (43,696) (36482}
Current service cost (470) (876)
Benefits paid 1o former employees during the year 131 1149
Interest cost {2,119) {1,988}
Actuanal loss {5,803) (7 463)
Past service cost - 1564
Disposal anising fram Group Restructuning (see note 2} 50,717 -
Concessionary fuel reserve at the end of the year - 143 696)
The valuation of the balance sheet hability has been based on market prices for the related coal products at the end of the year
Yoar ended Year ended
December December
2012 2011
Cemulative actuanial gains and losses recogtised in equrty £000 £000
At the start of the year {17.823) {10 360}
Net actuarial loss n the year {5803) (74B3)
At the end of the year {23,626) {17 823)
Yoar ended Year ended
Decembar December
mz2 2011
Experence gains and losses £000 £000
Expenence loss on concessianary tuel reserve {2.041) {6 795)
Changes in assumptigns underlying present value of hablities (3.762) (668)
Total amount in statement of comprehensive income {5803} {7 463)
2 2m 2010 2009 2008
History of expenence gains and losses E00D £000 EO0D £000 £000
Expenience (loss)/gan on concessionary fuel reserve {2,041} {6 795) 942 3559 {8,510}
Percentage of concessonary fuel reserve 5)% 116)% 3% 10% {29)%
26 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
M2 2011
Number Number
Group and Company of shares £000 of shares £000
Authonsed share capital
At the start and end of tha year
Ordinary shares of 1 pence each Unlimrted Unlimited Unlimsted Unhmited
Issued and fully paid
At the start and end of the year
Ordinary shases of 1 pence each 299,298,160 2993 299298 160 2993

No shares vested during 2012 or 2011 under the Long Term tncentive Plan{"LTIP")
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26 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL continued

Long Term Incentive Plan

A Long Term Incentsve Plan was introduced in 2000 for Executive Directors and Sentor Executives Detals of the plan are set outin the Directors Remuneration Repart
During the year, nil{2011 nif) shares were reserved against the award of shares under the LTIP The shares are awarded at an exercise price of Enil Shares outstanding
at Becember 2012 are as follows

Restated

am2 2011

Number Number

Exercisable from 2013 187,837 187,837
Exercisable from 2014 4,477,801 4 477,801

There were no awards granted in the year A Monte Carlo simulation utilising Black-Schales methodology has been used to value awards granted i previous years
as follows

2011 201 201 2m0 2010
Grant date 3 November 31 August 20 April 15 November 285 August
Share price at grant date £033 £047 £0 35 - £039
Exercise price £ail £ml £l £nil Enil
Number of employees 1 2 18 1 19
Shares under option 50 000 202 659 4,225142 4320000 3551,837
Vesting period {vears) 3 1 3 3 3
Expectad valatiity 60 7% 59 8% 593% N7FA 578%
Option Wfe {years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected Iife {years) 284 2 66 230 187 235
flisk free rate 078% 098% 168% N/A 088%
Possibility of ceasing employment before vesting 5%pa 5%pa 5%pa 5%pa 5%pa
Fair value per option £0 20 £0 35 £023 £0 4D £011

The expected volatility 1s based on historical volatility over the last five years The expected life 1s the average expected period to exercise The risk free rate of return
15 the yield on zero-coupon UK Government bonds of a term consistent with the assumed option hfe A reconciliation of option mevernents over the year to December
2012 15 shown befow

Restated

Year ended Year ended

December December

anz 20m

Number Number

Outstanding at the start of the year 12,349,638 8,725 808
Granted - 4,477,801
Expired - {853,969)
Qutstanding at the end of the year 12,349,638 12 349,638

Cessation of Employment

If an award holder ceases to be emplayed within the Graup by reason of injury, ill heath or disabihty {ewidenced to the satisfaction of the Remuneration Committee}
redundancy, retirement or upon the sale or transfer out of the Group of the Company ar undertaking employing the award holder {each a Good Reason” and such
an award holder a "Good Leaver™} then

As regards awards for which the vesting date has not by then occurred he or she must normally wait until the narmal vesting date in respect of the award before
being permitted to exercise  {save that the Remuneration Committee will have the discretion instead to allow the award holder to exercise some or all of such
unvested awards within the peniod of 12 manths or such shorter perod as 15 determined by the Remuneration Committee following the date of cessation
of employment) and

Ordinanily, where an award holder ceases to be employed within the Group (or gives notice to terminate his or her employment} for any reason other than a Good Reason
any awards held by hum or her (whether vested or not} will lapse and cease to be exercisable However, the Remuneration Commttee will have the discretion subject
to such additional conditions as 1t determines (including a power to reduce the number of shares under award whether such award has vested or not), to perit the
award holder to exercise some or all of his or her awards on the same basis as a Good Leaver

The leavers who have transferred out of the Company as a result of the restructure in the year are considered to be Good Leavers All vesting asscciated with these
awards has therefore been accelerated and expensed in the Consolidated Income Statement within continuing operations

The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £1 544 000 (2011 £1,286 000) all of which related to equity settled share-based
payment transactions
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mz2 011
Group Note £000 £000
At January (80,283) (181 484])
{Loss)/profit for the financial year {6,325) 55241
Actuaral (loss)/gains on post retirement benefits 25 {85,268) 3302
Movement on deferred tax asset relating to retsrement benefit hlability 8 {8,125) -
Fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties i3 {16,188) (3325)
Transfer of realised gain on disposed properties bd:| 208,568 44 697
Actrual for long term incentive plan habilities 26 1,544 1,286
At December 13,523 {80 283}
2012 20Mm
Company Note £000 £000
At January 313,645 316,096
Loss for the financial year {302.437) {3829}
Actuarial {loss)/gain on post retirement benefits 25 {290} 132
Accrual for long term incentive plan habilities 26 154 1286
AtDecemher 12,462 313645
28 OTHER RESERVES
Capual Assots
Hedgig Revaluation redemption held Fair value
resenve reserve reserve for sale reserve Total
Group Note £000 £000 1000 £000 £000 £000
At January 201 {262) 123 420 257 - 99713 229128
Revaluation on recagnition of investment properties 13 - 4519 - - - 4519
Transfer of realised gan on disposed properties - 16,652} - - {38 045} {44 697)
Fair value gain on revaluation of Investment properties 13 - - - - 335 3325
Hedging reserve - amortised in period 3 n - - - - 372
Amounts recognised in reserves relating to non current
assets held for sale 18 - (14 190} - 14130 - -
Movement in deferred tax asset on cash flow hedges 5 (Mo} - - - - (110}
At January 2012 - 113,097 257 14,190 64,993 192,537
Revaluation on recognition of investment properties 13 - 100 - - - 100
Teanster of realised gain on disposed properties 27 - {11397} - {14,190} {81181} (208 568)
Fair value gan on revaluation of investmeni properiies 13 - - - - 16188 16 188
At December 2012 - - 257 - - 257
Caprtal
redemption
reserve Total
Company £000 £000
At January 2011 and 2012 and December 2011 and 2012 251 257
None of the other reserves balances at either the 2012 or 2011 year ends represented reahsed reserves
29 CAPITAL AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred 1s as follows
As at As at
December December
2 201
Group £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment - 11,895
Investment property - 558

12 454
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30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Group
The rimimum fease payments due to the Group under non-cancellable operating leases, all of which relate to property rentals, are as follows

As at As at
December December
a2 2011
£000 £000

Lease exptring
Within 1 year - 2988
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years - 7273
After byears - 25,130
- 35,331

The minimum lease payments due by the Group under non cancellable operating leases, which relate to rights over land usage and plant hire, are as follows

As at Asat
December December
mz 20m
£000 £000

Leasa expirtng
Within 1 year - 3453
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years - 13617
After 5 years - 814
- 17884

The Company had no mterest in any operating leases {2011 £nil)

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Following Restructuring the Group has a contingent liability n respect of guarantees that it has provided on behalf of Mine Holdings in respect of certain finance
leases At the year end the outstanding amount payable on these finance leases, some of which may have guarantees attached, was £500,000, and they were due
to be settled within one year As disclosed in note 33 {post balance sheet events), the fire and subsequent closure of Daw Mill coliery may have an impact on Ming
Holdings ability to settle the finance leases The directors expect that should any of the guarantees be called the hiatulity would be up to £500 000

Sheuld the mining business fail 1o pay for the management services provided by the Company, the Group could have a deficit against its annual running casts of asound
£300,000 Additionally the Group receved indemnitigs from the mining group for payment of restructunng fees and other hablities including the Blenkinsepp pension
scheme contnibution Shoutd the mining group be unable to honour the indemnities given to the Group, the Group would have to settle these habilities out of 1its own
resources The expected balance still to be settled 1s £3 800 000 for costs associated with the Restructuring process and the on gomng annual pension scheme contnbution

Inlast year s Annual Report and Accounts a guarantee for an insurance bond for £10,000,000 which was used as security to surface damage liabilities was reported
The msurance bond matured durning 212 and the related habilities were transterred to the Mining Division upon Restructuring

Following Restructuring no guarantees have been given in the normal course of business for performance bonds (2011 £5 619,000) to cover the performance of work
under a number of Group contracts

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

During the year the Group made vanious payments to industry wide defined benefit pension schemes Details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements

Other than the directors of the Company who are the key management of the Group and whose remuneration is disclosed in the Directors Remuneration Repart
there 1s no other key management cempensation to disclose

Transactions with Associates
Since the date of Restructuring the Group has invoiced company secretanal services of £5 000{2011 £nil) to 1ts assotiated company Harworth Estates Property
Group Limited
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Since the date of Restructuring the Group has invoiced company secretanal services of £5 000 (2011 £mil) and recharged £3 557 000 {2011 £nil} of legal and
professicnal fees to its available for sale investment UK Coal Mine Holdings Limited and 1ts subsidiaries

Transactions with Joint Ventures

The Group drd not carry out any transactions with joint ventures during the year {2011 none} There were no balances owing to / from joint ventures at the year end

Company

The Company carrted out the following transactions with related parties during the year Until the date of Restructuring all parties were subsidiary undertakings

Management chamges

During the year the Company raised management charges of £5 008,000 on related parties (2011 £4 199 000)

Dividends received

During the year the Company received dividends of £90 815 000 (2011 £} from related parties whilst they were subsidiary undertakings

Interest

Dunng the year the Company recewved interest income of £7 434 000{2011 £8 720 000} from related parues and pad nterest of £7,057,000 (2011 £8,206,000} to related
parties All transactions occurced whilst the related parties were subsicdhary undertakings The Group manages its financing arrangements centrally and amounts were
transferred within the Group dependent on the aperational needs of individual comparues All amounts were repayable on demand carrted no security and incurred
interest at LIBOR +2% except UK Coal Mining Ltd at LIBOR +3 5% All loan balances with related parties had been settled at the year end

flecewvabies and indebtedness

During the year the Company wrote off £179 497 000 {2011 £} as part of the Restructuning process

Details of the Company s recevables and indebtedness are set cutin notes 17 and 21 and amounts due from or owed to related parties are set out below

Asat Asat

December December

m2 FuTN|

Owed to £000 EO00
UK Coal Mining Ltd - {93873}
Harworth Power Limited - |10 824)
Centechnology {UK} Limited - {1.813)
Harworth Park Services Ltd - o]
UK Coal Holdings Lemited (137) {38}
Harworth Group Limited - {6 578)
Harworth Guarantes Co Limited {a8) {48)
Patland Burn Limied - {21 349)
Dorman? and non-trading companies - (23 881}
{185) {158,408}

As at As at

December December

mz 20m

Owed by £000 £000
UK Coal Qperattons Limited 3557 -
UK Ceal Mine Haldings Limited 5 -
Harworth Estates Property Group Limited 5 -
Mining Services Limited - 5,511
LHTC Ltd - 2 987
Harworth Mrning Lid - 6981
EOS Inc Lid - 12,258
Harworth Estates (Agnicultural Land)} Limited - 6821
Harworth Estates {Waverley Prince} Limited - 97928
Harworth Insurance Company Limited - 335
Dormant and non-trading companies - 83422
1567 216,243
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

Peel Group

The £10 000 000 unsecured facility from Peel Holdings Finance Limited, was extengded in April 2012 until November 2013 amortising in value by £2,500,000 per month
from August 2013 to Nevernber 2013 No interest was payable i 2012 as the faciity was undrawn m the period Toal fees of £465 00D were incurred in 2012
in relation to the facility The facility was terminated upon Restructuring tn December 2012

33 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Since Restructuning in late 2012 the Group has retained only a hmited economic interest in its investment in Mine Holdings

On 22 February 2013 Mine Holdings Daw Mill colliery suffered a major underground fire Mine Holdings safely evacuated 92 underground workers from the ming in
accordance with standard emergency procedure while a specialised team of 14 underground workers, traned (n fire fighting remained at the scene to extinguish the
fire After four hours it became clear that due to the severity of the fire all remaining miners should be evacuated from the mine On 7 March 2013, as the fire continued
1o burn fereciously, Mine Holdings announced the closure of Daw Mill colliery putting the warkforce of 650 at nisk of redundancy

The fire and subsequent closure of Daw Mill has had a ssgnificant impact on the mining business The Company has worked closely with Mine Holdings and the
government led by the Department for Energy and Climate Change to help Mine Holdings manage the closure of Daw Mill and seek a way forward for the mining
busmess

The Company carries its imvestment in Mine Holdings at £1, so there 1s no risk to shareholder value ansing from the fire However the mining business was due to
contribuie to the Company's on-going running costs and at 29 December 2012 and also at the date of signing of the Annual Report and Accounts 2012, owed £3 600,000
in respect of restructunng fees recharged by the Company The directors consider that there 15 some uncertainty as to the recoverability of this recesvable

Harworth Estates the Company's associate, has certain exposures to Mine Holdings through arrangements put in place as part of the Restructunng These include
* af10mloan

s prowding secunty to the Coal Authority for part of Mine Holdings deep mine subsidence liabiity The value of secunty prowided 1s £21 5m against a hability
af £9 1m, and

* providing secunty to Lloyds TSB Bank 1n respect of a bonding facility for Mine Holdings surface mines operations This facility is currently drawn by £4 2m
butcangoupto£8Qm

There 1s a nsk that Harworth Estates may be impacted by the fire at Daw Mill in terms of Ming Holdings ability to service loan repayments and meet its cash funding
requirements (n respect of the Coal Authority and surface mine bonding arrangements and so indirectly the Company s investment in Harworth Estates may be impacted
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